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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 31, 2023

L

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Retroactive, Sole Source amendments to existing agreements with the Contractors
listed in bold below to correct an error in the rate calculation for services by increasing the price
limitation by $4,316,326 from $236,017,584 to $240,333,910 with no change to the contract
completion date of June 30, 2024, effective retroactive to August 11, 2021 upon Governor and
Council approval. Funding source is estimated as 51% General Funds and 49% Federal Funds
dependent upon eligibility of the client.

below.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table

Contractor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised G&C

Approval

Chase Home for
Children

Portsmouth, NH

159596 Portsmouth, NH $4,758,056 $0 $4,758,056
O: 8/4/21
Item #15

Devereux

Foundation

Rutland, MA

166896

In/Near

Hlllsborough,
Manchester,

Keene, Concord,
and Rockingham

County

$6,960,555 $0 $6,960,555
O; 8/4/21

Item #15

Dover Children's
Home

Dover, NH

154149 Dover. NH $4,290,336 $0 $4,290,335
0: 7/14/21
Item #14

Easter Seals
Manchester, NH

177204 Manchester, NH $33,670,236 $0 $33,670,236
O: 7/14/21

Item #14

The Home for Little
Wanderers, Inc.
Boston. MA

318042

In/Near

Hillsborough.
Manchester,

Keene,

Concord, and
Rockingham

County

$19,903,207.01 $0 $19,903,207.01
0: 7/14/21
Item #14
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Mount Prospect
Academy

Plymouth. NH
168139 Plymouth, NH $47,176,194 $0 $47,176,194

0; 8/4/21

Item #15

Nashua Children's

Home

Nashua. NH

154120 Nashua. NH $9,804,960 $0 $9,804,960
0: 7/14/21

Item #14

Orion House

Newport, NH
154861 Newport, NH $1,301,055 $1,889,368 $3,190,423

0: 8/4/21

Item #15

Pine Haven Boys
Center

Suncook. NH

174119 Suncook. NH $11,382,600.17 $0 $11,382,600.17
0: 7/14/21

Item #14

Spaulding Academy
& Family
Services

Northfield. NH

154273 Northfield. NH $50,443,273 $0 $50,443,273
0: 7/14/21
Item #14

St. Ann's Home. Inc.
Methuen, MA

161236

In/Near

Hillsborcugh.
Manchester.

Keene. Concord,
and Rockingham

County

$11,215,992 $0 $11,215,992
0:

10/13/21

Item #36B

Stetson School
Barre, MA

161577

In/Near

Hillsborcugh.
Manchester,

Keene. Concord,
and Rockingham

County

$7,280,334 $0 $7,280,334
O: 7/14/21

Item #14

Vermont

Permanency
Initiative, Inc.
Bennington, VT

258588

In/Near

Hillsborcugh.
Manchester.

Keene. Concord,
and Rockingham

County

$15,885,099 $0 $15,885,099
0: 8/4/21
Item #15

Webster House
Manchester, NH

318295 Manchester, NH $2,116,692 $2,426,958 $4,543,650
0: 7/14/21

Item #14

Whitney Acaderny.
Inc.

East Freetown, MA

161838

In/Near

Hillsborough.
Manchester,

Keene. Concord,
and Rockingham

County

$6,387,177 $0 $6,387,177
0: 7/14/21
Item #14

Youth Opportunities
Upheld, Inc.
Gardner. MA

259406 Statewide $3,441,819 $0 $3,441,819

0:9/15/21

Tabled

Item #32

A01: 4/6/22

Item #13

Total: $236,017,584 $4,316,326 $240,333,910
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Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

Because the Bridges System is used to process and monitor payments for these
agreements, no purchase order number is assigned. The New Hampshire First System will not
be used to encumber these funds.

Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time of payment.
Possible account numbers to be utilized include the below:

05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL
HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE. CLASS 563 - COMMUNITY BASED SERVICES - 100% General
Funds

05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL
HEALTH. SYSTEM OF CARE, CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES -100%
General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 636 - TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT - 50% Federal Funds and
50% General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29560000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 639-TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT -100%
Federal Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY

SERVICES. CLASS 643 - STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT -100% General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 646 - TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT - 50% Federal Funds and 50%
General Funds

05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES,
MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT, CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS - 50% Federal
Funds and 50% General Funds

EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive because upon review of the contracts for Webster House and
Orion House, the Department discovered an error in the rate calculation. As part of the System
of Care work, the Department competitively bid these contracts, and established daily rates in
each contract under certain assumptions and many unknowns. Due the restrictive nature of
procurement laws, the Department was unable to obtain all documentation necessary to mitigate
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the unknowns, and was prohibited from providing advice to the Contractors on how they should
account for their costs, resulting in inaccurate reporting. The ramification of this challenge was
not fully realized until providers started billing and appropriate reporting was able to be derived
from the system. The rate errors became clear upon review of this information once available,
however, a year had elapsed from the start of the contract at that point. A comprehensive re-
examination of the rate setting process was undertaken that took almost a year to implement
appropriately with proactive considerations for future rate setting efforts. This rate setting process
has since been streamlined and clarified in order to prevent further errors.

This request is Sole Source because the Department is increasing the price limitation by
more than 10% of the original contract. These two Contractors provide critical services within the
Children's Residential Treatment provider rietwork. and are currently serving children under an
old rate. This rate setting correction must be implemented in order to ensure that the Department
maintains provider capacity and that the Contractors-are able to continue serving children. Orion
House's rates changed from $211,70 for Level 1 and $207.40 for Level 2 to $184.39 for Level 1
and $316.36 for Level 2. Webster House's rates changed from $172.44 for Level 2 to $327.08
for Level 2 for the period of July 1.2021 to June 30. 2022. and $369.39 for Level 2 for the period
of July 1, 2022 fonward.

The purpose of this request is to ensure that Contractors are reimbursed for children's
residential services with the correct rate. The Contractors will continue to provide evidence-based
and trauma-informed clinical behavioral health services in residential treatment settings to
children, youth and young adults who have behavioral health needs. The Contractors will also
continue supporting the Department's effort to provide long-term outcomes for youth by providing
services that are short-term, target treatment episodes, and enable the State to meet the federal
regulations regarding residential programs as mandated in the Families First Services Prevention
Act.

The population served includes children and youth who display acute behaviors, medical
needs and mental health symptoms that require treatment in residential settings. These
individuals may have specialty care needs, including intellectual and developmental disabilities,
aggressive behaviors, past attempts of suicide or significant self-harm. A qualified assessor will
determine whether children and youth receiving services provided in the family home are eligible
for the residential levels of care. Across all of the Children's Residential Treatment programs
approximately 400-500 individuals will be served annually through June 30, 2024.

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services by collecting data on
referrals, family and youth engagement, quality of treatment, and transition and discharge;
conducting site visits; and reviewing client files. The Department will also monitor the following:

•  Rapid Acceptance of Referrals;
•  Reduction of Restraints and Seclusion;

•  Improvement of Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) scores;
•  Reduction of length of stay; and
•  Reduction of staff tumover and retention of quality staff.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions for Standard Agreement Provisions of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to six (6) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department'is not exercising its option to renew at this time.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Contractors will not be
reimbursed at the appropriate rate; leaving the Department vulnerable to potentially losing these
critical service providers, which would, be detrimental to the overall capacity to serve youth in
Level 1 and Level 2 programs in-state.

Area served: Services are located in Newport NH and Manchester, NH however they
accept and treat children from across the state.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing #93.658, FAIN #2301NHFOST; Assistance
Listing #93.558, FAIN #2301NHTANF; Assistance Listing #93.659, FAIN #2301NHADPT:
Assistance Listing #93.778, FAIN #2305NH5ADM.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

The Dcparimenl of Health and Human Servieee'Mission is to join comnwnilies and fomilies
in providing opportunities (or citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health contract is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Orion House ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 4, 2021 (item #15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and - • .

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,190,423

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is'funded by:

1.1. Funds from Administration for Children and Families, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.658, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2301NHFOST

1.2. Funds from Administration for Children and Families, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.558, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2301NHTANF

1.3. Funds from Administration for Children and Families, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.659, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2301NHADPT

1.4. Funds from Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.558, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2305NH5ADM

1.5. General Funds

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time of payment.
Possible account numbers to be utilized include the following:

2.1. 05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS
BEHVIORAL HEALTH. SYSTEM OF CARE, CLASS 563 - COMMUNITY BASED
SERVICES-100% General Funds

2.2. 05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS
BEHVIORAL HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE, CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM
SERVICES-100% General Funds

2.3. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD^"® 1ILY
SERVICES. CLASS 636 - TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT-50% Fed inds

Orion House A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
WI77D23^

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-08-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date
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and 50% General Funds

2.4. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY

SERVICES, CLASS 639 - TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT-
100% Federal Funds

2.5. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY

SERVICES. CLASS 643 - STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT-100% General
Funds

2.6. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 646 - TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT-50% Federal Funds and

50% General Funds

2.7. 05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES, OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES.
MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT. CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS-50%
Federal Funds and 50% General Funds

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to read:

4.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals, a daily rate will be awarded in the amount per
client per day indicated in the table listed under section 4.1.1. This per diem rate
will be set for the term of the Contract. Rates may be reviewed every two years to
follow the State's biennium to consider rate adjustments.

4.1.1.

Program • Orion House Level 1

Residential for eligible youth per day $184.39

Program - Orion House Level 2

Residential for eligible youth per day $316.36

4.1.2. Billings shall occur on at least on a monthly basis and shall follow a process
determined by the Department.

4.1.3. For the purpose of this Agreement, funds in the amount of $67,477.00 shall
be provided to the Contractor, for the expenses incurred to obtain
accreditation and identification as a Qualified Residential Treatment Program
(QRTP) as specified in Ex C-1 Accreditation Budget; the total of all such
payments shall not exceed the specified Accreditation Budget total. All DHHS
payments to the Contractor for the Accreditation Budget shall be made on a
cost reimbursement basis.

4.1.3.1 In lieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting documentation may
be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager - BCBH
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 fZ
W

Orion House A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
V/I/TVTT

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-08-A01 Page 2 of 5 Date
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4.1.3.2 The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each invoice and supporting documention
for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted
invoice.

4.1.3.3 The final Invoice and supporting documention for authorized
Accredidation Budget expenses shall be due to the Department no
later than forty (40) days after the final cost have been incurred by
the Contractor in line with the budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4, Subsection 4.5. to read;

4.5. Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure for Department funded expenditures
by fiscal year is as follows:

4.5.1. Sub-total: $3,122,946.00

4.5.2. SPY 22: $433,685.00

4.5.3. SPY 23: $1,648,279.00

4.5.4 SPY 24: $1,040,982.00

7. Add Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, Accreditation Budget, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

w
Orion House A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

"6/177073"
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-08-A01 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to August 11, 2021, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/2/2023

Date

^OoeuSigned by:

— EO9DC6B04C63442...

Title. Q.j f-ector

6/1/2023

Date

Orion House
—DbcuSlgned by:

-324103440FBB4SA...

Name"

Title;
Executive Director

dp

Orion House

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-08-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 4 of 5

6/1/2023
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/5/2023

— OoeuSioned by:

•748734844941460...

Date Name: Robyn cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Orion House A-S-1.2 6/1/2023

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-08-A01 Page 5 of 5
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Exhibit C-1, Amendment 01, Accreditation Budget

Accreditation expenses for resftenUartreatmeni pfoarama

Basic infomiation

Orion House RFP-202l-OBH-12-ftEStO^A01

1
Line Item Amount requested Notes (if needed)

Personnel costs $

Supervisors/managers
FronOine caseworVers

Coordination or administrabve support

COI. OA specialists and/or data analysts
Other oersonneJ costs

Proflram facilities %  45,226.00

Lease

Maintence and utilities

Other faciliN costs

9.300.00

35.926.00

Rooring repair 3rd floor, 4 window replacement

bathroom renovation. ADA ramp renovation

Program materials and supplies $

EBP or program model-specinc materials
Recruitment hiring, orvboarding materials
Other orooram materials/supolies

Staff transportation $

Mileage

Gas

Other staff transoortation

EBP or program model-specific expenses %  1,000.00

Program license or other fees
Program training (initial)
Other EBP or proaram model costs

1.000.00 TBRI

Systems costs related to program $  16,333.00

Technology for data collection, reporting
Other systems

16,333.00 internal sen/er.higher fire vwD protecUona, back up protection

Consulting and 8ub<ontracting $

Consulting
Sutxontractino

Equipment $  3,128.00

Vehicles

Furniture

Technology Equipment
Other Equipment i

3,128.00 therapy and group room

Telecommunication '' 1 S  1,790.00

Phones/Walkie Talkies

Internet Service

Other Telecommunication

1,790.00 walkies and charging system

Client Provisions S  • 1

Food

Clothing/Hygiene
Other Client Provisions

1

All other accredldation costs $

tTotal accreditation budget costs

6/1/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan. Sccretaiy of State of the State of New Hampshiie. do hereby certify that ORION HOUSE.
INCORPORATED is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 10.
1978.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 66567

Certificate Number: 0006239817

%

Ba.

<9©

%

1:2

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of June A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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Certificate of Authority OrionHouse

Corporate Resolution

h Jol> Burnham , hereby certify that I am duly assigned recording secretary of
(Name)

Orion House . T hereby certify the following is a true copy of a vote taken at

(Name of Corporation)

a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on June 1.2023 .

at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Danielle Paranto. Executive Director Cmav list more than one person)
is

(Name and Title)

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of

Orion House with the State of New Hampshire and any of
(Name of Corporation )

its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any documents

which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of

this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force

and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority

remains valid for thirt>' (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution. I further certify

that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that

the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have fiill

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

DATED: ATT^T:

(Name ^ ^
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/XCORO'

ORION-3

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

QP ID- EH

DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

06/01/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the po!icy(Ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER 603-542-2551
McCrillis & Eldredge
107 Broad Street
Claremont, NH 03743
Christopher Eldredge

CONTACT Christopher Eldredge

K. Ex.,: 603-542-2551

INS1IRFR/R1 AFFORniNG COVFRAGR 1 NAJC«

INSURER A Berkley Regional Ins Co

^non prevention Information & Education Inc;
Orion House Inc; D^ Orion Individual
Treatmentlnc. dba Granite Hill School
139 Elm Street
Newport, NH 03773

INSURERS

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB.
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDLSUBR
IINSO IWVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
IMMfPnrrYYYI llMMIPOfYYVYl LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

ClAIMS-MAOE I X [ OCCUR

CEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY I I I LOC
OTHER:

HHS8586275-12 01/17/2023

EACH OCCURREf^

01/17/2024
DAMAGE TO RENTED

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Prof Liab

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000
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RION
HOUSE

,.Gui(£ng our Voulh (or ovx 40 ynrs

MISSION STATEMENT

The Orion House will embrace the strengths and acknowledge struggles as we join with
youth to promote growth so that each may pursue personal wellbeing and independence.

VISION STATEMENT
Orion House strives to provide a structured and nurturing environment that addresses the
behavioral, emotional, familial and adult living needs of each resident.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of the Board of

Orion House, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Orion House, Inc. which comprise the
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022.and 2021, and the related statements of activities
and changes In net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. In all material respects, the
financial position of Orion House, Inc., as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in Its net assets
and its cash flows for the years then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Orion House, inc., and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits- We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management Is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered In the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Orion House, inc's. ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

59 Franklin Street, 2nd Floor
Annapolis, MD 21401
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery. Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Mlsstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that.
Individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Orion House, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, In our Judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt-about Orion House, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we Identified during the audit.

September 10, 2022
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ORION HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 298,766 $ ,337,710
Accounts Receivable 24,513 40 043
Due from Related Parties 156,964 71,214

4!i69
Total Current Assets 487

Property and Equipment:

Building and Leasehold Improvements
Equipment and Furniture

Total Property and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Due to Related Parties

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

,714 453,136

29,275 29,275

117,739 113,930

147,014 143,205

(133,235) (127,367)

13,779 15,838

501,493 $ 468,974

9,567 $ 16,597

21,434 21,976

291,470 144,271

322,471 182,844

322,471 182,844

154,586 256,634

24,436 29,496

179,022 286,130

501,493 $ 468,974

See Independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ORION HOUSE, INC.
STATEM ENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN N ET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SUPPORTAND REVENUE

Contributions and Grants:

Contributions

DCYF Accreditation Grant Income
R&6 Income

Title I

USDA

Total Contributions and Grants

Program Income:

DCYF Fees

DOIT Food Service

DOIT School Support

Medlcaid Fees

OPIE Contract and Personnel

Other Recoupment

Total Program Income

Investment Income

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Total Support and Revenue

EXPENSES

Program Services

GDI

Residential

Title I

Total Program Expenses

Management and General

Total Expenses

Change In Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

S  3,050 $ S  ■ 3,050

12,490 12,490
27,877 27,877
45,551 - 45,551
88,968

- 88,968

523,366 523,366
116,497 - 116,497
131,333

- 131,333
354,054

- 354,054
15,502

- 15,502
1,626 - 1,626

1,142,378
- 1,142,378

137
- 137

5,060 (5,060)

1,236,543 (5,060) 1,231,483

80,841 80,841
1,132,637

- 1,132,637
67,152 - 67,152

1,280,630
- 1,280,630

57,960 _

57,960

1,338,590 1,338,590

(102,047) (5,060) (107,107)

256,634 29,496 286,130

154,586 S 24,436 $ 179,022

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
6
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ORION HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Contributions and Grants:

Contributions

DCYF Accreditation Grant Income

Provider Relief Fund

Title I

USDA

Total Contributions and Grants

Program Income:

DaF Fees

DOIT Food Service

DOIT School Support

Medicaid Fees

OPIE Contract and Personnel

Other Recoupment

Total Program Income

Investment Income

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

Total Support and Revenue

EXPENSES

Program Services

ODI

Residential

Title I

Total Program Expenses

Management and General

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year $

$  6,322 ' $ -  $ 6,322

- 56,138 56,138

19,045 - 19,045

51,379
- 51,379

32,729 - 32,729

109,475 56,138 165,613

577,166 . 577,166

97,845 ■ 97,845

125,308 - 125,308

403,445 - 403,446

15,502 - 15,502

351 - 351

1,219,618 - 1,219,618

264 - 264

26,642 (26,642) .

1,355,999 29,496 1,385,495

78,469 78,469

1,133,825 •  - 1,133,825

68,997 - 68,997

1,281,291 ♦ 1,281,291

64,649 . 64,649

- 1,345,940 1,345,940

10,059 29,496 39,555

246,575 _ 246,575

256,634 $ 29,496 S 286,130

See Independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ORION HOUSE, INC

Statement of functional expenses

FORTNE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Personnel:

Employee Beneflts

Payroll Taxes

Salaries & Wages
Staff Development

Professional Services:

Accounting & Audit, Legal
Client Treatment & Counseling

DOIT Counseling Services

OPIE Administrative Asse^ment

Occupancy:

Household Supplies

Maintenance & Cleaning

OPIE Rent

Real Estate Taxes

Small Tools & Equipment

Utilities

Transportation:

Gasoline & Registration

OPIE Vehicle Leases

Vehlde Maintenance & Repair

Administrative Expenses:

Office supplies & expenses

Telephone & Communications

Insurance:

Property & Liability Insurance

Other Program Expenses:

Food

Other Expertses

Program Supplies & Expenses

Depreciation

Total Expenses

001 Residential

101 $

80,740

126.435 S

65.977

674,263

-  2,380

6.648

19,884

16,523

40,934

2,500

28,794

6,069

6,000

536

6,229

6,313

4,622

96,103

16,509

5,868

Title I .

8,835

58,317

Program

Services

Management

and General

126,536 $

65,977

763,838

2,380

6,648

58,317

19,884

16.523

40,984

2.500

28,794

6,069

6.000

536

6,229

6,313

4,622

96,103

16,509

5,868

4,470

53,490

Total

126,536

65,977

763,838

2,380

4,470

6,648

58,317

53,490

19,884

16,523

40,984

2,500

28,794

6,069

6,000

536

6,229

6313

4,622

96,103

16.509

5,868

80,841 $ 1.132.637 S 67.152 $ 1,280.630 $ 57,960 S 1,338,590

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to financial statements.
8



ORION HOl/SE, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR TTIE YEAR ENDED J JNE 30, 2021

W

<o'

Personnel:

Employee Benefits
Payroll Taxes

Salaries & Wages
Staff Development

Professional Services:

Accoundngfi. Audit
Oient Treatment & Counseling
OOrr Counseling Services
OPIE AtfmWstrative Assessment

Occupancy:

Household Supplies
Mainterwnce & Oeaning
OPIE Rent

Real Estate Taxes
Small Tools & Equipment
Utnities

Trasnportatlon:

Gasoline & Registration
OPIE Vehicle Leases

Vehicle Maintenance & Repair
Administrative Expenses:

Office supplies & expenses
Telephone & Communications

Insurance:

Property & Uability Insurance
Other Pfc^ram Expenses:

Food

Other Expenses

Program Supplies & Expenses
Oepreciab'on

Total Expenses

ODI

78.«9

Residential

125,402

74,074

657.717

1.400

8.121

17.660

11.610

40.984

2.500

760

24,636

3.238

6.000

1,377

8,099

4.841

8,503

90.336

20,197

18,418

7,952

Tide I

26,904

41350

743

Progrem

Services
Management

and General

125.402

74,074

763.090

1.400

49.471

17,660

11.610

40.984

2.500

760

24,636

3,238

6.000

1.377

8.099

4.841

8,503

90.336

20,197

29,161

7352

5.800

58,849

Total

6  1.1338?<; 5 68.997 1,281.291 64,649

125,402

74374

763.090

1,400

5,800

49,471

58349

17,660

11.610

40,984

2,500

760

24,636

3,238

6,000

1377

8,099

4,841

8.503

90.336

20.197

19.161

7,952

1.345340

Q
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ORfON HOUSE, iNC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the years ended JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Artivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance at End of Year

147,199

2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In Net Assets

Ad^stments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash ^ (10'.107) S 39,555Depreciation Expenses

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: , 7,952
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase) Decrease in Due from Related Party
(Increase) Decrease In Employee Prepaid (85,750) (1^937)
(Increase) Decrease In Prepaid Expenses
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory
Increase (Decrease) In Accounts Payable 2,359
Increase (Decrease) In Accrued Expenses 7,473
Increase (Decrease) In Due to Related Parties ®'128

^  298766 $

(3,703)

(35,135) 51,769

-(3^309) (3,140)

(3^809) (3,140)

(38,944) 48,629

-337,710 289,081

337,710

see independent auditor, report and acconnpanying notes to financia, sta.enrents
10
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ORION HOUSE INC.

NOTES TO the' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Orion House, Inc. is a voluntary, not-for-profit corporation, Incorporated under the laws of the
State of New Hampshire (RSA 292) and organized exclusively for tax-exempt charitable and
educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1954, as amended. The organization is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section
S09(a). The Organization is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a).
Orion House provides residential care to youths that require out-of-home care. The current
mission of the Organization is to be a provider of safe and effective family-centered services to
youth and their fariiilies. The delivery of services to youths and their families focuses on five
principal domains: Community, Family, Therapy, Residential and Educational.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP), which require the Organization to report informatton regarding Its
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and the board of
Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions; Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and
grantors. The donor restrictions are temporary In nature; those restrictions will be met by certain
actions or by the passage of time.

Basis of Accounting

The Organization presents its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this
basis, exchange revenues and related accounts receivables are recognized when earned. Non-
exchange revenues (grants, contributions, donations, etc.) are recognized when received.
Expenses and related payabies are recognized when title to goods and services passes to the
Agency.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

11
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ORION HOUSE INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 -SUMiVIARy OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of bank deposits held In checking and savings accounts. For purposes of
reporting the statements of cash flows, If any, all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with
a maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Public Support and Revenues

The Organization derives its principal income mainly from tuition charged to sending public
school districts. Revenue from this source are recognized on a monthly basis as services are
invoiced to the sending,school districts. Secondary support is obtained from counseling and
home-tutoring services, private donations, interest, dividends and capital gains on Investments.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as increases in net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-
Imposed restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase
in net assets without donor restrictions If the restriction expires In the reporting period in
which the contribution Is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as
increases In net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restrictions.

When a restriction expires (that is; when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction Is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclasslfied to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released
from restrictions.

From time to time, the Organization may receive donated services in carrying out the mission
and fundraislng activities of the Organization. Such donations meet the criteria for revenue
recognition when all of the following conditions are met:

•  Special skills are required
•  The work Is done by volunteers who have these skills

•  The services would otherwise have to be purchased

The value of volunteer services is also recorded when the services create or Improve upon a
non-financial asset. In those cases, revenue is recognized In the amount of the value of the
hours contributed or via the change in fair value of the altered asset. The Organization
received no reportable donated services during fiscal years 2022 or 2021.

12
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ORION HOUSE liNC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Revenues and Refundable Advances

Service charges received in advance of the year to which they apply are reported as deferred
revenue in the statements of financial position. Amounts received from grants in advance of the
year to which relating eligible expenses have been incurred are reported as refundable
advances.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing program services and supporting activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of activities and changes in net assets. Expenses are charged
to program services based on direct costs incurred or estimated usage (for Indirect costs). Any
expenses not directly chargeable are allocated to functions based on the direct charges.
Annually, an Indirect cost rate Is established by The Organization and approved by the State of
New Hampshire Department of Education for this purpose.

Prepaid Expenses

Disbursements made In advance of the receipt of goods and services are recorded as prepaid
expenses In the statement of financial position.

Property and Equipment

All costs of property and equipment, and the fair value of donated assets value In excess of
$500 and an initial economic useful life of greater than one accounting period are capitalized.
Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method, beginning in the month of acquisition at
rates based on the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 30 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 7 Years
Equipment 5 Years

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3) and for the years ending June 30, 2022 and 2021 had no unrelated business income.
Therefore, no provision for income taxes Is made in the accompanying financial statements.

13
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ORION HOUSE INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deposits

As of June 30, 2022, $250,000 of the Compan/s bank deposits were insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and $48,765 were uninsured. As of June 30,2021, $250,000
of the Company's bank deposits were insured by the FDIC and $87,710 were uninsured. The
Organization's deposits Its cash , with high quality financial Institutions and management
believed that is not exposed to significant credit risk on those amounts.

Subsequent Events

The Organization evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. The Organization Is not aware of any significant events that
occurred subsequent to the statement of financial position date but prior to September ID
2022.

NOTE 2-ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2022 and 2021 Include tuition due from public school districts and
students and a contract retainer. All are considered to be collectible and no reserve for
uncoliected accounts has been established. Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2022 and 2021,
include the following:

2022 2021

Due from the State of NH $ 24.513 $ 40.Q43

Total S 24,513 $ 4QJ345

NOTE 3 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Orion House, Inc. Is a voluntary member of Orion Prevention and Education, Inc. (OPIE) - a
nonprofit corporation whose principal activities provides support and centralized management
services for member organizations. During the course of normal operations, the Organization
has transactions with other members and OPIE, Including expenditures and transfers of
resources to provide services and fund capital outlay. Separate, independent Boards approve
all Transactions between related parties. To the extent that certain transactions have not been
paid or received as of June 30, balances of inter-company amounts receivable or payable have
been recorded.

14
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ORION HOUSE INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 3 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS{CONTINUED)

All are considered to be collectible and no reserve for uncollected accounts has been established.
Accounts receivables and payables June 30,2022 and 2021, Include the following:

Due From Related Partjp<

Orion Prevention and Education, inc. (OPIE)
Day Orion Individual Treatment Inc (DOIT)

Total

Due To Related Parties

Orion Prevention and Education Inc. (OPIE)
Day Orion Individual Treatment (DOIT)

Total

2022 2021

9,043

147.922

$ 5,167

66.047

156.965 $ ^.214

2022 2021

207,897

83.572

S 114,335

29.936

291.470 S 144.271

Transaction with related parties during the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 were as follows:

For the Fiscal Year End June 30. 2022

Management Fees

Contract Personnel

Property Lease

Vehicle Lease

Food Service

Counseling Services- Title I

Counseling Services-Other

Total

For the Fiscal Year End June 30. 2071

Management Fees
Contract Personnel

Property Lease

Vehicle Lease

Food Service

Vocational Support
Counseling Services- Title I

Counseling Services- Other

Total

OPIE DOIT

(53,490) $

15,502

(40,984)

(6,000)

184.972)

OPIE

(58,849)

15,502

(40,984)
(6,000)

116,499

(58,317)

131.333

DOIT

97,845

(41,350)
125.308

-(9Q.331) $ 181-803
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ORION HOUSE INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 4- PROPERTY AND EOUIPMENT

Property and Equipment at June 30, 2022 and 2021 consisted of the following;

2022 2021

Building and Improvements $ 29,275 $ 29,275
Equipment and Furnishings 117,739 113,930
Less Accumulated Depreciation (133.235) (127.3671

Total $

NOTE 5 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring Its financial assets to be available as its
general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that Is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the
following:

2022 2021

-Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 298,766 S 337,710
Accounts Receivable 24,513 40,043
Related Party Receivable 156.964 71214

Total Current Fina nclal Assets at Year End 480,243 448,967

Amounts Unavailable for General Expenditures
Within One Year, Due to:

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions (24.4361 (29.4961

Total Financial Assets Available for General

Expenditure Within One Year $ 455.807 $ 419.471

NOTE 6 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRiaiONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of unspent grant funds related to
accreditation.

16
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ORION HOUSE, INC
2023

PRESIDENT

Heidi J. Patten

VICE PRESIDENT

Jeffrey Parker

Sally Putonen

JoKn Ahman, MA

Suzanne Harvey



David J. Morris

Objective: Showcase experience and skills.

Education: MED, School Counseling 88% completed

Plymouth Slate University Anticipated Graduation spring 2023

Bachelor of Arts, History

University of Rhode Island 1997 - 2002
Completed 50 page senior project entitled 1600-2000: An Examination of Racism in the
Boxing Ring."

Work Experience

Director of Residential Pike Campus 2020-Present
Provide guidance and vision to support for three residential sights
Physical management instructor
Swim Safety Instructor
Superxdses program managers

Hires new faculty

Assists in quality assurance

Other Position held with in the MPA system 2013 -2020

•  Program Manager Campion House
•  Program Manager Plymouth house
•  Program Manager Sub-Acute Depot
•  Program Manager Sub-Acute Step
•  Program Manager Hall Fann

House Manager: Blackstone Valley Youth and Family Collaborative

lO/I l/I I Pawluckel Rhode Island

Supervise and manage the day to day operation of a four client home
Works with several clients with a variety of special needs
Provide Safety and Security to four clients
CPR and First Aid Certified

Handle with Care restraint certified

Organized community ser\'ice projects for special needs clients

Child Care Worker: Tahoe Turning Point

9/2010-9/2011 South Lake Tahoe, CA



Instructed an Adult Living Course at S. Lake Tahoe Community College
Tutor and liaison for the Mount Tallac Continuation School

Worked very closely with gang affiliated clients
Organized and led and educational trip to Alcatraz
Worked very closely with clients that have substance abuse issues

Organized and led an overnight camping trip to Yosemite National Park

Program Director:

11/6/06-8/1/10

Becket Family of Services

Plymouth, New Hampshire

Managed and directed the day to day operation of a 26 client group home.
Four merit based promotions in two years

Organized and designed a successful intramural basketball league
Supervised 25 employees
Authored numerous legal documents that are admissible in court

Received letter of recommendation for superior perfonnance
Reliable attendance (three sick days in four years)

Hobbies and Achievements

•  Cycled 73 miles around Lake Tahoe 2011
•  Climbed Mount Washington 2010
•  Has been to every U.S. State except four
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Nina L. Albano

Profile

Coal-oricntccl individual with strong leadership capabilities.
Organized, highlv motivated, and detail-directed problem solver.
Proven abilitt' to provide leadership to staff.
Proven abilit\' to work within a wide-range of clinical situations.

2003-2009

Education

LCMHC, State of New l-lampshire. License number 667

M.S., Psycholog\', Cum Laude, New Bngland College
B.A., Psvcholog)', Cum Laude, New England College
Certification, Rape and Domestic Violence Counselor, Rape and Domestic Violence Coalition of
New Hampshire

Employment

School Therapist, Granite Hill School IQd^-present

' • Provide individual and group counseling scr\'ices to students

Private Practice, Brookside Counseling 2007-2013

•  Provide counseling ser\-ices in" a private practice setdng

Program Director, Orion House, Inc.
•  Provide and oversee daily residential and therapeutic care for 16 adolescent

males in an intermediate rcsidendal treatment facilit)'.

.  Provide direct super\*ision and management of all residential counselors.

Treatment Coordinator, Orion House, Inc. 2002-2003
.  Provided individual and group therapy to adolescent males in a rcsidendal

treatment facility. Assisted in the development of individualized treatment
plans. Directed professional contact with families, courts and all involved in the
residents individual cases.

Home Based Therapist 2006-200S
•  Provided in home counseling, case management and assessments for families.

Counselor, R/ipe and Domestic X'^iotence Coalition ofNew Hampshire 1998-1999
• Completed rigorous training. Counselor for crisis-line. Offered unconditional

respect, confidentialit}-, support and resources for domestic violence victims.

Advocate Intern, Children's Alliance ofNew Hampshire 1997-1997
• Directly appointed to represent the agency in numerous fundraisers and

meetings. Worked with other agencies to organize a children's
awareness march in Washington, D.C. Assisted in the processing data
for the Kids Count Report.

Intern Assistant, Victim Sendees Committee for the Covemor's Committee on Violence 1996-1996

• Completed projects and reviews of issues and programs associated with the impact of youth
e.xposcd to domestic violence.
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Awards and Recognition

2004-lEmploycc of The Year ac Orion House, Inc.

2004-Nominatcd for the au'arcl for outstanding communit)' member in the service of children and their
fariiilics at the DCM- conference.
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MELANIE GIOIOSO

Skills: Problem solving, Leadership/Mentoring, Enthusiastic, Confident, Strong willed.

EXPERIENCE

JULY 2017-PRESENT

MILIEU COUNSELOR (NOW FAMILY AND RESIDENT WORKER), ORION HOUSE
Responsible for assisting floor staff in crisis management, in the moment interventions,
helping assist floor staff with management of the house, family counseling', assisting Clinical
Coordinator with paper work duties, facilitating/helping with groups, offering staff support,
individual counseling when needed, positive reinforcements in the milieu, and completing
other duties as assigned.

OCTOBER 2018 - FEBRUARY 2020

INTERIM TREATMENT COORDINATOR, ORION HOUSE

Responsible for coordinating and writing of all Treatment Plans, 30 day Biopsychosocial
Assessments, and Discharge Summaries and Monthly Reports. Acts as liaison/coordinator of
resident's outpatient needs. Runs group therapy (Substance Awareness and Emotional
Management Groups), individual therapy, assists with family counseling, and supports floor
staff with crisis interventions. Collaborates with Program Director toward the synthesis of both
clinically and behaviorally oriented sen/ices. Part of the Management Team. Supervisor of the
Milieu Counselor.

DECEMBER 2014 - JUNE 2017

SHIFT SUPERVISOR, NFI MIDWAY SHELTER

Responsible for safety of all residents and staff, in charge of running the shift, part of the on
call rotation, ensure all procedures/regulations were followed, passed medications,
responsible for writing of incident reports, shift reports, and weekly reports. In charge of
completing monthly supen/ision of Residential Counselors. Offered in the moment
interventions, staff supports, and organized daily schedule and activities. Completed intakes
and took referrals after hours.

EDUCATION

DECEMBER 2010

BA SOCIAL SCIENCES, SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY

MS CANIDATE

MS ADDICTIONS COUNSELING, GRAND CANYON UNIVERSITY
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Not completed. Current CPA 3.98

CERTIFICATIONS

•  CBT Certified

•  TBRI

• Working on DBT Certification

Hand With Care

Medication Management Certification

First Aid and CPR
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DANIELLE PARANTO

To work wilh youth focusing on helping them achieve their goals as they
prepare to enter the next phase of their lives.

EXPERIENCE | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR THE ORION HOUSE, INC., NEWPORT
NH

JUNE 2014- PRESENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/PRINCIPAL GRANITE HILL SCHOOL,

INC., NEWPORT NH

JUNE 2005 -PRESENT

BEHAVIORIST GRANITE HILL SCHOOL, INC., NEWPORT NH

JUNE 2000-JUNE 2005

EDUCATOR GRANITE HILL SCHOOL, INC., NEWPORT NH

JUNE 2000-JUNE 2005

RESIDENTIAL COUNSELOR THE ORION HOUSE, INC.,

NEWPORT NH

AUGUST 1997 -2000

EDUCATION I KEENE STATE COLLEGE, KEENENH
MASTERS OF EDUCATION 2004

Certified Educational Leadership

FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE, RINDGENH

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE 1994

Major: Sociology Minor: Psychology

Summa Cum Laude
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Orion House 2023

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Danielle Paranto Executive Director 115,600 50% 57,800.

David Morris Treatment Coordinator 65,000 100% 65,000

Melanie Gioioso Director 56,450 100% 56,450.

Nina Albano Prescribing Practitioner 79,125 6.55% 5,200.
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Lori A. SblfatoctU

Comstlulooer

IUO« S. Foi
Dlmtor

/5^
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCXJRD, NH 0J30I
(03-n-9S44 1.80(MS2.334SEit9S44

Fu: 605-2?I*032 TDD Actos: 1-S00-73S-2964 www.dhfai.nh.gev

Juty2l.2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Counci}

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTtON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into contracts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed $76,080,959.00
for providing behavioral health residential treatment services for children, youth, and young adults
to quickly stabilize their behavioral health rraeds. with the option to renew for up to six (6)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through Juno 30. 2024. Funding
source is estimated as 51% General Funds and 49% Federal Funds dependent upon eligibility of
the client.

Vendor Name/

Vendor Code
Area Served SFY2022 SPY 2023 SFY2024

Total Contract

Amount

Chaso Home for
Childreo

Portsmouth. NH

(VC#TBO)

Portsmouth.

NH

1.659.472.00 1,549.292.00 1,549,292.00

4.758.056.00

Oevereux

Foundation

Rutland. MA

(VCdTBD)

In/Near

HiDsborough,
Msncheiter,

KeerM.

Concord, and
RodUnghem

County
2,320,185.00 2.320.185.00 2.320,185.00

6.960,555.00

Mount Proapoct
Academy

Ptymouth, NH

(VCdlBD)

Ptymouth, NH

15.725.398.00 /16.725.398.00 15.725.398.00

47.178,194.00

The Deportment of Health o/»d Human Servicee'Miuion is to join commuflixict and families
in providing opportunities for eilistnt to achieve heotih and independence.
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Hts Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Courtdl

Pa0e2ol4

Orion House

Newpoil. NH

(VC» TBO)

Newport, NH

433.685.00 433,685.00 433,685.00

1.301.055.00

1

Vermont

Permenancy
Initiative

(

Odord. NH

(VCpTBD)

In/Neer

Hiltebofough.
Manchester,
Kecne.

Concord, end
Roctdnghem.

■County 5,205.033.00 5.295.033.00 5,295.033.00

15,885,099.00 :

Total: $25,433,773.06 $25,323,593.00 $25,323:593.00 $76,080,959.00

Funds are available lr> the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Vear 2024. upon the availability arrd continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, If needed and
justified.

Because the Bridges System Is used to process and monitor payn^ents for these
agreements, no purchase order number is assigned. The New Hampshire First System will not
be used to encumber.these funds.

Depending on the eligibility of the dient. funding type is determined at the time of payment.
Possible account numbers to be utilized Indude the below:
05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL

'health, SYSTEM OF CARE, CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES.-100%
General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 636 - TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT - 50% Federal Funds and
50% General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 639 - TITLE IV'/VTANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT -100%
Federal Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 643 - STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT -100% General Funds
05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 646 - TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT - 50%.Federal Funds and 50%
General Funds
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His Exceflency, Governor Chrfstophec T. Sunimu
end the Honorebie Council

Page 3 of 4

05-95-47^70010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HNS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES.
MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT. CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS - 50% Federal
Funds and 50% General Funds

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide behavioral health services in reskjerttlal treatment
settings to children, youth and young adults who have behavioral health needs who have more
Intensive behavioral and mental health needs that cannot be met safely In the community without
intensive supports.

The Contractors will deliver evidence-based*and trauma-informed dinical services to
reduce reliance on emergency rooms, hospital settings, and residential treatment programs
outside of New Hampshire and New England. The Contractors will support the Department's
efforts to provide better long-term outcomes for youth ̂  providing senrices that will be short-term,
target treatment episodes to reduce re-entry into residential treatment settings, and enable the
State to n>eet the federal regulations regarding residential.programs as mandated in the Families
First Services Prevention Act.

The population served Indudes children and youth who display acute behaviors, medical
needs and mental health symptoms that require treatment in residential settings. These
Iffdividuals may have spedalty care needs. Induding intellectual and developmental disabilities,
ftre setting behaviors, problematic sexual behaviors, highly aggressive behaviors, past attempts
of suicide or significant self-harm. A qualified assessor will determine whether children and youth
receivir>Q services provided In the family home are eligible for the residential levels of care.
Approximately 400-500 Individuals will be senred annually through.Ju'ne 30,2024.

The Contradors will provide varying residential treatment levels of care ranging from
levels one through four, with four being the most intensive treatment. All Contradors will provide
services thai are family-driven, youth-guided, community-based, trauma-informed, and culturally
and linguistically competent in accordance with RSA 135-F. Depending on the level of care,
Contractors will provide services that may Iridude but are not limited to:

•  Residential/milieu senrices through direct care professionals:

•  Trauma-informed treatment models induding evidence based practices;

•  Mental health/dinical services provided by dinical staff;

•  Educational services, as approved by the Department of Education;

•  Independent livirtg/employment support;

•  Positive Youth Development/Recreational opportunities;

•  Safety and supervision; and

• Care coordination of ail needs including medical/dental and other needs.

The Department will monitor contracted services by collecting data on referrals, family and youth
engagement, quality of treatment, and transition and discharge; conducting site visits; and
reviewing dient files. The Department will also rhbnltor the following:

•  Rapid Acceptance of Referrals;

•  Redudion of Restraint and Seclusion;

•  Improvement of Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) scores;
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His Excellency. Governor Ovfstopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Ccund)

Page 4 of 4

•  Reduction of lengths of stay; and

•  Reduction of staff turnover and retention of quality staff.

The Department selected the contractorB through a competitive bid process using a
■Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 12/11/2020
through 3/8/2021. The Department receded forty-nine (49) responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

This requested action includes five (5) contracts In addition to the nine (9) contracts
presented to the Governor and Executive Council on July 14, 2021 (item #14). The Departmerrt
plans to submit the remaining two (2) contracts to a future Governor and Executve Council
meeting.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions for Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to six (6) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department's Resklential
Treatment Transformation will not be able to move fonvard, i^lch could:

•  Limit the amount of federal funding that the Departmerrt would have access to
through the Family First Prevention Services Act and IV-E;

•  Impact Implementation of required trauma-informed models and evidence-based
models for residential treatment programs;

•  Impact the quality of services available to children and youth;
•  Prevent in-state providers from accepting New Hampshire children and youth due

to limited funding, which may result in referrals to out-of-state providers, limit the
ability of youth to return home, and increase sennoe costs.

•  Impact the ability of the Department to Implement RSA 135-F and support access
to treatment for all youth.

Areas served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.658, FAIN #2101NHFGST CFDA #93.558, FAIN#
2101NHTANF. CFDA #93.659, FAIN #2101NHADPT. CFDA #93,778. FAIN #2105NH5ADM

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11^019)

Subject:_Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

Noiice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

general provisions

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Orion House, Incorporated

1.4 Contractor Address

139 Elm Street,
Ncwpon, NH 03773

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)863-4918

1.6 Account Number

See Exhibit C

1.7 Completion Date
t

June 30, 2024

1.8 Price Limitation

SI,301,055

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.l l Contractor Signature
OoewSlQJfd by;

1 P-UMlik Da,c:6/30/2021
1.12 Name and Title of Comractor Signatory

Danielle Paranto

Executive Director

1.13 State Agency Signature
D»«w8tan«d fty;

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
.  Katja Fox

oirector

1.15 Apprb^i oy inc'N.H. Depanmcni of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: Catherine Pines On: 7/15/2021

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&Cltem number; C&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date

„ d
itialc V

6/30/2021
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
E.xecutive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the.Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State shall'have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay (he
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary,' all obligations of (he State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymcnt.s hereunder, are
contingent upon (he availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the Slate be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, (he
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. .The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLLVNCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1- In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor .shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement (he<;e regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the Stale or United Slates
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
(he purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
nccc.ssary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the tcrrn of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The ContractingpfTicer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event ofany
dispute concerning the interpretation of this,Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"'):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occutrcnce of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) day.s from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and .suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, • treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both. ■

8.3. No foiluT'c by the State to eriforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed-a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
•be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State s discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at'ihe State's discretion, the Coritrnctor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to (he State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confideniiality of data shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter 91'A or other e.xisting law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the Stale.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
olTicers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATIOiN/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of (he State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control"- means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect oumcr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of (he State.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a Subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
(he Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringcmcnt,pr other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissroosof the
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Coniracior, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notuithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

\4. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor- shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

.14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
.14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy foiins and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceitificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrlificatc(s) of insurance
for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
Insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance aitd any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certi fies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("If^orkers'
Compcnsaiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compcnsaiion in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or liisor her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in.N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which'shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of- any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this-Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice'by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and. only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Govemor and E.xecutive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICe OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of aiiy party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superi'or Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confiici

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid In the
interpretation, cotutruction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth In the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of ,
this Agreement will remain in full force and efTect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of countcrpans, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Paged of 4
Contractor Initials

Dale
6/30/aoai



DocuSign Envelope ID; 6B115D21-304A-4CEA-8AF5-86EA092635CE

OocuSIgn Envelope ID; El633e91-A822-4COO-B69A-4721328A5C9A

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows: .

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to six (6) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2.'' Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3 Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be
performed and how corrective action shall be managed if the
subcontractor's performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall

. manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and
take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually
provide the Slate with a list of all subcontractors provided for under
this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate subcontractor
performance.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide high-quality tailored behavioral health treatment

services in residential treatment settings to quickly stabilize behaviors and
symptom's that children, youth and young adults herein referred to as
individuals v/ith behavioral health .needs experience. This targeted treatment

should enable them to return to a lower level of treatment or family-based

settings, while providing their caregivers with skills to manage their needs
safely in the community and enable individuals to'thrive at home, in education,
and in employment.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide Residential Treatment Services based on the

levels of care identified in Section 2 Levels of Care.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services with the purpose of:

1.3.1. Prioritizing short-term treatment with the goal of rapidly reunifying
children with their families and/or community support networks;

1.3.2. Widening access to treatment for all who -need it, enabling all
individuals to access services, regardless of their prior or current

involvement with child welfare or juvenile-justice systems;

1.3.3. Reducing reliance on hospital emergency departments and reducing
the need for psychiatric hospitalization;

1.3.4. Prioritizing family engagement and providing caregiver education
and engagement in the individual's care and recognizing that families
and caregivers are an integral part of the Treatment Team Meetings
/Child and Family Team

1.3.5. Providing services that are trauma-informed and implementing
evidence-based practices to ensure the highest quality of care and

the best possible outcomes for the individual;

1.3.6. Ensuring treatment is available along a continuum of care which
delivers tailored treatment plans for each child according to their

individual needs, and at a range of different levels of intensity;

1.3.7. Coordinating effectively and seamlessly with key .partner entities
including the Care Management Entities (CME), the conflict free
assessor (CAT), the child's school district, family and permanency
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT 8

teams, and DCYF staff to deliver treatment according to System of
Care principles:

1.3.8. Cultivating strong community networks' around the individual to
support long-term thriving in community settings after discharge;

1.3.9. Providing adequate funding for service delivery, recognizing the
importance of paying what it takes to deliver results for high-quality
programs;

1.3.10. Supporting and improving the transition of the individual from
■residential treatment into their home community, by utilizing
oversight and supportive transitional services through CME;

1.3.11. Early targeted treatment equipping the individual and their families
with the skills to successfully transition into adulthood by restoring,
rehabilitating, or maintaining their capacity to successfully function in
the community, and diminish their need for more intensive levels of
care; and

1.3.12. Providing programming that offers a home like atmosphere and
access to the community.

" 1.4. The Contractor shall accommodate referrals from all over State and should
prioritize referrals of NH individuals. ,

1.5. the Contractor shall provide residential treatment services for children, youth,
and young adults ages 5 to under age 21 Who have more intensive behavioral
and mental health needs that cannot be met safely in the community without
intensive supports. The Contractor may tailor their residential treatment
services to serve a target population within the required age range.

1.6. The Contractor shall implement New Hampshire's System of Care to serve
many different kinds of emotional, behavioral, and mental health needs of
children, including providing more intensive, focused, high-quality residential
treatment for those with the. most significant, acute behavioral health needs
when required.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure services are provided to all New Hampshire
eligible individuals defined in Section 1.6 and shall prioritize services first for
these individuals before accepting out of state individuals who are not identified
as New Hampshire residents, but who need this level of care.

1.8. The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment services:

[pr
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.8.1. .Shall be licensed and certified. Those that are not currently certified,
licensed and accredited, shall complete these requirements within 6

months from contract approval, unless otherwise agreed upon by the

Department.

1.8.2. Shall comply with all federal, and stale laws, regulations, and rules,
as follows, but are not limited to:

1.8.-2.1. RSA170-E:

'  1.8.2.2. RSA170-G:8;

1.8.2.3. RSA126-U:

1.8.2.4. RSA135-'F:
1'.8.2.5. , He-C4001;

1.8.2.6. He-C 6350; and

1.8.2.7. He-C 6420.

1.8.3. If .not located In New Hampshire, shall comply with all federal and
state laws, regulations and rules of their state. In addition.
Contractors shall follow:

1.8.3.1. RSA126-U;

1.8.3.2. He-C 6350; and

1.8.3.3.' He-C 6420.

1.8.4. Shall be accredited by the Joint Commission, Council on
Accreditation (COA), or Commission on Accreditation of
Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF) for Levels 1 (optional), 2, 3, and 4.

1.8.5. Shall ensure clinical and medical residential treatment services align
■  'with accreditation and the level of care requirements.

1.9. The Contractor-shall accommodate visits of the DCYF staff. Juvenile Probation

and Parole Officer (JPPO), or Child Protective Service Worker (CPSW).
1.10. In the event of a conflict between applicable federal and slate laws and rules

the Contractor shall follow the most prescriptive laws and rules.
1.11. Staffing, Training and Development

1.11.1. Talent Strategy

1.11.1.1. The Contractor shall develop. Implement, and maintain a

creative and effective talent strategy to recruit, train, and

retain staff, in order to ensure staff are committed and

trained in providing high quality treatment and outcomes
for individuals.

1.11.2. Staffing Ratios

1.11.2.1. The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive staffing

model corresponding to each Level of Care that me^s or

P/'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

exceeds accreditation standards and safety standards for

the needs of the individuals and staff to ensure the quality

of services is not compromised.
1.11.2.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department immediately.

by phone or email when any of the staff ratios fall below,
the recommended levels and provide a plan for
Department review that describes strategies to:
1.11.2.2.1. Ensure individual and staff safety is

maintained at all times.

'1.11.2.2.2. Ensure quality of services is not
compromised.

1.11.2.2.3. Recruit staff to fill those positons as quickly'
as possible to minimize how long the
positions are vacant.

1.11.3. Staff Training and Development
1.11 '.3.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement staff training

to on board and retain staff to meet all requirements of
applicable licensing, accreditation standards, and
effective treatment and indicate the limeframes for
training.

1.11.3.2.' The training program shall be a comprehensive schedule'
that support orientation, ongoing training, refreshers and
annual training.

1.11.3.3. The Contractor shall ensure all new staff complete
required training prior to being counted within the staff
supervision ratio

1.11.3.4. The-Contractor shall develop and implement staff training
that includes but is not limited to the:

1.11.3.4.1. Trauma model and other evidence-based
practices utilized in treatment and
incorporate applicable concepts and
strategies.

1.11.3.4.2. Clinical Evidence-Based Practices used to
deliver the residential treatment services.

1.11.3.5. De-escalation and restraint model which supports the
limited use of restrains or seclusion in accordance with
RSA 126-U and aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©.

— M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.11.3.6. The Contractor shall develop and implement training for

staff, individuals and their families on Family and Youth
Engagement, which includes but is not limited to:

1.11.3.6.1. Working with the Department's Division of
Children, Youth, and Families to provide

Better Together with birth parents for
clinicians, family workers or like roles and
other staff who would be working with

families within the first year of this
Agreement.

1.11.3.6.2. Working with the University of New
Hampshire Institute on Disability to provide

Renew Training for programs which focus on

youth fourteen (14) and older whose

permanency plan is Another Planned

Permanent Living Arrangement (APPLA) or
Independent Living programs.

1.11.3.7. The Contractor shall ensure all staff who .interact with the

individuals and their families are trained in the trauma

model regardless of whether or not they are responsible
for supervision, clinical, medical, or educational services..

1.12. Collaborative Care

1.12.1. The Contractor shall work in partnership with CME and CAT
Contractors to ensure individuals are referred, admitted, discharged,

and transitioned in a timely manner and in-alignment with the
individual's clinical needs.

1.12.2. The Contractor shall work with the Department's CME Contractors
regarding care coordination, discharge planning, and transitional
support to a more appropriate form of care or home and community
settings, and aftercare services.

1.12.3. The Contractor shall accept referrals based on the CAT Level of Care
Recommendations and work with the Department's CAT Contractor

to receive the individual's comprehensive assessment for treatment

to incorporate the CAl's identified short and long term individual
treatment goals.

1.12.4. The Contractor shall maintain clear communication with all providers,

the multidisciplinary team, and especially with the individual and their
child and family team. , OS
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1.13. Admissions, Discharges and Transitions
1.13.1. The Contractor shall accept the standardized referral form that is

developed by the Department.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall rapidly make acceptance decisions within
seven (7) calendar days from receiving the referrals and make
accommodations to admit the individual into the residential treatment

'  services.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall ask and provide the individual with an

opportunity to identify any gender nonconforming or identification as
lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender. or intersex, for the purposes of:

■  1.13.3.1. Making housing, bed, program, education, for clients with
the goal of keeping all clients safe and free from abuse;

1.13.3.2. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex clients
shall not be assigned in particular ■ room other

assignments solely on the basis of such identification
status;

1.13.3.2.1. Intake Coordinator shall consider

assignment of transgender or intersex •

clients on a case-by-case basis when
deciding where to assign the clientTor room

and other assignments as applicable", with

the goal of ensuring the client's health and
safety;

1.13.3.2.2. A transgender or intersex client's own views
with respect to the client's safety will be

given serious consideration;

1.13.4. . For individuals other than those outlined in Section 1.17.5., the
Contractor shall appropriately assign the individual a room based on

needs of the population, the culture of the milieu and the clinical
needs presented by the individual at the time of admission.

'  1.13.5. The Contractor may accept individuals into residential treatment
services in limited cases without the residential treatment level of

care determination if there is an emergency that is supported by the
Department.

1.13.5.1. If after the emergency admission is made and if it is
determined that the individual's level of care is different

from the residential treatment level of care, then the

Contractor will work with the child and family to

[dp
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support a transition to a more appropriate level of care
which aligns with the needs of the individual.

1.13.6. Discharge and Transition

1.13'.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure the .individual's needs are
satisfied, the individual does not affect other individuals
being served, and the individual is not discharged
because they demonstrate behaviors described in the
target population.

1.13.6.2. The Contractor shall provide active residential treatment
services and treatment for the individual from-the time of •

admission until the time the individual is able to transition

successfully to a more appropriate residential treatment
level of care or to their family and home and community.

1.13.6.3. In order to provide individuals with successful and
supported transitions, the Contractor shall work with the
individuals family, caregivers, community behavioral
health providers, DCYF, CME, peer support providers.

r  school district and the next treatment providers as follows

but is not limited to:

1.13.6.3.1. Inviting CME staff working with the individual
to treatment team'meetings.

1.13.6.3.2. Translating the treatment and skills
developed by the individual during their
course of treatment.

1.13.6.3.3. Sharing and transferring pertinent
information prior to discharge about

progress and improvements made by the
individual to ensure continuity of treatment in

the community

1.13.6.3.4. Inviting CME staff, child and family.team, to
participate in treatment planning and
discharge/transition planning.

1.13.6.4. The Contractor shall choose to discharge when a child is
in an acute psychiatric hospital for more than 7 days.

1.13.7. The Contractor shall complete a comprehensive discharge and
transition plan, which includes a strong focus on family and caregiver
education and involvement in the individual's aftercare in order to

prioritize episodic lengths of stay and for the purpose the

[p?
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individual's successful transition from residential treatment to home,

school, and community as soon as possible.

1.13.8. The Contractor shall start discharge and transition planning on the
individual's day of admission by coordinating planning with the

individuals, their families and community-based service providers.

1.13.9. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's treatment plan,includes

. discharge plans and coordination of services to ensure appropriate.

reasonable and safe discharge plans for the continued treatrhent of

the individual's condition and continued care with the individual, their

family, school and community upon discharge.

1.13.10. • The Contractor shall ensure families and caregivers are an integral

part of the Treatment Team and Child, Family and Permanency

Team, and closely collaborate with the referent and CME to build

attainable transition plans into adulthood that support the individual

in their next steps in life.

1.13.11. The Contractor shall hold a bed and not eject or discharge an

individual in the event of a temporary psychiatric hospitalization or

some other event that would require the child to be away from the
program for no more than seven (7) calendar days. The Contractor

shall accept the individual back into the program within seven (7)

calendar days to resume their course of treatment. The Contractor

may hold the bed longer lharl seven (7) calendar days if approved by
DHHS. Unless approved after seven (7) bed hold days, the vendor

shall discharge the child from the program.

1.13.12. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other key

partners to develop discharge policies and practices that include no
reject from being admitted to and no eject from residential treatment.

Unplanned discharges from residential treatment will only be allowed

by the Department In extreme circumstances of violence, acute

psychiatric care needs, arrests and acute medical care needs.

This does not prevent a Contractor, referral or Child and Family team

from a mutual decision of a planned transition to an alternative

setting..

1.13.13. The Contractor shall ensure in all cases of termination of services

the right to appeal and the appeal process pursuant to He-C 200 are

explained to the client.

1.13.14. The Contractor may deny admission to a program if any of
the following circumstances are applicable: ^"—09
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1.13.14.1. There are no openings al the time of referral;

1.13.14.2. The age of the referred child is greatly different than the
current milieu;

1.13.14.3. There are staffing concerns at the program that would
require a hold on new admissions;

1.13.14.4. There are specialty Care needs revealed during their
course of treatment;

1.13.14.5. there were referrals made to specialty care programming
when specialty care services were not a match;

1.13.14.6. The individual's needs fail well outside the program

model;

1.13.15. The Contractor may request a discharge for individuals from a
residential treatment program if any of the following circumstances
are applicable:

1.13.15.1. New information has indicated that the child requires
specialty care that the current program does not offer;

1.13.15.2. The Child has increased aggression that has resulted in
excessive property damage or physical harm to staff and
self and is not improving over time, indicating a higher
level of care is needed: and

1.13.15.3. The child's level of mental health symptoms have
exceeded the level of care being provided at the program
and an appropriate transition plan has been determined.

1.13.16. Contractor shall deliver treatment and provide services to accepted
,  referrals until the child's level of need is reduced and their treatment

goals have been met.

1.13.17. The Department will monitor denials, admissions, and discharges as
part of continuous quality assurance and program outcomes and
reserves the right to review and approve of deny denials.

1.14. Restraint and Seclusion Practices

1.14.1. The Contractor shall comply with RSA 126-U.

1.14.2. The Contractor shall utilize a de-escalation and restraint training
which supports the limited use of restraint or seclusion in RSA 126-
U and aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©.

' 1.14.3. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and methods
to reduce and eliminate use. of restraint and seclusion practices by
incorporating the Six Core Strategies for Reducing Seclusion and

-OS
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Restraint Use ©."for Department review, including but not limited to
the following:

1.14.3.1. Therapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI),
.14.3.2. Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI).

.14.3:3. Professional Crisis Management (PCM),

.14.3.4. Mandt,

.14.3.5. Handle with Care, .or

1.14.3.6. Another model approved by the Department

1.14.4. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other partners
towards a zero restraint practice.

1.14.5. The Contractor shall develop restraint and seclusion policies, and
develop a method of review that will support the reduction and
elimination of restraint and seclusion.

1.15. Children's System of Care Values
1.15.1. The Contractor shall provide services that align with the following

, System of Care values:
1.15.1.1. Youth Voice and Engagement

1.15.1.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure residential
treatment services and treatrhent are youth
driven as required by RSA 135-F by:

1.15.1.1.1.1.; Having -the individual
determine the types and mix of
sen/ices and supports needed
using their strengths and
needs.

1.15.1.1.1.2. Having the individual make
decisions about treatment

■priorities and goals to be
included, in the treatment
plans.

1.15.1.1.1.3. Using Frequent clear and
concise communication free of
jargon that promotes respect
and that individuals feel valued
and heard.

1.15.1.1.1.4. Having an environment that is
welcoming, comforting and
comfortable for all age^„
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1.15.1.1.2. The Contractor shall incorporate a youth

voice into program design and delivery,
practice, and clinical services which include
providing youth.opportunities such as:
1.15.1.1 .i2.1. .Facilitating their own treatment

.  team meetings to the degree

that would .be both productive

and clinically appropriate.

1.15.1.1.2.2. Voicing their concerns or

grievances about program
policies and procedures, and
participating in any reform

efforts.

1.15.1.1.2.3. Running leadership groups or-
programs such as student

council or youth advisory

boards.

1.15.1.1.2.4. Developing a youth peer
mentor model.

1.15.1.2. Family Voice and Engagerhent
" 1.15.1.2.1. The Contractor shall, ensure residential

treatment services and treatment are family

driven as required by RSA 135-F in order to
improve treatment outcomes by:
1.15.1.2.1.1. Having the family determine

the types and mix of services
'  and supports needed using the

individual's strengths and

■  needs. •

1.15.1.2.1.2. Haying the family in decision
making about treatment

priorities and. goals to be
included iri the individual's

treatment plans.

1.15.1.2.1.3. Using frequent clear and
concise communication free of

jargon that promotes respect

— OS
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and parents feels valued and
heard.

1.15.1.2.1.4. Having an environment that is

welcoming, and has space for
families that is natural, inviting,

and comforting.

1.15.1.2.2. The Contractor's engagement with the family
shall include but not be limited to:

1.15.1.2.2.1. Encouraging families to be full
participants in their children's
ongoing care . including
participation in clinical
appointments.

1.15.1.2.2.2. Welcoming natural support
networks and professionals as

a support to the family and
youth.

1.15.1.2.2.3. Having flexible visitation
policies that promote face-to-
face contact, supported

visitation as well as technology

that prioritizes the individual's
connections.

1.15.1.2.2.4. Encouraging parents and
family to remain responsible
for the care of their children

including transportation when

it is necessary, feasible, and
appropriate.

1.16. Cultural and Linguistic Diversity
1.16.1. The Contractor shall deliver services that meet the cultural and

linguistic needs of the diverse populations by:
1.16:1.1. Having services reflect the cultural, racial and ethnical

and linguistic needs of the population.
1.16.1.2. Understanding the family's and their community's values

and cultures.

OS
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1.16.1.3. Attempting to hire individuals to provide services who are
representative and knowledgeable of these values and
cultures.

1.16.2. The'Contractor shall r^ularly collect and review Race. Ethnicity and
Language (REAL) and Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity or
Expression (SOGIE) data to identify health disparities and make
necessary system changes In partnership with individuals and
families to address these health disparities as necessary.

1.16.3. The Contractor's staff shall attend Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Services (CLAS) training provided by the Department.

1.16.4. The Contractor shall complete an organizational assessment to
identify areas for improvement.

T16.5. The Contractor shall make CLAS plans available to the Department
.for review to ensure the standards are being met and" to ensure

continuous improvement.

1.16.6. The Contractor's staff shall have ongoing participation in facilitated
conversations on culture and diversity to explore their own values,
beliefs and traditions, and the implications they have on their work.

1.17. Multidisciplinary Approach
1.17.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment in a cohesive

manner to meet the needs'of the individual and family by using a
multidisciplinary team approach, which includes team members from

• disciplines at the program, such as but not limited to:
1.17.1.1. Residential

1.17.1.2. Education

1.17.1.3. Clinical Medical

1.17.2. The Contractor's multidisciplinary team at the program must prioritize
communication with the child and family and the team members
external to the residential treatment program.

1.17.3. The Contractor shall maintain clear communication with all team
members across all disciplines.

1.18. Treatment Settings

1.18.1. The Contractor shall provide treatment settings that are:
1.18.1.1. Nurturing.

1.18.1.2. Family-friendly.

1.18.1.3. Provide for normalcy.

1.18.1.4. Approximate community-based settings in as many ways
as possible. , DS

RFP-2021-OBH-12-RESID-08 Orion House. Incorporated Contractor Initials ̂  —
6/30/2021

0,10 Page 13 Of 40 Oele,



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B115D21-304A-4CEA-8AF5-86EA092635CE

DocuSign Envelope ID: E1633691-A822-4C0D-B69A-4721328A5C9A

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

1.18.1.5. Safe.

1.18.1.6. Predictable and consistent across education, residential

and clinical services.

1.18.2. The Contractor shall provide services at the location(s) approved by
the Department unless a plan for an alternative location and
transition plan has been approved.

1.19. Targeted and Active Treatment
1.19.1. The Contractor shall prioritize treatment goals based on the CAT, the

Child and Family team, and the expertise of the clinical program.
1.19.2. The Contractor's residential treatment multidisciplinary team and the

-  Child and Family Team shall complete a treatment plan for each
individual following the completion of a psychosocial assessment,
which shall include:

1.19.2.1. Goals and objectives that are based on the CAT report, -,
recommended by .the multidisciplinary team, and child
and family team and that are most important for the
individual to achieve successful discharge and transition

to their family, horrie and community:
1.19.2.2. Actionable'needs identified in the CAT final report and .

CANS which shall be addressed upon admission and
prioritized throughout the course of treatment; and"

1.19.2.3. Integrated program of the.rapies, activities, and
experiences designed to meet'the treatment goals.

1.19.3. The Contractor shall wprk in partnership with the child's sending and
receiving (if applicable) school district to assure the individual's
education needs are met and there are no gaps in educational
services

1.19.4. As determined by the treatment plan, the Contractor shall provide
targeted and active treatment seven (7) days per week. Treatment
may include as follows but'is not limited to:
1.19.4.1. Twenty-four (24) services,

1.19.4.2. Direct care, supervision, positive behavior management,
and supportive services for daily living and .safely,

1.19.4.3. Family engagement,

1.19.4.4. Consultation with other professionals, including case
managers, primary care professionals, community-based
mental health providers, school staff, or other support
planners as often as needed, —m
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1.19.4.5. Coordination of education services, and/or

1.19.4.6. Additional services based on the Level of Care identified

and the program model

1.19.5. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services which
include consideration for:

1.19.5.1. A carefully designed residential environment of care that-
promotes trauma informed care and youth driven
services.

■  1.19.5.2. " The age and developmental level of the population.
1.19.5.3. Young adults who are empowered to safely participate in

treatment decisions.

1.19.5.4. Specific needs of DCYF-involved children, noting the
trauma caused by neglect, abuse and removal, and/or
involvement with the juvenile justice system.

1.20. Trauma Informed Care

1.20.1. The Contractor shall understand, recognize, and appropriately
'respond to trauma in administering treatment and services by
utilizing the model identified in Section 2 to provide trauma informed
care that supports staff and caregivers with the skills to aid and
engage individuals

1.20.2. ■ The contractor's trauma model must adhere to the Department's
Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 6 key principles of
a trauma informed approach:
1.20.2.1. Safety

1.20.2.2. Trustworthiness and Transparency

1.20.2.3. Peer Support

1.20.2.4. Collaboration and Mutuality

1.20.2.5. Empowerment, Voice and Choice
1.20.2.6. Cultural, Historical, and Gender Issues

1.20.3. The Contractor shall embed and sustain trauma awareness,
knowledge and skills into the Contractor's organizational culture,
practices and policies.

1.20.4. The Contractor shall provide a trauma informed model that
demonstrates sensitivity to individuals who's needs prevent them
from living with their families during the course of treatment.

1.20.5. The Contractor shall use this model and seek approval from the
Department is using a different model.

.  : .d
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1.20.6. The contractor shall submit documentation upon request of the
Department that demonstrates the implementation of the trauma
model.

1.21. Evidence Based Practices

1.21.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receive the highest quality of
care and the best possible treatment outcomes by using evidence-
based practices to treat and manage the individual's mental health
needs, which may include, but not limited to:

1.21.1.1. Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy,
1.21.1.2. Cognitive Behavior Therapy

1.21.1.3. Dialectic Behavior Therapy

1.21.1.4. Motivational Interviewing

1..21.2. The Contractor shall ensure clinical practices are drawn from
systematic, empirical studies that draw on observation or experiment
and rigorous data analyses that are adequate to rest stated
hypotheses justify conclusions, and/or randomized control trials.

1.21.3. The Contractor shall explore and iniplement practices that are
adaptive, flexible, and address the needs of the population in a
targeted way.

1.21.4. Contractors shall provide notice to the Department when they are
Implementing a new Evidence Based Practice,

1.22. Clinical and Medical Standards

1.22.1. The Contractor shall provide clinical and medical services, which
align with accreditation and the level of care requirements.

1.22.2. The Contractor shall employ clinical professionals that ensure
effective treatment outcomes.

1.22.3. The Contractor, shall provide clinical treatment services in a
frequency to quickly stabilize the individual's symptoms and to meet
each individual's clinical needs.

1.22.4. The Contractor shall explore new or promising clinical and
evidenced-based models over time.

1.22.5. The Contractor shall have personnel trained in CANS and those
personnel shall conduct the follow-up CANS when other appropriate
entities such as the CME have not conducted the CANS.

1.22.6. The contractor shall assure that treatment is clear across the
program and clear to the multidisciplinary team.
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1.23. Aftercare

1.23.1. The Contractor shall provide aftercare for Levels 2, 3, and 4 Unless
that program qualifies as CBAT or ICBAT.

1.23.2. The Contractor shall coordinate and work with the Department's CME
Contractors to provide six (6) months of aftercare services for an
individual who is being discharged from the residential treatment and
transitioned to their home and community. The Contractor shall work
with the CME and provide aftercare services which may include but

are not limited to the following activities:
1.23.2.1. Consultation with both the family, service providers and

• CME.

1.23.2.2. Attendance at any child and family team meetings which
can be in person or virtually.

1.23.2.3. Phone calls with the family as needed.

1.23.3. The Contractor shall make referrals to the Department's CME
Contractors for any individual who is not involved in DCYF and who is
being discharged from the residential treatment and transitioned their
home and community. The Contractor shall work with the
Department's CME Contractor of other aftercare services providing
aftercare services with the goal of reducing recidivism and reentry into
the residential treatment and other levels of residential treatment.

1.24. Medication Procedures

1.24.1. The Contractor shall implement medication procedures in accordance
with applicable federal laws, and rules.

1.25. Policies and Procedures

1.25.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement written policies and
procedures governing all aspects of its operation and services
provided including but not limited to: •

1.25.1.1. Those required in 1.8.2 and 1.8.3.

1.25.1.2. Written policies and procedures to Include a Code of
Ethics, which addresses the Contractor and all staff, as
well as a mechanism for reporting unethical conduct;

1.25.1.3. A written policy and procedures mandating zero tolerance
toward all forms of sexual abuse and sexual harassment

and outlining the Contractor's approach to preventing,
detecting, and responding to such conduct;

1.25.1.4. A staffing plan that provides fpr adequate levels of staffing
to protect residents against sexual abuse;

(¥
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1.25.1.5. A written policy ensuring an administrative or criminal
' investigation is completed for all allegations of sexual
abuse and sexual harassment;

1.25.1.6. Progressive staff discipline, leading to administrative
discharge;

•1.25.1.7. Reporting and appealing staff grievances;

1.25.1.8. Reporting employee injuries

1.25; 1.9. Client rights, grievance and appeals policies and

procedures;

1.25.1.10. Policies and procedure if the program conducts urine
specimen collection., as applicable, that;'

1.25.1.10.1. Ensures that the collection is conducted in a

manner which preserves client privacy as

much as possible and is accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rules; and

■ 1.25.1.10.2. Policies and procedures intended to

minimize falsification, including, but not

/  limited to:

1.25.1.10.2.1. Temperature testing; and

1.25.1.10.2.2. Observations by same-sex

staff members.

1.25.1.11. Procedures for the protection of individual's records that
govern use of records, storage, removal, conditions for
release of infomiation and compliance with 42 CFR, Part
2 and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Act(HIPAA);and

1.25.1.12. Procedures related to quality assurance and quality
improvement.

1.25.2. The Contractor shall have policies and procedures to implement a
comprehensive client record system, in either paper or electronic fonn,
or both, that communicates information within the client record of each

client served in a manner that is:

1.25.2.1. Organized
1.25.2.2. Easy to read and understand;

1.25.2.3. Complete, containing all the parts; and

1.25.2.4. Up-to-date.
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1.25.3. The Contractor shall have policies' and procedures regarding
collections of client fees, collections from private or public insurance,
and collections from other payers responsible for the client's finances.

1.25.4. The Contractor shall develop, define and implement processes and'
procedures for denial of service.

1.25.5. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing the following to any
client or the referral who is denied services:

1.25.5.1. Informing the client of the reason for denial;
1.25.5.2. Assisting the client in identifying or accessing appropriate

available treatment;

1.25.5.3. Maintaining a detailed record of the information or
assistance provided.

1.25.6. The Contractor shall establish policies and procedures establishing,
maintaining, and storing, in a secure and confidential manner, current
personnel files for staff, contracted staff, volunteers or student interns.
The Contractor shall "ensure personnel files are maintained in
accordance with personnel requirements.

1.26. Residential Treatment Services Start up and Implementation for Tier 3
and Tier 4 Programs

1.26.1. The Contractor shall participate in a kick-off meeting with the
Department within ten (30) calendar days of this Agreement's Effective
Date to review contract timelines, scope, and deliverables.

1.26.2. The Contractor shall participate in birweekly (every other week)
telephone calls with the Department to review the status of the
development and implementation for the residential .treatment, for at
least the first six (6) months of the Agreement. The Contractor shall:
1.26.2.1. Provide a written bi-weekly progress report in advance of

the telephone call that summarizes:
1.26.2.1.1. Key work performed;
1.26.2.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues

and problems and provides a solution or
mitigation strategy for each.

1.26.2.1.3. ' Scheduled work for the upcoming week.

1.26.2.2. Provide a report summarizing the results of the status
telephone call.

1.26.3. The Contractor shall participate in implementation and operational site
visits and review of individual's files on a schedule provided by the

(i
iliale ̂  ■RFP.2021-OBH-12-RESID-08 Often House. Incorportted ' Conlraclof Wtals

6/30/2021

0.1 Q Page 19 of 40 Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B115D21-304A-4CEA-8AF5-86EA092635CE

OocuSign Envelope ID: El63369l*A822-4C0D*869A-472132eA5CdA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

Department. AH Agreement deliverables, programs, and activities shall

be subject to review during this time. The Contractor shall;

1.26.3.1. Ensure the Departrtient has access sufficient for

monitoring of Agreement compliance requirements.

1.26.3.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access that

includes but is not limited to:

1.26.3.2.1. Data.

1.26.3.2.2. Financial records.

1.26.3.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work

sites/locations/work spaces and associated

facilities.

1.26.3.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work

sites/locations/work spaces and .associated

facilities.

1.26.3.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor
principals and staff.

1.26.3.2.6. Individual flies.

2. Residential Treatment Levels of Care

2.1. 'The Contractor shall provide the residential treatment level(s) of care as

defined in this Section 2.

2.2. The Contractor shall have or obtain certification for residential treatment

levels of care by the Department within six (6) months of the Agreement's

effective date and maintain said certification.and re-apply for certification

annually, in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6350
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential Treatment Programs.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide up to the number of beds at the identified
location for each of the residential treatment levels of care outlined in the

table in Section 2.3.2.

2.3.1. In the event that the Contractor changes their physical location where

the residential treatment services are provided, the Contractor shall

notify the Department within 30 days prior to the move and provide a
transition plan.

-OS
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2.3.2 Resi< ential Treatment Levels of Care and Number of Contracted Beds

Level of Care

Vendors

Name of the
Program

Location:

City/Town and
State

Maximum Number

of Contracted Beds Shared Beds

ReRerved

Level of Care 1 '

Supportive. Community
Level Treatment:
Independent Living.
Supervised Livinq (IB)

Orion House Newport, NH 8 8 Beds shared

with Level 2

Level of Care 2,

Intermediate Treatment

Orion House Newport. NH . 8 8 Beds shared
with Level IB

Reserved

Reserved ^

Reserved

Reserved :—

Reserved - --

Reserved

2.4. Level of Care 1 Supportive, Community Level Treatment: Independent
Living, Supervised Living (18)

2.4.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services Level of
Care 1, Supportive Community Level of Treatment (IB),
Independent Living, supervised living in a community based out of
home treatment setting designed for individuals who manifest mild
behavioral and emotional challenges and who are capable of
engaging in. community-based activities to:

2.4.2. The goal of this setting is to provide the maximum amount , of
community integration and Independent Living to an individual with
minimal supports The Contractor shall provide services to the youths
or young adults at this level of care for approximately nine (9) to
twelve (12) months or until transition to adulthood that includes, but
not limited to:

- - 2.4.2.1. Minimal supports in the community
2.4.2.2. Case Management

2.4.2.3. Supervision

2.4.2.4. Vocational Training

2.4.2.5. Medication Monitoring, as clinically indicated
2.4.2.6. Crisis Intervention
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2.4.3. Staffing

2.4.3.1. The Contractor shall comply with the staffing requirements

in New Hampshire Administrative Rule Part He-C 6350

Certification for Payment Standards for Residential

Treatment Programs and Part He-C 6420 Medicaid
Covered Services.

2.4.3.2. Unless otherwise approved by a waiver by the Department

for the staffing ratios shown in Section 3, the Contractor

shall maintain the required staffing ratios as follows:
2.4.3.2.1. Awake Hours 1:6 resident to staff ratio.

2.4.3.2.2. Awake Overnight: 1:12 for youth 16 or older:
for 18 and older, the Contractor may either
have an asleep or awake overnight, which
may be supplemented with technology from
another unit on property.

2.4.3.2.3. Clinical: 1:10 when clinical services are

delivered onsite.

.  2.4.3.2.4. Family Worker: 1:8, who will collaborate with
Care Management Entity..

2.4.3.2.5. Medical Care: -. Nursing-available for
consultation. If Qualified Residential

Treatment Program (GRIP) Clinical and
Nursing shall be available 24/7, based on
client needs.

2.4.4. Supported Visits

2.4.4.1. Supported visitation are not required of this program level.

2.4.4.2. The Contractor may provide facilitated face-to-face
supported visitation to the individual and their family at the
Contractor's setting.

2.4.4.3. The Contractor may provide family visits in appropriate
space(s), which is safe, feels welcoming, inviting, and
natural, and creates a place of comfort and connectedness

for all ages toeing served in the setting.

2.4.5. Educational Services

2.4.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure the individual is connected to

the most appropriate educational services or transitional
services as determined by their treatment team and
sending school district, when applicable.

w
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2.4.5.2. The Contractor shall connected the individual to the

individual's local community school or to the individual's

school in their sending district when appropriate. ,

2.4.5.3. The Contractor shall connect the individual to higher

education for those who have graduated high school or

supporting Individuals pursing higher education or
Independent living with but not limited to:

2.4.5.3.1. Transitional Services.

2.4.5.3.2. Vocational Services.

2.4.5.3.3. Formal Education.

"2.4.5.3.4. Training Programs.
2.4.5.3.5. Independent Living Skills.

2.4.6. Transportation

2.4.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals have

transportation services to and from * services and

appointments for the following:

2.4.6.1.1. Court Hearings.
2.4.6.1.2. Medical/dental/behavioral (not provided by the

Department's contracted Medicaid Managed
Care organization (MCO) or if not appropriate

. to be provided by the MCO).
2.4.6.1.3. School transportation (for what js not provided

by an individual education plan (lEP)).
2.4.6.1.4. Recreation (clubs, sports, work).

2.4.6.2. the Contractor shall coordinate or provide such
transportation as follows, including but not limited to:

2.4.6.2.1. Working with parents or guardians to have the
parent or "guardian provide transportation for
their child, youth or young adult, when it is safe
and appropriate for a parent or guardian to
provide such transportation.

2.4.6.2.2. Working with any of- the Department's
applicable Medicaid Managed "Care
Contractors for transportation .to Medicaid
appointments.

2.4.6.2.3. Purchasing public transportation passes.
2.4.6.2.4. Paying for cab fare.
2.4.6.2.5. Use of Contractor-owned vehicle's in

accordance with Section 2.3.3 below.

2.4.6.3. The Contractor shall encourage the individual to utilize
parent/caregiver and/or public transit when available in
order to meet the transportation expectations in 2 ̂̂ ^1.
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2.4.6.4. In the event' the Contractor uses a Contractor-owned

vehicle(s), the Contractor shall:
2.4.6.4.1. Comply with all applicable Federal and State

Department of Transportation and Department
of Safety regulations.

2.4.6.4.2. Ensure that all vehicles are registered
pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500 and inspected in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule Saf-

C 3200, and are in good working order.
2.4.6.4.3. Ensure all drivers are licensed in accordance

with New Hampshire Administrative Rules,
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing, and Saf-C 1800
Commercial drivers licensing, as applicable.

2.4.6.4.4. Ensure vehicle insurance coverage shall be in
amounts that are in keeping with industry
standards and. that are. acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum
amounts of which shall be not less than

$500,000 for automobile liability to include
bodily injury and property damage to one
person for any one accident, and $750,000,
for bodily injury and property darriage to two or
more persons for any one accident, including
coverage for all owned, hired, or non-owned
vehicles, as applicable,

2.5. Level of Care 2, Intermediate Treatment

2.5.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services Level of
Care 2, Intermediate Treatment designed for individuals who have

been adjudicated, abused or neglected, delinquent and/or in need of
behavioral health services with the goal of providing a combination

■  of:

2.5.1.1. Residential treatment and community based services
based on the individual's unique needs.

2.5.1.2. Professionals, ohside and access to professionals in the

community to coordinate the provisions of the treatment
plan.

2.5.2. The Contractor shall provide services to children, youths and young

adults at this level of care twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7)

days a week, in a structured, therapeutic milieu environment that
includes but is not limited to:

5
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2.5.2.1. Safe environment

2.5.2.2. Supervision dependent on the need of the Individual and

program model.

2.5.2.3. Community Supports
2.5.2.4. Access to public school education or alternative approved

educational setting

2.5.2.5. Specialized social services

2.5.2.6. Behavior management,

2.5.2.7. Recreation

2.5.2.8. Ciinical Services

2.5.2.9. Family Services

2.5.2.10. Vocational Training

2.5.2.11. Medication Monitoring, asdinically indicated

2.5.2.12. Crisis Intervention

2.5.3. Staffing

2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall comply with the staffing requirements
in New Hampshire Administrative Rule Part He-C 6350
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential

Treatment Programs and Part He-C 6420 Medicaid
Covered Services.

2.5.3.2. Unless otherwise approved by a waiver by the Departrhent

for the staffing ratios shown"Tn Section 3, the Contractor
shall maintain the required staffing ratios as follows:

2.5.3.2.1. Direct Care Staff/Milieu

2.5.3.2.1.1. Milieu; Day staff ratio is 1:4, and
more intensive ratios are

allowable. based on program
population or program needs.

2.5.3.2.1.2. Awake overnight: 1:8' and a
minimum of two staff available

for programs and position may
float on campus or within
buildings.

2.5.3.2.1.3. Clinical Services: Access 24/7.
1:10 when delivered onsiteand

some clinical services may be
provided off site for Individual
and family therapy with
community providers.

2.5.3.2.1.4. Family .Worker: Case Mag^ger
1:8
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2.5.3.2.1.5. A lower ratio must be used if the

clinician is fulfilling multiple
roles i.e. family worker as well
as primary clinician.

2.5.3.2.1.6. Have resources to allow for all
children to access clinical within
the program but also allow for
access to community if
appropriate.

2.5.3.2.2. Medical Care

2.5.3.2.2.1. Clinical and Nursing: available
24/7 and based on client needs.

2.5.3.2.2.2. Ensure access to

prescriber/psychiatric services,
psychiatry either when needed
through Community of if
needed through

.  "Staffing/contracting.
2.5.4. Supported Visits

2.5.4..1. The Contractor may provide facilitated face-to-face
supported visitation to the individual and their family at the
Contractor's residential treatment setting.,

■ 2.5.4.2. The Contractor may . provide supported visits in
appropriate space(s), which is safe, feels welcoming,
inviting, and natural, and creates a place of comfort and
connectedness for all ages being served in the residential
treatment setting.

2.5.5. Educational Services

2.5.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure the,individual is connected to

the most appropriate educational, services or transitional
• sen/ices as determined by their treatment team and
sending school district, when applicable.

2.5.5.2. The Contractor shall connect the individual to the
individual's local community school or to the individual's
school in their sending district when appropriate.

2.5.5.3. The Contractor may provide onsite or subcontract with
Department approval a nonpublic and special educational
program and/or an approved online educational curriculum
approved by the State of New Hampshire Department of
Education ( "
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2.5.5.4. The Contractor shall connect the individual to higher
education for .those who have graduated high school or

supporting individuals pursing higher education or

independent living with the following but not limited to:

2.5.5.4.1. Transitional Services.

2.5.5.4.2. Vocational Services.

2.5.5.4.3. Formal Education.

■  2.5.5.4.4. Training Programs.
2.5.5.4.5. Independent Living Skills.

2.5.5.5. The Contractor shall ensure the individual continues

relationships with other important individuals and peers,

and remains connected to their home, community and

school.

2.5.5.6. The Contractor shall work with the individual's sending

school and receiving district to ensure their educational ■

needs are met. When doing so, the Contractor shall obtain

Release of Information signed by the individual, or,

individual's parent or guardian.

2.5.5.7. The Contractor shall retain client stud.ent records in

accordance with New Hampshire regulations.

2.5.5.8. Upon client discharge from residential treatmerit services,

the Contractor shall provide copies of the individual's
records of education and progress to the individual's

sending school.

2.5.6. Transportation

2.5.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals have

transportation services to and from services and

appointments for the following:

2.5.6.1.1. Court Hearings.
2.5.6.1.2. Medical/dental/behavioral (not provided by the

Department's contracted Medicaid Managed
Care organization (MOO) or if not appropriate
to be provided by the MCO).

2.5.6.1.3. School transportation (for what is not provided
by an individual education plan (lEP)).

2.5.6.1.4. ■ Recreation (clubs, sports, work).
2.5.6.2. The Contractor shall coordinate or provide such

transportation as follows, including but not limited to:

2.5.6.2.1. Working with parents or guardians to have the
parent or guardian provide transportatioa for
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their child, youth or young adult, when it is safe
and appropriate for a parent or guardian to
provide such transportation.

2.5.6.2.2. Working with any of the Department's
applicable Medicaid Managed Care
Contractors for transportation to Medicaid
appoiritments.

2.5.6.2.3. Use . of Contractor-owned vehicles in
accordance with Section 2.3.3 below.

2.5.6.3.- In the event the Contractor uses a Contractor-owned
vehicle(s). the Contractor shall:
2.5.6.3.1. Comply with all applicable Federal and State

Department of Transportation and Department
of Safety regulations.

2.5.6.3.2. Ensure that all vehicles are registered
pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500 and inspected in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule Saf-
C 3200, and are in good working order.

2.5.6.3.3. Ensure all drivers are licensed in accordance
with New Hampshire"Administrative Rules, -
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing. and Saf-C 1800
Commercial drivers licensing, as applicable..

2.5.6.3.4. Ensure vehicle insurance coverage shall be in
amounts that are in keeping with industry
standards and that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum
amounts of which shall be not less than
$500,000 for automobile liability to include
bodily injury and property damage to one
person for any one accident, and $750,000,
for bodily injury and property damage to two or
more persons for any one accident, including
coverage for all owned, hired, or non-owned
vehicles, as applicable.

3. Specific Residential Treatment Program Requirements

3:1. The Contractor, shall provide the following staffing model(s) and/or
specialty services for each of their defined levels of care.

3.1.1. Should the Contractor have variations in their personnel and/or in their
specialty care, if any, in this Section 3, the Contractor shall submit a
plan in writing to the Department to come into compliance or an
alternative plan for Department for approval to meet the ihtenH?f the
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positions, which were negotiated. The Department will provide approval
in writing.

3.2. Reserved

3.3. Level of Care 1 Supportive, Community Level Treatment: Independent
Living, Supervised Living (1B)

'  \

3.3.1. Orion House Independent Living
13.1.1. The Contractor shall maintain the following staffing Ratios for

this level of care as outlined in the table below:

Title Position

Section 2

Staffing
Requirements

Ratio

Department
Approved
Variation

Direct Care 1st shift Milieu 1:6 1:8

Direct Care 2nd shift Milieu 1:6 1:8

Direct Care Overnight Awake overnight;

1:12 for youth 16
or older; for 18

and older may

either asleep or

awake overnight

1:8

Clinical Ratio 1:10 1:16

Family Worker 1:8 1:16

Family Therapist Not required Not allocated

Transportation Not Required Not allocated

Case Manager Not required 1:8

Board certified behavioral analyst
(BCBA)

Not required
Not allocated

Nursing Staff If ,QRTP Clinical -

and Nursing 24/7
available, based

on client

needs

Not allocated

Psychiatrist Not required Not allocated

Psychologist Not required Not allocated

Medical Doctor, APRN Not required Not allocated

* Not required

Indicates that a ,  M
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specific
position/personnel

was not required

or as a ratio

3.4. Level of Care 2, Intermediate Treatment

3.4.1. Orion House Intermediate Treatment

3.4.1.1. The Contractor shall maintain the following staffing Ratios for

this level of care as outlined in the table below:

Title Position

Section 2

Staffing
Requirements

Ratio

Department
Approved
Variation

Direct Care 1st shift Milieu 1:4 1:4

Direct Care 2nd shift Milieu 1:4 1:4

Direct Care Overnight Awake overnight:

1:8; minimum

2 staff available

for programs

1:8

Clinical Ratio 1:10 1:16

Family Worker . 1:8 1:16

Family Therapist Not required Not allocated

Transportation Not Required Not allocated

Case Manager See Family Worker 1:8

Board certified behavioral analyst
(BCBA)

Not required

Nursing Staff Medical Care:

Clinical and

Nursing

24/7dvdilable.

based on client

needs

Not allocated

.Psychiatrist Not required Not allocated

Psychologist Not required Not allocated

Medical Doctor. APRN Not required Not allocated

Other * Not required

indicates that a

specific ' f
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position/personnel

was not required

or as a ratio i

3.5. Reserved

3.6. Reserved

3.7. Reserved

3.8. Reserved

3.9. Reserved

3.10. Reserved

Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit 1. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor,shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall.comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Reporting Requirements

5.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to ensure compliance with the
federal requirements, the goals of the System of Care, and successful
delivery of the scope of work by reporting, at a minimum, on the data in Table
A Key Output and Process Data as follows:

Table A

Key Output and Process Data

The data below shall be for all individuals who are connected to. referred by or funded by
DHHS unless otherwise requested and identified by DHHS.-
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Number of children currently placed in the program

Percent of contracted beds currently used

Turnover information'(e.g., total number of staff, how many left, and reason why)

Number of days the program does not meet contractually required staffing ratios

Number of accepted referrals/new-admissions (and location prior to admission)

Number of rejected referrals

Number of children discharged (and the reason for discharge)

Demographic information for each child (e.g., age, gender/sex. DCYF involvement;
race/ethnicity, primary language preference, identification with sex not assigned on birth
certification, sexual orientation)

Key dates per child: referral, acceptance, admission, discharge

Number of family planning team treatment meetings (and caregiver, youth attendance)

Number of treatment meetings led by youth

Number of contacts with family/caregivers

Percent of children placed outside of their school district

CANS score Information per child (from CANS system report - e.g., score # at referral, at
discharge)

Number of restraints

Number of seclusions

Discharge locations

Whether or not the CME was involved

5.2. The contractor shall provide any interpretation, justification or analysis of the
data provided in the report referenced in 4.1

0$
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5.3. The Contractor shall provide reports monthly with any change in
programming, clinical treatment, any changes in evidenced base practices or

staffing ratios that can Impact the quality of services delivered and individual

and staffing safety.

5.4.' The Contractor shall submit data in accordance with RSA 126-U which

includes but is not limited to

5.4.1. Incldentsof RSA 126-U:10

5.4.2. . New Hampshire Programs Monthly totals of all children during

residential time, regardless of referral .source

5.4.3. Total number of restraints

5.4.4. Total number of seclusions

5.5. The Contractor shall submit data and reports based on the request of the

Department in the manner, format and frequency requested by the

Department which shall include but is not limited to:

5.5.1. Incident reports of

5.5.1.1. Restraint

5.5.1.2. Seclusion

5.5.1.3. Serious injury both including and not including restraint

and seclusion

5.5.1.4. Suicide attempt

5.6. The Contractor shall provide data monthly and work with the data team to

provide any clarity or correction of the material.

5.7. The Department reserves the right to establish additional data reporting and

deliverable requirements throughout the duration of the Agreement.

>os
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6. Performance Measures

6.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance and evaluate program
results based on the key performance metrics In Table B as follows:

Table B

CnlcRurv Key pcrforiniincc metrics: ^ , j

Referral

• % of referrals that receive a response to the referral source within 24 hours [e.g.,
email or phone call on availability and next steps]

• Median time from referral to acceptance

•  Median lime from referral to admission

Family &

youth.

engagement

• % of treatment meetings where youth participates
*f

• % of treatment meetings where carcgiver participates

• Median # of contacts with family/carcgivers per month per child

Quality of

treatment

• % of children with improved CANS scores after 3 and 6 months (base^f on CAbfS
system report which DHHS will access)

•  ■ Median # of restraint/seclusion incidents per child and % of children with any
restraint/seclusion during treatment stay

Transition &

discharge

•  Median length of stay: days from admission to discharge to less restrictive setting

• % children discharged to home-based setting - overall and within 30,60,90, 180,
and 365 days

• % of children who remain in either a lower-treatment setting OR home-based
setting after 6 and 12 months {based on internal data which DHHS "'/// access
through CME and DCYFsystem)

• % of children receiving referral to after-care services (e.g.. Residential treatment
oversight, Fast Forward) before discharge

• % of DCYF-involved children who have achieved their permanency goal at 12
' months after discharge {based on internal DCYF data which DHHS will access)

6.2. Performance Improvement

6.2.1. The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance and
improvement activities with the Department and other

Contraclor InitialsOrion House iillale
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and stakeholders to ensure that continuous performance and

program improvement contributes in a positive way to the lives of
individuals adults and their families by focusing on system level

. outcomes such as:

6.2.1.1. Reduced use of psychiatric and other residential
treatment.

6.2.1.2. Reduced .use of juvenile corrections and other out of
home placements.

6.2.1.3. Reduced use of emergency departments and other
physical health services.

6.2.1.4. Reduced use of out of district placement for school.

6.2.1.5. Increased school attendance and attainment.

6.2.1.6. Increased employment for caregivers.

6.2.2. The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance and
performance improvement activities requested by the
Department, including but not limited to: •

6.2.2.1. Submitting reports at a frequency defined by the
Department on Agreement compliance rejDorts.

6.2.2.2. Providing to the Department narrative reports that
express non-child specific aggregate successes in
the program, programmatic changes made and why,
and barriers to program success, upon request and
frequency determined by the Department.

6.2.2.3. Attending. monthly meetings focused " on
performance.

6.2.2.4. Adjusting key performance metrics.

6.2.2.5. ' Participating in quality assurance reviews and
technical assistance site visits on alternating years.

6.2.2.6. Participating in electronic and in-person review of
case files to gain qualitative insight into treatment and
program quality and compliance.

6.2.2.7. Participating in inspections of any of the following:

6.2.2.7.1. The facility premises. j
RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-08 Orion House. Ifworporalod ConUBCtor —
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6.2.2.7.2. Programs and services provided.

6.2.2.7.3. Records maintained by the Contractor.

6.2.2.8. Participating in training and technical assistance
activities as directed by the Department.

6.2.2.9. Complying with- fidelity measures or processes
required for evidence-based practices or models
being utilized.

6.2.2.10. Adjusting program delivery.

,6.2.2.1 T Focusing on a range of performance topics that
include but are not limited to:

6.2.2.11.1. Rapid acceptance of referrals and
•' quick engagement with individuals and

their families," as this is critical to

ensuring children can be stabilized
• and begin to have their needs
addressed as quickly as possible.

6.2.2.11.2. Reduced use of restraints/seclusion to

•  " make progress toward the goal of
eliminating the practice.

6.2.2.11.3. Improving long-term program
outcomes by regularly monitoring
outcome goals like improving CANS
scores (i.e., increase in strengths,
decrease in needs) and successful
discharge (i.e., whether child remains
in a home-based setting after).

6.2.2.11.4. Reducing lengths of stay to ensure
that treatment ■ is being provided

briefly, episodically, and appropriately
at the level needed to achieve

treatment goals so children can
quickly return to home and.community
settings.

6.2.2.11.5. Reducing staff turnover by retaining
staff, while creating space for internal

0$
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advancement, -in providing consistent,

high-quality services.

6.2.3. The Contractor shall implement quality assurance activities to
ensure fidelity towards the evidence-based practices and trauma
informed model.

6.2.4. Notwithstanding paragraphs 8 and 9 of the General Provisions of
this Agreement, upon identification of deficiencies in Quality
Assurance, the Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days from the^
date the Contractor is notified of the final'findings, provide a
corrective action plan that includes:

6.2.4.1. Actions to be taken to correct each deficiency;

6.2.4.2. Actions to be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of
each deficiency;

6.2.4.3. A time line for implementing the actions above;

6.2.4.4. A monitoring plan to ensure the actions above are
effective; and

6.2.4.5. A plan for reporting to the Department on progress of
implementation and effectiveness.

6.2.5. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the
■ Department to enhance contract management; improve results,
and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful
outcomes.

6.2.6., The Contractor shall submit periodic reports, as stipulated
between DHHS and Contractor, which include, but are not limited
to Data to support performance improvement activities, DHHS
will provide to Contractor a list of Data needed and the format of
the Data.

6.2.7. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor
agency shall provide financial information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor's services, how much
was spent per individual and what type of services are being

• received by each individual.

6.2.8. The Department reserves the right to establish data reporting
and deliverable requirements throughout the duration of the
contract.

6.2.9. The Department reserves the right to request service plan and
other documentation to comply with federal r^uirements upon
request. f pp
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6.2.10. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor
agency.shall provide financial Information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor's services, how much
was spent per individual and what type of services are being
received by each individual.

7. Additional Terms

7.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

7.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the Slate has the right to modify Service

"priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreernent so
as to achieve compliance therewith.

7.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

7.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the
Agreement Effective Date, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services to be
provided to ensure meaningful access to programs and/or
services to individuals with limited English proficiency: individuals
who are'deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

7.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

7.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following staternent,
"The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed
under an Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department

of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the

State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as
were available or required, e.g., the United States Department of
Health and Human Services."

7.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall
have prior approval from the Department before printing,
production, distribution or use.

M

w
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7.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright.ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:'

7.3.3.1. Brochures.

7.3.3.2. Resource directories.

7.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

7.3.3.4. Posters.

7.3.3.5. Reports.

7.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under

the Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

7.3.5. The Contractor shall ensure, all educational and informational
materials are understandable, free of jargon, family friendly and
written appropriately for the audience when such materials are
' used to educate and inform individuals and their families about the

residential treatment program, services, and treatment.

8. Records

8.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

8.T.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data ■
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by
the Contractor .in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

8.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect
all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to'include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, .and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions^ and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested- or required .by the
Department.

8.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each
recipient of services, which records shall include all records of
application and eligibility (including all forms required to determine
eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision

.  fi
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of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.1.4. Medical records on each individual of services.

8.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder,
the Department, the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, and any of their designated representatives shall have access to
ail reports and records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes
of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the
Department of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement
and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all

■  the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as. by the
terms of the Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this
Agreement and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct
the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums
from the Contractor.

0$
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. Funds from the Foster Care-Program. Title IV-E. Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.658, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) 2101NHFOST

1.2. Funds from Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance. (CFDA) #93.558, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHTANF

1.3. Funds, from Adoption Assistance (CFDA) #93.659, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHADPT

1.4. Funds from Medical Assistance Program (CFDA) #93.776, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2105NH5ADM

1.5. General funds.

2. Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time
of payment. Possible account numbers to be utilized include the below.
2.1. 05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT

OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,
BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE.
CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES

2.2. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 636 -
TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT

2.3. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 6,39 -
TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT

2.4. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS.643 -
STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT

2.5. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES. CLASS 646 -
TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT

2.6. 05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID

Orion House, Incorporated Exhibit C CorMraclor Intiais
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'SERVICES, OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. MEDICAID CARE
MANAGEMENT, CLASS 535- OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS

For the purposes of this Agreement:

3.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided to
individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows:

4.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals, a daily rate will be awarded in the
amount per client per day Indicated In the table listed under section
4.1.1. This per diem-rate will be set for the term of the contract. Rales
may be reviewed every two years to follow the State's biennlum to
consider rate adjustments.

4.1.1.

Program - Orion House Level 1

Residential for eligible youth per day $207.40

Program - Orion House Level 2

Residential for eligible youth per day $211.70

4.1..2. Billings shall occur on at least on a monthly basis and shall
follow a process determined by the Department.

4.2. For Managed Care Organization enrolled individuals the Contractor
shall be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the
applicable Managed Care Organization for such services..

4.3." For individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the.
services they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other insurance
or payors.

4.4. For Individuals without sufficient health insurance or other coverage for
the services they receive which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek
reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payor, the Contractor
will directly bill the Department to access contract funds provided
through this Agreement. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a
form satisfactory to the Department with supporting documentation
including but not limited to the denial of claims. The Contractor shall
only be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the medicaid
eligible services provided.

4.4.1. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting
documentation may be assigned an electronic signature and

[S
Exhibit C Contractor Initials

Orion Houso. incofporstod

RFP-2021-08H-12-RESID-08 Pago 2 of 4

.

Dale

6/30/2021



OocuSign Envelope 10: 6B115D21-304A-4CEA-8AF5-86EA092635CE

□ocuSign Envelope ID: E1633691-A822-4C0O-B69A^721328A5C9A

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT C

emailed to dhhs.dbhinyoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices
may be mailed to: '

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

4.4.2. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within
thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice and supporting
documention for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval
of the submitted invoice. •

4.5. :Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure for Department funded
expenditures by fiscal year is as follows: •

4.5.1. Sub-total: $1.301,055.00

4.5.2. SPY 22; $433,685.00

4.5.3. SFY 23: $433,685.00

4.5.4. SFY 24; $433,685.00

5. Prior to submitting the first invoice, the Contractor must obtain a Vendor
Number by registering with the New Hampshire Department of Administrative
Services here (Vendor Resource Center I Procurement and Support Services
I NH Dept. of Administrative Services).

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
■  limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting

encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. '

7. Audits

7.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:
7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH, RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
orgiariizations receiving support of $1.000.000 or more.

Pf
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7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit. .

7.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shail submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Cbntractor'.s fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with'the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

7.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall, submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent,CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

7.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of
the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

7.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the

. Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or -which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.); and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative,, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L-. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages*
21681t21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub'-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants; or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
'1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's •
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such

. prohibition;
1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and.employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the ernployee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othenwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Fed^aJ^agency

[¥
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices.. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days'of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2,-with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs i.l, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5. and 1.6. '

2. the grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

I

Check □ if there-are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

>Oo«uSigMd by:>^Oo«ustgMO by:

6/30/2021 pArWd
^ ^ paranto

Title: Executive Director

Exhibit 0 - Certiricalion regarding Drug Free VerxJor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT .OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of (jongress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention"
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for •
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or subr
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

y.-^I>fteu9igntd by;

6/30/2021 I pAuidlt, faroiAjto
Oiii Paranto

Executive Director

Exhibit E - Certirical'ion Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to cornply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarrnent.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility flatters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction, if necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certlftcation or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon vyhich reliance was placed
when OHHS determined (o enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed -
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant." "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. the prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this.clause. The knowledge andf^°*

Pp
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaclion knowingly enters into a. lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIfVlARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and Its
principals;
11-.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligible, or

' voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense ln
connection with obtaining, .atternpting to obtain, or perforrning a public (Federal, Slate or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, briery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or dvilly charged by a govemmental entity
.(Federal, Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and •

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
■ transactions (Federal, State or local) termiriated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary parhcipant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
■ defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that if.and Its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from partidpation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debaimer^t, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

>  Ootu8>B»fJ by:

6/30/2021 PnuitlL
e paranto

Executive Director
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS *

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12oflhe General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; .

( Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondischmination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) wh.ich prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on.the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal

•  Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and .the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and'transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
. (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based , /-
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The.National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

•D$
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Depactment of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

,1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

—OocuSigncd ̂

6/30/2021

^  f^^rbVnTelle Paranto
Title, executive Director

/•—OS
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an eritity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.-

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12ofthe General Provisions, to execute the following-
certification: -

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees "to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name;

-0«euSlon«d by:

6/30/2021

DitJ Paranco
Title. Executive Director
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor.and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulaiipns.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term' "designated record set"
in .45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. . .

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operatioris"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
^2009.

h.' "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i.. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.1.03
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" "shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States"
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or receiv
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

pd-by
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean.the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,'
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time," and the
HITECH

Act. f

(2) Busiriess Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except asVeasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all

.  its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
li. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third-party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure,-the Busi^

3/2014 Exhibit I Conlractof Initials
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Associate shaii refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.
*  t

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
-types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o  \AAiether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and .
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under .the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI.as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business'^gpiate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receivih^HI ^

3/2014 Exhibit I Conlractw Initials^
Health Insurance Portability Aci
Business Associate Agreement 6/30/2021

Page 3 of 8 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B115D21-304A-4CEA-8AF5-86EA092635CE

DocuSign Envelope ID: E163369l-A822-4C0D-e68A-4721328A5C9A

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

•pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.-

h. Within ten (10) business days of re.ceiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record .
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
•Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for. any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thp«p>

,  purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business pp
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any "or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. .

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or

.  disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly,notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or-
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of_
PHI..

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
. Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate

■  Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used.-but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule, pp
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any .
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

■f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI,,return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the •
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Orion House inc

^aass«i.tb^ Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative SignaTure'DrAuthorized Representative

Katja Fox Danielle Paranto

Name of Authorized Rejoresentative Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Executive Oirector

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

7/9/2021 . 6/30/2021

DDate ate

3/2014 ■  Exnibii I
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 6 ot 6

Cor^tractor Intlials

Dale
6/30/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6B115D21-304A-4CEA-8AF5-86EA092635CE

OocuSIgn Envelope 10; E1633691-A822-4C0D-B69A-4721328A5C9A

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTiFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABlLfTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlabiiity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Corhpensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity •
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8.. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and-2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Cornpensalion Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of-the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The.tielow named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
•Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

-OocuSigntdby;

6/30/2021

Date Name:
Title:

Faranto

Executive Director

Exhibit J - Certificalion Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor initials
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

101404S80
1. The DUNS number for your entity Is;

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to #3 alwve is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;

Name;

Name;

Name;

Name;

Amount;

Amount;

Amount;

Amount:

Amount;

CU/OHHS<1t07l3

-01

9F
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means" the loss of contrpi, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data"'means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal inforrnation including without limitation, Substance

• Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of whiph collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

*

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

5
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
■  not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information ■
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security numt>er,- personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
atone, or vyrhen combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
hame. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United.

, States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, arxJ amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by .a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by

« the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business" Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must hot use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract.- Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Ldst update 10/09/16 ExhibitK Contractor Initials
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor rhust be bound by such
additional restrictions and must no! disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees-that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with .the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage .devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground l^ail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transrriit Confidential Data via an open

•oaOS
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
inforrriation. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours). •

11. Wireless Devices. If End User-is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this erid. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud' storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
.FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anli-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

M
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing,.emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe" program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST SF>ecial Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards arid Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing, at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retentiori requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure rriethod such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
*•-' confidential information throughout the information lifecyde, where applicable, (from
(  creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the

media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

PC
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3. The" Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact-State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support'of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those'for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors'prior to
system access l>eing authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work vA\h the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor, for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement t>etween the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V5.16S\ update 10/09/18 ExhlWl K Conlraclor Initials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, includir^g but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conndential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and'scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C, § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45'
G.F.R. Parts 160 and'164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

t  * *

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level, and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy. Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. at)ove,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Losi update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor initials
DHHS Information \
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when

-stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. • in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not l^e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure..
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

' Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
jeserves. the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and. security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

d
vs. Lasl update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs,nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

(5
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor initials
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the ResidentialTreatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Webster House ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 28, 2021 (item #14), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,543,650

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. Funds from Administration for Children and Families, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.658, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2301NHFOST

1.2. Funds from Administration for Children and Families, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.558, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2301NHTANF

1.3. Funds from Administration for Children and Families, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.659, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2301NHADPT

1.4. Funds from Administration for Children and Families, catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) #93.558, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2305NH5ADM

1.5. General Funds

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time of payment.
Possible account numbers to be utilized include the following:.

2.1. 05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS
BEHVIORAL HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE, CLASS 563 - COMMUNITY BASED

SERVICES-100% General Funds

2.2. 05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS

BEHVIORAL HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE, CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM

5
Webster House A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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SERVICES-100% General Funds

2.3. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 636 - TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT-50% Federal Funds
and 50% General Funds

2.4. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 639 - TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT-
100% General Funds

2.5. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 643 - STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT-100% General

Funds

2.6. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 646 - TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT-50% Federal Funds and
50% General Funds

2.7. 05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES,
MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT, CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS-50%

Federal Funds and 50% General Funds

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4. Subsection 4.1. to read:

4.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals, a daily rate will be awarded in the amount per
client per day indicated in the table listed under section 4.1.1. This per diem rate
will be set for the term of the Contract. Rates may be reviewed every two years to
follow the State's biennium to consider rate adjustments.

4.1.1

Program - Webster House Level 2

Residential for eligible youth per day effective 7/1/2021 to 6/30/2022 $327.08

Residential for eligible youth per day effective 7/1/2022 to 6/30/2023 $369.39

4.1.2. Billings shall occur on at least on a monthly basis and shall follow a
process determined by the Department.

4.1.3 For the purpose of this Agreement, funds in the amount of $182,523.00 shall be
provided to the Contractor, for the expenses incurred to obtain Accreditation and
identification as a Qualified Residential Treatment Program (QRTP) as specified
in Ex C-1 C Accreditation Budget: the total of all such payments shall not exceed
the specified Accreditation Budget total. All DHHS payments to the Contractor
for the Accreditation Budget shall be made on a cost reimbursement basis.

4.1.3.1 In lieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting documentation may
be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager - BCBH
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Webster House A-S-1,3 Contractor Initials -
G/2/2023
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Concord, NH 03301

4.1.3.2 The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each invoice and supporting documention for
authorized expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted
invoice.

4.1.3.3 The final invoice and supporting documention for authorized
Accredidation Budget expenses shall be due to the Department no
later than forty (40) days after the final cost have been incurred by the
Contractor in line with the budget.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4, Subsection 4.5 to read:

4.5. Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure for Department funded expenditures
by fiscal year is as follows;

4.5.1. Sub-total: $4,361,127.00

4.5.2. SPY 22: $705,564.00

4.5:3. SPY 23: $2,144,148.00

4.5.4. SPY 24: $1,511,415.00

7. Add Exhibit C-1, Amendment #1, Accreditation Budget, which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

a
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective to August 11, 2021, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date \written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/2/2023

Date

DocuS>gn«d by;

6DaKi5Bciiiiri!i;iii»

Name: ^atja s. fox

Title:
Director

6/2/2023

Date

Webster House

— OocuSigned by:

-esaeoMAeasTJAA-

Name" Michelle Omalley

CEO

Webster House

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESIO-14
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSignid by:

6/5/2023

Date Name:'^o'^y" cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

M-

WebsterHouse A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
0/2/2023
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Exhibit C-1, Amendment Rl, Accreditation Budget

Accredilatlon expenses for rbsldontlol treatment prograhis

Basic Information

Webster House \Pnf'iio,RFP-M2i-oen-ii-iiEsiD-i4^oi

1  1
Line Item Amount requested Notes (UnMdedj

Personnel costs %
Supervisors/managers
Frontline caseworXefs

Coordination or administrative support
COI, OA specialists and/or data analysts
Other personnel costs
Program facilities »  182,523.00
Lease

Maintence and utilities

Other racilltv costs 182,523,00 attic renovations

Program materials and supplies S

EBP or program model-specific materials
Recruitment, hirirtg. on-boardIng materials
Other program materials/supplies
Staff transportation 5
Mileage
Gas

Other staff transportation
EBP or program model-specific expenses $
Program license or other fees
Program training (Initial)
Other EBP or program model costs
Systems costs related to program S
Technology for data collection, reporting
Other systems
Consulting and sub-contracting, S
Consultir>g
Sub-conlracting I

Cauipmant %
Vehicles
Furniture

Technology Equipment
Other Equipment
Telecommunication $
Phones/Walkie Talkies

Internet Service
Other Telecommunication
Client Provisions $
Food

Clothing/Hygiene
Other Client Provisions

All other accredldation costs s •

6/2/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that WEBSTER HOUSE is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 25, 1897.1 further certify that all

fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofilce is

concerned.

Business ID: 68720

Certificate Number 0006239549

SI Oa

lA.

(§)

IN TESTIMONY WHER.EOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 3Ist day of MayA.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0974C6F5-4117-4FBB-A19D-AAB2964E1B1D

CcrtiflCfltC of Authority U 1 (Corporalion. Nrm-I'rojh Corim-aiioii)

Cornoratc Resolution

hereby certify that I am duly elected Clcrk/Sccretary/Officcrof
f  (Name) .

I hereby certify the following is a true copy of a vole taken at

(Name ofCorpuraHon)

a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and held on * S.

at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Q V-'^fmav list more than one person) is
(Name and Tide)

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of

^ with the State of New Hampshire and any of
(Name ofCorporation )

its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any documents

which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of

this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force

and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority

remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution. 1 further certify

that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that

the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the Stale of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly staled herein. . ^

DATED: ^ I 9-3 ATTEST:
(Nanic& Tille) C)', aefVofi S
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AC^Rd' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE {MMfOD/YYYY)

6/1/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S>, AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADOITIGNAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCES

THE ROWLEY AGENCY IMC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord. MK 03302-0511

Donna Bickford

r.,1. (603)224-2562
Anfw«- dbickford9rowleyagency.eom

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

iNSURERA:PhiladelDhia Indemnity Ins Co

INSURED

Webster House

135 Webster St.

Manchester MH 03104

INSURER B: ContDSiona

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER B :

INSURER F:

InSr
UB.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY -niATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

H5BCT
TYPE OP INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

BClAIMS-UAOE OCCUR

OCNt AOOREOATE unit applies PER:

POUCY

OTHER:

LOG

IWSD mL POUCY NUrASER

PBPia421792 7/10/2022 7/14/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
bAMAGE TO RENTES
PREMISES lEo occurtWCBl

MED EXP (Any ono pww)

PERSONAL i AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PROOLfCTS - COMP/OP AGO

1.000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABiUTY
CSM^iN^^INGLg UMif
lEa teddenO 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BOOrLY INJURY (Ptr panon)

SCHGOULEO

AUTOS
NON.OWNeO

AUTOS

VBPR24217B8 7/10/2022 7/14/2023 BODILY INJURY (P«r acddeng

PROPERTY DAMAGE
tPw ■cddBfrt>

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5.000.000

AOOREOATE 5,000,000

RETENTION t 10,000 PUUB817394 7/10/2022 7/14/2023

WORKER5 COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY
ANY PROPRlETOR«LRTN£ft®C£CUTIVE
OPPICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandttoiy In NH)
If y»t, dMcrlba uftdar
PgSCRlPTION OF OPERATIONS belw

YfN

H

TEr
8TATVTE

H/A
IICB820230000S90

SA 0TATX8 i tre

MO ZXCLOSBO OrrXCEXS

E.L EACH ACCIDE.NT 1,000,000

1/01/2023 1/01/2024 E.L. DISEASE -EAEMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMTT 1,000.000

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITT PHPK2421792 7/10/2022 7/14/2023 EACHINCJOeKTUMIT

AOOREOATE UMfT:

91,000,000

92,000,000

OeSCRlPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACOR0101. AddmontI Ramtrkt ScfMClult, may bt tttachMl If rnoi* ipM* fi rtqulrvd)
Covering operations of the insured during the policy period.

State of NH-Department of Health and
Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, KH 03301

I

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Donna Bickford/DTB

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Webster House
icotTHw

Webster House Children's Home

Mission: To provide a safe, supportive home for children
who are unable to live at home primarily for reasons of

abuse, neglect or difficulties in the community.
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FREDERICK O. BRIOOS, JR.. CPA
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HILARY A PAUL. CPA
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MEMBER FIRM OF AlCPA

PRIVATE COMMMES

PRACTICE SECTiON

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

August 17, 2022

To the Board of Directors

of the Webster House

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Webster House (a nonprofit

organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the

years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the financial position of the Webster House as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and

the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the .years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our^report.

We are required to be independent of the Webster House and to meet our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to. our audits.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant

to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are

conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Webster House's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the

financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
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auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance

but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the

aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Webster House's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as, well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in - the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Webster House's ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

f. (5. CPA

Prci^i^oru^UAiiOcCa-ttAm/
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WEBSTER HOUSE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

2021 2020

Assets

Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Endowment assets

Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts

Land, building and equipment, net

$ 134,300

56,250

40,000

10,394

7,603,783

204,498

497,156

S 405,979

76,351

6,148

6,930,701

194,530

536,424

TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,546,381 $ 8,150,133

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2021 2020

Liabilities

Accrued expenses

Accounts payable

$ 47,752

19,466

s 34,963

9,835

Total Liabilities 67,218 44,798

Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Purpose restricted

Perpetual in nature

Net assets with donor restrictions

1,763,963

883,752

5,831,448

6,715,200

1,998,484

810,405

5,296,446

6,106,851

Total Net Assets 8,479,163 8,105,335

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 8,546,381 $ 8,150,133

See Notes to Financial Statements

3
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WEBSTER HOUSE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Support, Revenues and Gains

Gifts and grants $ 318,708 $  300,886

Fees and grants from governmental agencies, recurring 643,830 858,294

Fees and grants from governmental agencies, non-recurring 20,850 288,600

Investment income 101,035 88,701

Charitable gaming 78,408 48,045

Special event, net of direct expenses in the amounts

of $- for 2021 and $5,500 for 2020 - 16,050

Gain on sale of assets - 6,250

Total Unrestricted Support, Revenues and Gains 1,162,831 1,606,826

Net Assets Released from Restrictions 234,627 201,855

Total Unrestricted Support, Revenues,

Gains and Reclassifications 1,397,458 1,808,681

Expenses

Program Services

- Room, board, care and support 1,377,293 1,360,530

Supporting Services

Fundraising 37,044 52,552

Management and general 217,642 211,443

Total Supporting Services 254,686 263,995

Total Expenses 1,631,979 1,624,525

Change in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (234,521) 184,156

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Support, Revenues and Gains

Gifts and grants 128,512 53,168

Fees and grants from governmental agencies, non-recurring - 72,984

Investment income 714,464 574,278

Total Donor Restricted Support,

Revenues and Gains 842,976 700,430

Net Assets Released from Restrictions (234,627) (201,855)

Change in Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 608,349 498,575

Change in Net Assets 373,828 682,731

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 8,105,335 7,422,604

Net Assets, End of Year $ 8,479,163 $  8,105,335

See Notes to Financial Statements

4
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WEBSTER HOUSE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

PROGRAM

SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES TOTAL

Room, Board, Care Fund- Management Total Supporting

and Support raising and General Services 2021

Employee Compensation

Salaries and wages S  937,508 $ 22,059 $  143,384 $ 165,443 $  1,102,951
Payroll taxes 70,634 1,662 10,803 12,465 83,099

Benefits - group health 74,225 1,746 11,352 13,098 87,323

1,082,367 25,467 165,539 191,006 1,273,373

Insurance 37,814 890 5,783 6,673 44,487

Utilities 23,723 510 1,276 1,786 25,509

Provisions 41,454 - -
- 41,454

Transportation 7,698 79 78 157 7,855

Program activities 25,890 - - - 25,890

Repairs and maintenance 29,396 632 1,581 2,213 31,609

Advertising 2,283 49 123 172 2,455
Household supplies and expenses 8,419 181 453 634 9,053

Office supplies and expenses 27,878 464 3,017 3,481 31,359

Professional services - 7,611 36,344 43,955 43,955

Allowance and jobs 6,947 - - - 6,947
Telephone 5,809 137 888 1,025 6,834

Clothing 2,236 - - - 2,236
Staff training 23,000 - - - 23,000

Christmas and other gifts 4,656 - -
- 4,656

School supplies and expense 54 - - - 54

Medical expenses 60 - - - 60

Total expenses before depreciation 1,329,684 36,020 215,082 251,102 1,580,786

Depreciation 47,609 1,024 2,560 3,584 51,193
Total expenses $  1,377,293 $ 37,044 $  217,642 $ 254,686 $  1,631,979

See Notes to Financial Statements

5
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WEBSTER HOUSE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

PROGRAM

SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES TOTAL

Room, Board, Care Fund- Management Total Supporting

and Support raising and General Services 2020

Employee Compensation

Salaries and wages $  915,887 $ 32,710 $  141,745 $ 174,455 $ 1,090,342

Payroll taxes 69,416 2,479 10,743 13,222 82,638

Benefits - group health 86,386 3,085 13,369 16,454 102,840

1,071,689 38,274 165,857 204,131 1,275,820

Insurance 43,792 1,564 6,777 8,341 52,133

Utilities 21,390 460 1,150 1,610 23,000

Provisions 50,068 - - - 50,068

Transportation 10,929 112 Ill 223 11,152

Program activities 20,613 - - - 20,613

Repairs and maintenance 14,260 307 766 .  1,073 15,333

Household supplies and expenses 15,065 324 810 1,134 16,199

Office supplies and expenses 17,970 354 1,534 1,888 19,858

Professional services - 9,989 31,201 41,190 41,190

Allowance and jobs 8,148 ■ - - 8,148

Telephone 4,825 172 747 919 5,744

Clothing 2,637 - - - 2,637

Staff training 24,899 - - - 24,899

Christmas and other gifts 4,886 - - - 4,886

School supplies and expense 2,582 - - - 2,582

Medical expenses 463 -
- - 463

Total expenses before depreciation 1,314,216 51,556 208,953 260,509 1,574,725

Depreciation 46,314 996 2,490 3,486 49,800

Total expenses $  1,360,530 $ 52,552 $  211,443 $ 263,995 S 1,624,525

See Notes to Financial Statements

6
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WEBSTER HOUSE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

2021 2020

Change in net assets $ 373,828 $  682,731

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

In-kind donations (3,619) (6,924)

Depreciation 51,193 49,800

Gain on sale of fixed asset - (6,250)

Net realized and unrealized (gains) and losses on investments (688,284) (573,877)

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 20,101 (30,031)

(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (40,000) 10,000

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (4,246) (225)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 22,420 13,424

Total adjustments (642,435) (544,083)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (268,607) 138,648

Cash Flows for Investing Activities

Payments for the purchase of property (15,325) (25,664)

Purchases of long-term investments (4,827,529) (2,075,681)

Proceeds from the sale of long-term investments 4,836,382 2,114,174

Proceeds from the sale of fixed asset 3,400 6,250

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (3,072) 19,079

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (271,679) 157,727

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 405,979 248,252

Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 134,300 $  405,979

See Notes to Financial Statements

7
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 1; NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

The Webster House (the Organization), a not-for-profit located in Manchester, New Hampshire, provides
board, care, support and guidance to children ages 8-18 in a group home environment. The average
monthly census ranges from six to twelve teenagers. The Organization receives approximately 56% of its
funding from federal sources and the State of New Hampshire.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with standards of the
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations as promulgated by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. They are stated on the accrual basis and include all material
accounts receivable and accounts payable.

Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounbng Standards Update
(ASU) 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)". This ASU supersedes the revenue
recognition requirements in "Topic 60S, Revenue Recognition", and most industry-specific guidance. The
core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled In exchange for those goods or services. The Organization adopted this ASU on
January 1, 2020.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable state contracts and grants,
which are conditioned upon daily room, board, care and support services provided to each resident.
Amount received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenditures in
compliance with specific contract or grant performance requirements (provided daily services to each
resident).
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows the recommendation of the Financial Accounting Standards Board as applicable
to not-for-profit organizations. Under these standards, the Organization Is required to report
Information regarding Its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets, as

applicable: net assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions.

Descriptions of the two net asset categories are as follows:

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

The part of net assets of a not-for-profit entity that Is subject to donor-Imposed restrictions
(donors include other types of contributors, Including makers of certain grants).

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

The part of net assets of a not-for-profit that Is not subject to donor-Imposed restrictions (donors
Include other types of contributors. Including makers of certain grants).

A donor-Imposed restriction is a donor stipulation (donors Include other types of contributors,
including makers of certain grants) that specifies a use for a contributed asset that is more specific
than broad limits resulting from the following:

a. The nature of the not-for-profit entity (NFP)

b. The environment in which it operates

c. The purposes specified in Its articles of Incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents for
an unincorporated association.

Expenses are reported as decreases In net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on

investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without
donor restrictions unless their use Is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations of

temporary restrictions on net assets, that is, the donor-Imposed stipulated purpose having been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period having lapsed, are recorded as reclasslfications between
the applicable classes of net assets. Temporary restricted donor contributions received and spent within
the same year are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted highly liquid

investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Receivables

Accounts receivable do not include an allowance for doubtful accounts since the Organization believes

all amounts to be collectible.

Investments

Investments, which consist of marketable securities, are stated at their fair value based on quoted

market prices. Investment income is allocated to the various funds within the without donor restrictions

and with donor restriction funds based on their proportion of fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are
included in the change in net assets in the accompanying statement of activities.

Prooertv and Equipment

Land, building and equipment is carried at cost or fair market value at the date of acquisition or

donation. Depreciation is recorded on building and equipment under the'straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives. Expenditures for additions, renewals and betterments of buildings and

equipment, unless of a relatively minor amount, are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and

repairs are expensed as incurred.

Contributed Services and Items

The value of contributed services of volunteers is not reflected in these statements since the criteria for

recording was not met. Contributed items are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date

of donation.

Unconditional Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenues and assets in the period received.

Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are

substantially met and the promises become unconditional.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and supporting services are presented on a functional basis

in the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the

programs and supporting services benefited. Expenses are directly charged to the appropriate activity,

where feasible. The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to

more than one program or function. Therefore, they may require allocation on a reasonable basis that is

consistently applied. This basis included building use percentage and personnel cost allocations.

Personnel costs are allocated based on the estimates of time and effort.

10
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a 501(c)(3) organization exempt from income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Organization has analyzed its tax positions and has determined that there are no

unrecognized tax obligations to record. The Organization's tax returns for the tax years 2019 to 2021 are

subject to examination.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made for consistent presentation.

NOTE 3: RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus {COVID-19) a Public
Health Emergency of International Concern. Later, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization

made the assessment that COVID-19 was a global health pandemic. Measures taken by federal, state,

and local officials to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing,

and closures of nonessential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses, resulting in an

economic slowdown. Throughout the pandemic, management has continued to evolve to better

support the Organization and its residents, despite the COVID-19 restrictions placed on the residents.
Fundraistng efforts were impacted by COVID-19. In 2020, the Organization's annual In-person spring

raffle was replaced with a remote raffle held in the fall. In 2021, the raffle was not held.

In an effort to counter the COVID-19 virus' impact on operations, the Organization applied for and

received $20,850 and $288,600 from various funding from federal and state sources for 2021 and 2020,
respectively (see Note 11).

The global outbreak of COVID-19 continues to rapidly evolve, and the ultimate impact of the pandemic is

highly uncertain. The COVID-19 outbreak may adversely impact future finances and operations through
the potential decline in contribution income and federal/state grants related to COVID-19 relief. In

addition, potential volatility in the financial markets could cause a decline in investment income and fair

market values. However, at this time the Organization cannot accurately predict the full extent of the

impact. The Organization continues to monitor developments and the directives of federal, state and

local officials to determine what additional policies and procedures need to be implemented by the

Organization.

11
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 4: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by

amounts not available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year. The Organization's

working capital and cash flows have minimal variation throughout the year. The minimal variation

results from sporadic donations received at varying times throughout the yeaV.

the Organization currently withdraws approximately two percent per month of the endowment fund's
value for operating expenditures. The Organization has the option to withdraw additional funds to
supplement operating expenses.

As part of the Organization's liquidity management, it invests cash in excess of general operating

requirements in certificates of deposit or marketable securities.

Current financial assets at year end:

Cash and equivalents

Accounts and grants receivable

Financial assets available to meet cash needs

for general expenditures within one year

2021 2020

$ 134,300 $ 405,979

96,250 76,351

$ 230,550 $ 482,330

NOTE 5: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains several bank accounts at different financial institutions which at times may
exceed the federally insured limits. The accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.

Normally, accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from the State of New Hampshire.

NOTE 6: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles defines fair value as the price that would be received for an

asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the Organization's principal or most advantageous

market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date.

12
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

This principle establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires the Organization to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The
standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
Organization has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the Organization's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

In many cases, a valuation technique used to measure fair value includes inputs from multiple levels of
the fair value hierarchy. The lowest level of significant input determines the placement of the entire fair
value measurement in the hierarchy.

The following is a description of the valuation methods and assumptions used by the Organization to
estimate the fair values of certain financial instruments:

The fair values of cash, fixed income, mutual funds and common stock equities are readily marketable

and are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges (Level 1
inputs).

Endowment assets are held with UBS. Funds without donor restrictions and funds with donor

restrictions are pooled into four investment accounts holding marketable securities. They are recorded
at fair value at December 31, 2021 and 2020, as summarized below. Accrued interest is included in bond
values.

13
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 6: INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

2021

Cash

U.S. government obligations

Corporate bonds

Asset backed bonds

Mutual funds

Common stock

Total held by UBS

Unrealized appreciation

Fair Value Cost

$  236,276 $ 236,276

594,922 589,126

352,507 349,314

137,016 138,574

1,150,662 1,168,334

5,132,400 4,029,087

$  7,603,783 $ 6,510,711

$1,093,072

2020

Cash

U.S. government obligations

Corporate bonds

Asset backed bonds

Mutual funds

Common stock

Total held by UBS

Fair Value

226,363

1,029,396

808,510

67,714

341,038

4,457,680

Cost

226,363

970,053

767,753

66,758

326,471

3,120,424

$  6,930,701 $ 5,477,822

Unrealized appreciation

NOTE 7: BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN PERPETUAL TRUSTS

$1,452,879

The Organization is a beneficiary of two perpetual interest trusts administered by Citizens Bank. Fair
value has been determined using quoted prices for idenbcal assets (level 1 input). The fair market values

of the Organization's share of the assets held by these trusts are as follows:

Frank E. Green Trust

Eliza B. Green Trust

Total

2021 2020

$ 28,864 $ 29,336

175,634 165,194

$ 204,498 $ 194,530

14
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 8: LAND, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of land, building and equipment follows:

Land, building and improvements

Furniture and fixtures

Equipment

Accumulated depreciation

2021

$  1,324,251

129,052

185,125

1,638,428

(1,141,272)

The estimated useful lives for depreciation are five through 50 years.

NOTE 9: NET ASSETS

2020

$  1,308,926

129,052

188,525

1,626,503

(1,090,079)

$  497,156 $ 536,424

Net assets are further broken down as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Board designated

Undesignated

Total

2021 2020

$  72,929

1,691,034

1,763,963

$  65,914

1,932,570

1,998,484

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Purpose restricted

Grants

Unappropriated endowment fund income

Subtotal

193,832

689,920

883,752

179,947

630,458

810,405

Perpetual in nature

Legacies

Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts

Trust funds - Christmas, clothing, outward bound

^  Subtotal

Total

5,582,570

204,498

44,380

5,831,448

6,715,200

5,057,536

194,530

44,380

5,296,446

6,106,851

Total Net Assets S  8,479,163 $ 8,105,335

15
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 10: ENDOWMENT FUND

The Organization's endowment consists of four funds. As required by generally accepted accounting

principles, the net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the

existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions, as presented in Note 9.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Board of Directors of the Organization has interpreted the State of New Hampshire's Uniform

Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act as requiring the management of the funds to comply

with the intent of the donors and to manage and invest the fund in good faith and with the care an

ordinarily prudent person would exercise under similar circumstances. The Board also interprets the law

to state that gains and losses on endowment funds should be allocated to net assets with donor
restrictions. As a result of these interpretations, the Organization classifies as net assets with donor

restrictions (a) the original value of gifts donated, (b) the original value of gifts subsequently donated

and (c) accumulations of gains, both realized and unrealized. Any remaining portion of accumulations is

classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure.

The Organization also interprets the law to state that the Board may determine appropriations for

expenditures, up to limits cited in the law, and accumulations of the endowments as the Board deems

appropriate. In accordance with the law, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the endowment fund

(2) The purposes of the Organization and the endowment fund

(3) General economic conditions

(4) The possible effect of inflation or deflation

(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation/depreciation of investments

(6) Other resources of the Organization

(7) The investment policies of the Organization.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment funds that attempt to

provide a predictable stream of funding for programs while seeking to preserve the fund. Endowment

assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Organization must hold in perpetuity or for

a donor-specified period(s) as well as board-designated funds. The Organization currently holds equities
as well as fixed income government and corporate bonds employing a moderate level of investment risk.

Investment returns consist both of capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield

(interest and dividends).
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 10: ENDOWMENT FUND (continued)

Strategies Emploved for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on a total return strategy in

which Investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and

current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization targets a diversified asset allocation that places

a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within

prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy

The Organization's policy allows interest and dividend income for distribution. The actual distribution Is

approximately two percent of its endowment fund's average value and the amount Is based on the

annual need determined In the budget process. The remaining amount of Interest and dividends is

classified as net assets with donor restrictions effective for the years ended December 31, 2021 and

2020. The funds average return rate has been approximately seven percent. The Organization's policy Is

to distribute the minimum amount necessary to fund program operations. This policy is consistent with

the Organization's objective to maintain and grow the fund.

Changes in Endowment Assets - 2021

Without

Donor

Restrictions

With

Donor

Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets beginning of year

Additions

Investment return:

Investment income

Investment fees

Net realized gain (loss)

Net unrealized gain (loss)

Total investment return

Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure

Endowment net assets end of year

$  1,198,327 $ 5,732,374 $ 6,930,701

3,620

35,914

(71,533)

180,083

(59,498)

84,966

146,765

858,040

(300,309)

704,496

$ 3,620

$  182,679

$  (71,533)

$  1,038,123

$  (359,807)

789,462

(120,000) $ (120,000)

$  1,286,913 $ 6,316,870 $ 7,603,783
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 10: ENDOWMENT FUND (continued)

Changes in Endowment Assets - 2020

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets beginning of year $  1,113,697 $ 5,293,061 $ 6,406,758

Additions 3,524 - $ 3,524

Investment return:

Investment income 26,987 110,282 $ 137,269

Investment fees (55,762) - $ (55,762)

Net realized gain (loss) 30,528 124,753 $ 155,281

Net unrealized gain (loss) 79,353 324,278 $ 403,631

Total investment return 81,106 559,313 640,419

Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure - (120,000). $ (120,000)

Endowment net assets end of year $  1,198,327 $ 5,732,374 $ 6,930,701

NOTE 11: FEES AND GRANTS FROM GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

Recurring fees and grants from governmental agencies are comprised of funding from the State of New

Hampshire to support daily operations.

Nonrecurring fees and grants from governmental agencies at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are

comprised of the following:

In 2020, The Organization received $72,984 from the State of New Hampshire's Department of Health

and Human Services in relation to it becoming a certified residential treatment provider. At
December 31, 2020, $27,978 was unspent and included in restricted support. In 2021, all remaining

funds were spent.

In response to the COViD-19 pandemic's effect on the operations of long term care facilities, the State

of New Hampshire provided the Organization with $20,850 and $101,100 through the "Long Term
Care Stabilization Program." for 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Organization was eligible to receive

this funding since its frontline workers provided qualifying services for an approved Medicaid

provider during the pandemic.
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WEBSTER HOUSE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

NOTE 11: FEES AND GRANTS FROM GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES (continued)

In an effort to counter the COVID-19 pandemic's negative impact on operations, the Organization

applied for and received a $187,500 forgivable Paycheck Protection Program loan in April 2020. This
funding was provided under the federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES

Act). The Organization complied with the terms of the loan which required it to use at least 75% of

the loan proceeds on payroll costs (including benefits) and at most 25% on payments of mortgage

interest, rent, utilities and interest on any other debt obligations during a set 24-week period. In
November 2020, the Organization applied for and received forgiveness of the loan in full,

NOTE 12: INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is reported as follows:

2021 2020

Without Donor Restrictions

Interest and dividends

Investment fees

Net realized gain (loss)

Net unrealized gain (loss)

Total

With Donor Restrictions

Interest and dividends

Net realized gain (loss)

Net unrealized gain (loss)

Total

NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

$  51,983

(71,533)

180,083

(59,498)

$  101,035 $

$  34,582

(55,762)

30,528

79,353

88,701

$  146,765 $ 110,282

858,040 124,753

(290,341) 339,243

$  714,464 $ 574,278

Subsequent events have been evaluated through August 17, 2022, which is the date the financial

statements were available to be issued.

As the COVID-19 virus continues to spread, the Organization remains hopeful that future potential

disruptions to operations will be minimal; however, the related financial impact and duration of the

pandemic cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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Webster House
BUILDING CHILDREN'S FUTURES TOGETHER

2023 Webster House Board of Directors

Eddie Ithier,
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Matt Vasil,
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Baker Newman Noyes

Sara Janes Hoag,

Vice President

Primerica

Kathleen Stevens,

Secretary

St. Mary's Bank

Kristin Faxon

Optum

Anne Marie Hafeman

Elliot Hospital

Nicole Howley
Nicole Howley Homes Group

Stacy Scarlett Martin
Stacy Scarlett Martin

Graphic Design

Sherry Nannis
WMUR

Heather Reardon

Anthem Blue Cross & Blue

Shield

Brianna Rivera

St. Mary's Bank

Crystal Rousseau
Loreal

Peter Richard

XMA Corporation

Holile Strandson

Five North Realty Group, Inc.

Andrew Switzer

M&T Bank

Abby Tucker
Wadleigh, Starr & Peters,

P.L.L.C.

Grant Van Der Beken

The Hartford
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Michelle O'Malley
niichelle.onialley@websterhousenh.org

Webster House Children's Home, 2021-Present

Ckief Executive Officer
To|>ranking position reporting to the Board of Directors. Responsible for providing the vision,
leadership and management of the house as well as securing funding to support it.

> Leadership, oversight, and direction of staff and volunteers.
> Oversee the implementation of state certifications, program, funding, and staffing.
> Collaborate with the Board of Directors in creating and implementing a strategic plan.
>  Implement a fundraising plan including grants, company partnerships and donors.
^ Engage a wide range of stakeholders to build community partnerships.

March of Dimes, 2013-2020

Associate Executive Director, Northern Netu England June, 2019-November 2020
Senior Developmeiit Manager, Northern Neiv England 2013-2019
Chief development officer responsible for events and relationships in NH, ME and VT markets.

> Strategize, plan and execute 8 annual fundraising events in Northern New England
including March for Babies and Signature Chefs Auction. Raised $500,000 in 2019.

> Develop revenue plans including core tactics and strategies to meet goals and YOY growth.
Increased March for Babies corporate relationships and sponsorship by over 1000% and
increased Signature Chef Auction overall revenue by over 250% since 2013.

> Recruit and steward 15 Board members. Manage relationships, communications, meeting
preparation, and execution. Board members helped raise over $100,000 in 2019.

> Recruit, motivate, and develop over 500 volunteers in the Northern New England Market:
Articulate goals, outcomes and objectives to collaborate on reaching annual revenue goals.

> Provide mission visibility for 8 events through public relations outreach, press relea.ses and
interviews with Binnie Media radio stations and WMUR. Deliver social media posts pre .
and post event including several individual sponsor and logo lockup posts per event.

> Execute leadership through excellent work ethic, relationships, and strategic planning for 3
states. Manage increasing responsibilities to build networks and grow revenue.

> Manage operations, logistics, and keep expenses to 7% of the $500,000 budget. Secure in-
kind donations and di.scounted rates to keep all event expenses low.

Daniel Webster College, Nashua, New Hampshire 2010-2012
Dean ofStudents .
Chief student affairs officer, responsible for housing, student activities, leadership, first-year
programs, and student conduct.

> Designed FreshinanlOl: Strategies for Success: curriculum, assessment, instructor preparation.
> Established, trained, chaired Student Conduct Review Board: adjudicated 25 hearings.
> Managed on-call schedule and crisis situations; Hospital first responder 2 times weekly.
> Collaborated with faculty to establish the Living Learning Community, a service initiative.

Brandeis University, Waltham, Massachusetts 2004-2010
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Director of Commiiniiy Livi?ig 2009-2010
Responsible for department operations, 1 million budget, human resources, and over .50 residential
facilities. Managed facilities issues, safety procedures, customer service, and policy implementation.

Director of Orientation and First-Tear Programs 2004—2009
Created and managed all new student programs. Orchestrated end-to-end orientation process:
hiring staff, the publication of information, and execution of high profile programs.

> Provided daily crisis management, behavioral health interventions: on-call administrator.
> Established community service focused Living learning Community programs.
> Implemented orientation program for over 1,000 incoming students, and families.
> Conceptualized and executed First Year Experience, Diversity Leadership, and First-Tear

Experience: Spirit, Mind, and Body course: curriculum, assessment, instructor preparation.

New York University, Stern School of Business, New York 2001-2004
Associate Director ofStudent Services
Created and managed all MBA student programs and professional conferences. Orchestrated end-
to-end orientation process.

> Managed office and staff: hired, trained, supervised, and coached on policies.
>  Implemented orientation program for MBA students.
^ Coordinated conferences including high profile/CEO level ke^mote speakers
>  Increased student involvement through events, leader training, and graduation activities.

Fordham University, Bronx, New York 1997-2000
Director ofStudent Activities, McGinley Student Center and Orientation
Managed services and operations within the student center. Orchestrated end-to-end orientation
process: hiring/managing staff, the publication of information, and execution of programs.

Washington and Lee University, Lexington, Virginia 1994—1997
Director ofStudent Activities and Residential Programs
Charged with designing the University's first student activities office: Improved campus life with
the design and implementation of non-Greek activities, leadership programs, and workshops.

Volunteer Experience:
Women's Business League of Londonderry, NH 2020-Present
Manchester Chamber of Commerce, Manchester, NH 2013-Present
Palace Theatre Advisory Board, Manchester, NH 201.5-Present
Leadership New Hampshire, Class of 2021 2020-2021
BIA/Sojourn Partners Emerging Leader Program 2018-2019
Leadership Greater Manchester, Class of 2017 2016-2017

Education:'

Springfield College, Springfield, Massachusetts 1994
Master of Education, Counseling and P.sychological Services/Student Personnel Administration
Western New England University, Springfield, Massachusetts 1991
Bachelor of Science, Business Administration/Human Resources Management
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BLAIR STAIRS
Blair.stairs@websterhousenh.org

EXPERIENCE

JAN. 2021-PRESENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, WEBSTER HOUSE

•  Responsible for leading and supervising a team of residential counselors and

administration

Ensuring the financial growth and stability of the program

Monitoring and maintaining the well-being of clients served

Overseeing program operations and needs and monitoring staffing needs

Maintaining and creating new community connections for the program

Providing emergency on-call support to residential staff

Working collaboratively with a Board of Directors to ensure the stability and longevity of
the program.

FEB 2019-JAN. 2021

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR/CLINICAL COORDINATOR, WEBSTER HOUSE

Responsible for screening referrals and coordinating client interviews

Completing intakes and assessments of new clients, developing strength-based

treatment plans for clients and coordinating and conducting team meetings

Communicating and collaborating with referral sources, family, and treatment team

members

Organizing and leading bi-weekly group counseling sessions, and providing individual
counseling and crisis intervention to clients as needed

Supervising case managers to ensure the needs of the clients and Case Managers are

being met.

Responsible for conducting educational in-service trainings for staff, leading staff
meetings, and providing emergency on-call support to residential staff.

OCT. 2013-JAN. 2019

CASE MANAGER, WEBSTER HOUSE

•  Responsible for ensuring the needs of assigned clients are met through collaboration

with community agencies for medical, dental, and mental health care appointments

•  Assisting with developing and monitoring client progress toward treatment goals through
monthly reporting and participation in team treatment meetings, and counseling clients
in individual and group settings

•  Preparing and presenting case files for annual state site evaluations

•  Monitoring client progress in community settings such as home, counseling, and school
•  Communicating and collaborating with referral sources, family, and treatment team

members.
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SEPT. 2012-OCT. 2013

RESIDENTIAL COUNSELOR, WEBSTER HOUSE

•  Responsible for assessing and overseeing the direct care and well-being of clients,
transporting clients to appointments, and counseling clients weekly on progress within
program.

EDUCATION

MAY 2021

MASTER OF SOCIAL WORK, UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

CERTIFICATE IN CHILD WELFARE, UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

•  Awarded two behavioral health scholarships for academic achievements

•  Received highest honors

MAY 2013

BACHELOR OF ARTS IN PSYCHOLOGY, SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY

•  Concentration in Child and Adolescent Psychology

•  Received highest honors

•  Awarded an academic scholarship

•  President's list.

SKILLS

•  Trained in NH Medication Dispensing

•  CPR/First Aid trained

• Water Safety Certified

Trained in Trust Based Relational

Interventions

De-escalation trained in M.O.A.B

ACTIVITIES

I enjoy engaging in fundraising activities annually that enable youth to engage in outdoor activities that
increase mental health stability.
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Contractor Name

Key Personnel

Name Job Title. Salary Amount Paid "
from this Contract

Michelle O'Malley Chief Executiye Officer $104,000

Biair Stairs Executiye Director $78,749
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271.9544 |.SOO-8S2-334SEil9544

Fti: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nb.COT

June 28. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Heatth and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into contracts with the vendors listed below In ah amount riot to exceed $145,278,814.18
for.providing behavioral health residential treatment services for children, youth, and young adults
to quickty stabilize their behavioral health needs, with the option to renew for up to six (6)
additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30.2024. Funding
source is estimated as 51 % General Funds and 49% Federal Funds dependent upon eligibility of
the client.

Vendor Name 1

Vendor Code
Area Served SPY 2022 SFY 2023 SFY 2024

Total Contract

Amount

Dover Chfldfcn's

Home

Dover, NH

(VCdTBD)

Dover, NH

1,656,239.00 1.317.048.00

4 1

1.317.048.00 4.200,335.00

Easter Seaia

Manchester, NH

(VC# 177204)

Manchester,

NH

11.223.412.00 11.223,412.00 . 11,223.412.00 33,670,236.00

Home for Little

Wanderers, Inc.

Boston, MA

(VCdTBD)

In/Near

HtilsborDugh.
Manchester,

Keene,
Concord, and
Rocklngham

County 7,306,201.01 6,298,503.00 6,298,503.00 19,903.207.01

Th*Dtparlm*niofHeatih ond Hunan Sermoa'Miuion it to join eonmunitiu and familitt
in providing cpporlunilits for cilians to ochievt htalth and independenct.
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Nashua Chfidren's
Home

Nashua, NH

(VC#TBD)

Nashua, NH

3,268.320.00 3.268,320.00 3,268,320.00' 6,804,960.00

Pine Haven Boys
Center

Suncook. NH

(VC»TBD)

Suncook. NH
4,141.176.17 3.620.712.00 3,620,712.00 11,382,600.17

SpaukllnQ
Academy & Femity

Ser^ces
Notthfieid, NH

(VC«TBD)

Nofthtiald. NH
17,112.801.00 16,665,101.00 16.665.191.00 50,443.273.00

Stetson School

Barre. MA

. (VCOTBD)

In/Near
HlOsborough,
Manchester,

Keene,
CoTKord, and
Rocfclngham

County 2,426.778.00 2.426.778.00 2,426.778.00 7,280,334.00

Webster House

Manchester, NH

(VC#TBD)

Manchester,
NH

705,664.00 706.564.00 705,564.00 2,116,692.00

Whitney Academy

North Olghton, MA

(VC#TBD)

In/Near
HIDst>orough.
Manchester.

Keer>e.
Concord, and
Rockingham ■

County 2,129,059.00 2.129.059.00 2,129.059.00 6.387.177.00

Total: 149,669,640.16 $47,654,587.00 $47,654,587.00 $145,276314.18

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are ^
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 through 2024, upon the availability and i
continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget ^
line items withiri the price limitation between state fiscal years through the Budget OfTice, if needed ■,
and Justified. '
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Because the Bridges System Is used to process and monitor payments for these
agreements, no purchase order number is assigned. The New Hampshire First System will r>ot
be used to encumber these funds.

Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time of payment
Possible account numbers to be utilized include the below.

05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL
HEALTH. SYSTEM OF CARE. CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES -100%
General Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 636 - TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT - 50% Federal Funds and
50% General Funds

05-95-42.421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV, CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES, CLASS 639 - TITLE IV-AA-ANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT -100%
Federal Funds

05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 643 - STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT -100% General Funds
05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV. CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY
SERVICES. CLASS 646 - "nTLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT - 50% Federal Funds and 50%
General Funds

05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES.
MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT. CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS - 50% Federal
Funds and 50% General Funds

,  EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide behavioral health services in residential treatment
settings to children, youth and young adults who have l)ehaviora! health needs who have more
Intensive behavioral and mental health needs that cannot be met safely in the community without
inten^ve supports.

The Contractors will deliver evidence-based and trauma-infonmed clinical services to
reduce reliance on emergency rooms, hospital settings, and residential treatment programs
outside of New Hampshire and Now England. The Contractors vrill support the Department's
efforts to provide better long-tenrh outcomes for youth by providing services that will be short-term,
target treatment episodes to reduce re-entry into residential treatment settings, and enable the
State to meet the federal regulations regarding residential programs as mandated In the .Families
First Services Prevention Act.

The population served Includes children and youth who display acute behaviors, medical
needs and mental health symptoms that require treatment In residential settings. These
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■ Individuals may have specialty care needs. Including intellectual and developmental disabilities,
fire setting behaviors, problematic sexual tjehavlors. highly aggressive behaviors, past attempts
of suia'de or significant self-harm. A qualified assessor will determine whether children arid youth
receiving services provided in the family home are eligible for the residential levels of care.
Approximately 400-500 Individuals will be served annually through June 30.2024.

The Contractors will provide varying residential treatment levels of care ranging from
levels one through four, with four being the most intensive treatment. All Contractors will provide
services that are family-driven, youth-guided, community-based, trauma-informed, and culturally
and linguistically competent in accordance with RSA 135-F. Depending on the level of care.
Contractors will provide sen/ices that may include but are not limited to:

•  Residential/milieu services through direct care professionals;

•  Trauma-informed treatment models Including evidence based practices;

• Mental heaKh/dlnical services prcvlded by clinical staff;

•  Educational services, as approved by the Department of Education;

•  Independent living/employment support;

•  Positive Youth Development/Recreational opportunities;

•  Safety and supervision; and

•  Care coordination of all needs including medical/dental and other needs.

The Department will monitor contracted services by collecting data on referrals, family and
youth engagement, quality of treatment, and transition and discharge; conducting site visits; and
reviewing client files. The Department will also monitor the following;

•  Rapid Acceptance of Referrals;

•  Reduction of Restraint and Seclusion;

•  Improvement of Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) scores;

• Reduction of lengths of stay; and

• Reduction of staff turnover and retention of quality staff.

The Department selected the contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from 12/11/2020
through 3/8/2021. The Department received forty-nine (49) responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified Individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached. This requested action
includes nine (9) contracts and the Department plans to submit seven (7) additional contracts to
a future Govemor and Executive Council meeting.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions for Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to six (6) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, the Department's Residential
Treatment Transformation will not bo able to move forward, vdiich could:

•  Limit the amount of federal funding that the Department would have access to
through the Family First Prevention Services Act and IV-E;



DocuSign Envelope ID; 0974C6F5-4117^FBB-A19D-AAB2964E1B1D

Hl» Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Suruinu
and the Honorable Council

PegeSofS

•  Impact implementation of required trauma-informed models and evidence-based
models for residential treatment programs;

•. Impact the quality of services available to children and youth;

•  Prevent in-state providers from accepting New Hampshire children and youth due
to limited funding, which may result In referrals to out-of-state providers, limit the
ability of youth to return home, and Increase service costs.

•  Impact the ability of the Department to implement RSA 135-F and support access
to treatment for all youth.

Areas served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.658, FAIN #2101NHFOST CFDA #93.558, FAIN#
2101NHTANF. CFDA #93.659, FAIN #2101NHADPT. CFDA #93.778, FAIN #2105NH5ADM

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. Genera! Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

SubJc€i:_Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

Notice: This agreemcni and all ofiis attachmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Execuiivc Council for approval. Any information ihai is priN-aie, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly ideniified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

I.J State Agency Nome

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Webster House

1.4 Contractor Address

135 Websier Street,
Manchester, NH 03104 ■

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)622-8013 Exl: 2

1.6 Account Number

See Exhibit C

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30. 2024

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,1 16,692

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan 0. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature

r^iLdL
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Michelle O'Malley

1.13 ^tlJ'A^'yfStlnaiurc

6/14/2021

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Katja FOX Director

1.15 Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
y^OoeuSlflMd by;

On: 6/1V2021

1.17 ApprovynsyfifftlSdVcrnor and Execuiivc Council (ifapplicable)

G«S:C item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New

Hampshire, acting through ihe agency identified in block 1.1
("Slate"), engages contractor idenlified in block 1.3
{"Coniracior") to perform', and the Contractor shall perfomi, the
work or sale of goods, or both, idenlified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which Is Incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approvc ihis Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no .such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Stale Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7."

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding, any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
fund."! affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event .shall the Stale be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such fund.s
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account idenlified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset, from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Coniracior under this Agreement those
liquidated amount.s required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLl/VNCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable .statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United Slates, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with aiiy rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Stale or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will lake affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees* to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Coniracior shall at its own c.\pcnsc provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants thai
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless othenvlse.authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aficr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofTlcial, who i.s materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. I n the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4 (7
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acis or omissions of ihc
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default");

8.1.1 failure lo perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covcnani, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absaice of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and If the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor.a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pureuc any of.its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any. subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OITicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3 of4

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and.things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by rca.son of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
repr«cntations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purcha.scd with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and '
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data-requires
prior written approval of the State.

j 1. CONTRACrOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall hove authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSlCNMENT/DELEGATlON/SUBCONTRACrS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided lo the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliate.^, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Ser\'ice.s shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an a.ssignmcnl agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State; Its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissfoiT oT the
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Contracior, or subcontractors, including but not limited lo the
negligence, reckless or Inieniional conduct. The State .shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph ) 3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject tp subpamgraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagriiph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy formsand endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
i.ssucd by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her succe.ssor, a certincate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumi.sh to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccnincatc(s) of insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior lo the e.xpiraiion date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificatc(.s} of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agrcemcni, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A {'H'orkers'
Com/>€nsaiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require anysubcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner de.scribed in N.H. RSA chapter
281>A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parly
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parlies at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. amendment. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approvol of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and E,xeculive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unles.s no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Thi.s Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used In this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P'37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not Intend lo
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
con.xtrued to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, consiruciion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In thccveni any of the provisions oflhis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any slate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constilulcs the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to (he subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human, Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to six (6) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3 Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be
performed and how corrective action shall be managed If the
subcontractor's performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall
manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and
take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually
provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for under
this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate subcontractor
performance.

RFP-2021'DBH.12-RESIO-14 Webster House Coniractorlnillate,
P
6/14/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide high-quality tailored behavioral health treatment

services in residential treatment settings to quickly stabilize behaviors and
symptoms that children, youth and young adults herein referred'to as
Individuals wWh behavioral health needs experience. This targeted treatment

should enable them to return to a lower level of treatment or family-based

settings, while-providing their caregivers with skills to manage their needs
safely in the community and enable Individuals to thrive at home, in education,

and in employment.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide Residential Treatment Services based on the
levels of care identified in Section 2 Levels of Care.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services with the purpose of:

1.3.1. Prioritizing short-term treatment with the goal of rapidly reunifying
children with their families and/or colnmunity support networks;

1.3.2. Widening access to treatment for all who need it, enabling all
individuals to access services, regardless of their prior or current

involvement with child welfare or juvenile justice systems;

1.3.3. Reducing reliance on hospital emergency departments and reducing
the need for psychiatric hospitalization;

1.3.4. Prioritizing family engagement and providing caregiver education
and engagement in the individual's care and recognizing that families
and caregivers are an integral part of the Treatment Team Meetings
/Child and Family Team

1.3.5. Providing services that are trauma-informed and implementing
evidence-based practices to ensure the highest quality of care and

the best possible outcomes for the individual;

1.3.6. Ensuring treatment is available along a continuum of care which

delivers tailored treatment plans for each child according to their

individual needs, and at a range of different levels of intensity;

1.3.7. Coordinating effectively and seamlessly with key partner entities
including the Care Management Entities (CME), the conflict free
assessor (CAT), the child's school district, family and perm^ency

M-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Residential Treatment Services for Children's Behavioral Health

EXHIBIT B

teams, and DCYF staff to deliver treatment according to System of
Care principles:

1.3.8. Cultivating strong community networks around the individual to

support long-term thriving in community settings after discharge;

1.3.9. Providing adequate funding for service delivery, recognizing the
importance of paying what it takes to deliver results for high-quality
programs;

1.3.10. Supporting and improving the transition of the individual from
residential treatment into their home community, by utilizing

oversight and supportive transitional services through CME;

1.3.11. Early targeted treatment equipping the individual and their families

with the skills to successfully transition into adulthood by restoring,
rehabilitating, or maintaining their capacity to successfully function in
the community, and diminish their need for more intensive levels of

care; and

1.3.12., Providing programming that offers a home like atmosphere and

access to the community.

1.4. The Contractor shall accommodate referrals from all over State and should

prioritize referrals of NH individuals.
t

1.5. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services for children, youth,

and young adults ages 5 to under age 21 who have more intensive behavioral

and mental health needs that cannot be met safely in the community without

intensive supports. The Contractor may tailor their residential treatment

services to serve a target population within the required age range.

1.6. The Contractor shall implement New Hampshire's System of Care to serve
many different kinds of emotional, behavioral, and mental health needs of

children, including providing more intensive, focused, high-quality residential
treatment for those with the most significant, acute behavioral health needs
when required.

1.7. The Contractor shall ensure services are provided to all New Hampshire

eligible individuals defined in Section 1.6 and shall prioritize services first for

these Individuals before accepting out of state individuals who are not identified

as New Hampshire residents, but who need this level of care.

1.8. The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment services: o,
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1.8.1. Shall be licensed and certified. Those that are not currently certified,
licensed and accredited, shall complete these requirements within 6

months from contract approval, unless otherwise agreed upon by the
Department.

1.8.2. Shall comply with all federal, and stale laws, regulations, and rules,
as follows, but are not limited to:

1.8.2.1. RSA170-E:

1.8.2.2. RSA 170-G:8:

1.8.2.3. RSA126-U:

1.8.2.4. RSA 135-F:

I.Q.2.5. He-C 4001;

1.8.2.6. He-C 6350; and

1.8.2.7. He-C 6420.

1.8.3. If not located in New Hampshire, shall comply with all federal and
state laws, regulations and rules of their state. In addition,
Contractors shall follow:

1.8.3.1. RSA126-U;

1.8.3.2. He-C 6350; and

1.8.3.3. He-C 6420.

1.8.4. Shall be accredited by the Joint Commission, Council on
Accreditation (COA), or Commission on Accreditation of
Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF) for Levels 1 (optional), 2, 3, and 4.

1.8.5. Shall ensure clinical and medical residential treatment services align

with accreditation and the level of care requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall accommodate visits of the DCYF staff. Juvenile Probation
' and Parole Officer (JPPO), or Child Protective Service Worker (CPSW).

1.10. In the event of a conflict between applicable federal and state laws and rules
the Contractor shall follow the most prescriptive laws and rules.

1.11. Staffing, Training and Development
1.11.1. Talent Strategy

1.11.1.1. The Contractor shall develop, implement, and maintain a

creative and effective talent strategy to recruit, train, and

retain staff, in order to ensure staff are committed and

trained in providing high quality treatment and outcomes

for individuals.

1.11.2. Staffing Ratios

1.11.2.1. The Contractor shall provide a comprehensive staffing
model corresponding to each Level of Care that n^eets or

M-
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exceeds accreditation standards and safety standards for

the needs of the individuals and staff to ensure the quality

of services is not compromised.

1.11.2.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department immediately,
by phone or email when any of the staff falios fall below
the recommended levels and provide a plan for
Department review that describes strategies to:

1.11.2.2.1. Ensure individual and staff safety is

maintained at all times.

1.11.2.2.2. Ensure quality of services is not

compromised.

1.11.2.2.3. Recruit staff to fill those positons as quickly

as possible to minimize how long the
positions are vacant.

1.11.3. Staff Training and Development

1.11.3.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement staff training

to on board and retain staff to meet all requirements of

applicable licensing, accreditation standards, and

effective treatment and indicate the timeframes for

training.

1.11.3.2. The training program shall be a comprehensive schedule
that support orientation, ongoing training, refreshers and
annual training.

1.11.3.3. The Contractor shall ensure all new staff complete

required training prior to being counted within the staff
supervision ratio

1.11.3.4. The Contractor shall develop and implement staff training

that includes but is not limited to the:

1.11.3.4.1. Trauma model and other evidence-based

practices utilized in treatment and

incorporate applicable concepts and

strategies.

1.11.3.4.2. Clinical Evidence-Based Practices used to

deliver the residential treatment services.-

1.11.3.5. De-escalation and restraint model which supports the

limited use of restrains or seclusion in accordance with

RSA 126-U and aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©.
•OS

M-
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1.11.3.6. The Contractor shall develop and implement training for

staff, Individuals and their families on Family and Youth

Engagement, which includes but is not limited to:

1.11.3.6.1. Working with the Department's Division of
Children. Youth, and Families to provide.

Better Together with birth parents for
clinicians, fannily workers or like roles and^
other staff who would be working with

families within the first year of this

Agreement.

1.11.3.6.2. Working with the University of New

Hampshire Institute on^Disability to provide

Renew Training for programs which focus on

youth fourteen (14) and older whose

permanency plan is Another Planned

Permanent Living Arrangement (APPLA) or
Independent Living programs.

1.11.3.7. The Contractor shall ensure all staff who interact with the

individuals' and their families are trained in the trauma

model regardless of whether or not they are responsible
for supervision, clinical, medical, or educational services.

1.12. Collaborative Care

1.12.1. The Contractor shall work in partnership with CME and CAT

Contractors to ensure individuals are referred, admitted, discharged,

and transitioned in a timely manner and in alignment with the

individual's clinical needs.

1.12.2. The Contractor shall work with the Department's CME Contractors

regarding care coordination, discharge planning, and transitional
support to a more appropriate form of care or home and community
settings, and aftercare services.

1.12.3. The Contractor shall accept referrals based on the CAT Level of Care
Recommendations and work with the Department's CAT Contractor

to receive the individual's comprehensive assessment for treatment

to incorporate the CAT's identified short and long term individual
treatment goals.

1.12.4. The Contractor shall maintain clear communication with all providers,

the multidisciplinary team, and especially with the individual and their
child and family team. /—o»
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1.13. Admissions, Discharges and Transitions

1.13.1. The Contractor .shall accept the standardized referral form that is

developed by the Department.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall rapidly make acceptance decisions within

seven (7) calendar days from receiving the referrals and make
accommodations to admit the individual into the residential treatment

services.

1.13.3. The Contractor shall ask and provide the individual with an

opportunity to identify any gender nonconforming or identification as

lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender. or intersex, for the purposes of:

1.13.3.1. Making housing, bed.'program, education, for clients with
the goal of keeping all clients safe and free from atDuse;

1.13.3.2. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex clients
shall not be assigned in particular room other

assignments' solely on the basis of such identification

status;

1.13.3.2.1. Intake Coordinator shall consider

assignment of transgender or intersex

clients on a case-by-case basis when

deciding where to assign the client for room

and other assignments as applicable, with

the goal of ensuring the client's health and

safety;

1.13.3.2.2. A transgender or intersex client's own views

with respect to the client's safety will be

given serious consideration;

1.13.4. For individuals other than those outlined in Section 1.17.5., the

Contractor shall appropriately assign the individual a room based on

needs of the population, the culture of the,milieu and the clinical

needs presented by the individual at the time of admission.

1.13.5. The Contractor may accept individuals into residential treatment

services in limited cases without the residential treatment level of

care determination if there is an emergency that is supported by the
Department.

1.13.5.1. If after the emergency admission is made and if it is
determined that the individual's level of care is different

from the residential treatment level of care, then the

Contractor will work with the child and family tpam to
M-
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support a transition to a more appropriate level of care

which aligns with the needs of the individual.

1.13.6. Discharge and Transition

1.13.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's needs are

satisfied, the individual does not affect other individuals

being served, and the individual is not discharged
because they demonstrate behaviors described in the

target population.

1.13.6.2. The Contractor shall provide active residential treatment

services and treatment for the individual from the time of

admission until the time the individual is able to transition

successfully to a more appropriate residential treatment

level of care or to their family and home and community.

1.13.6.3. In order to provide individuals with successful and

supported transitions, the Contractor shall work with the

individuals family, caregivers, community behavioral

health providers. DCYF, CME, peer support providers,

school district and the next treatment providers as follows

but is not limited to:

1.13.6.3.1. Inviting CME staff working with the individual

to treatment team meetings."

1.13.6.3.2. Translating the treatment and skills

developed by the individual during their

course of treatment.

1.13.6.3.3. Sharing and transferring pertinent
information prior to discharge about

progress and improvements made by the

individual to ensure continuity of treatment in

the community

1.13.6.3.4. Inviting CME .staff, child and family team to

participate in treatment planning and
discharge/transition planning.

1.13.6.4; The Contractor shall choose to discharge when a child is
in an acute psychiatric hospital for more than 7 days.

1.13.7. The Contractor shall complete a comprehensive discharge and

transition plan, which includes a strong focus on family and caregiver

education and involvement in the individual's aftercare in order to

prioritize episodic lengths of slay and for the purpose ̂ oihe'
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individual's successful transition from residential treatment to home,

school, and community as soon as possible.

1.13.8. The Contractor shall start discharge and transition planning on the

individual's day of admission by coordinating planning with the

individuals, their families and community-based service providers.

1.13.9. The Contractor shall ensure the individual's treatment plan includes

discharge plans and coordination of services to ensure appropriate, ,

reasonable and safe discharge plans for the continued treatment of

the individual's condition and continued care with the individual, their

family, school and community upon discharge.

1.13.10. The Contractor shall ensure families and caregivers are an integral
part of the Treatment Team and Child, Family and Permanency

Team, and closely collaborate with the referent and CME to build

attainable transition plans into adulthood that support the individual

in their next steps in life.

1.13.11. The Contractor shall hold a bed and not eject or discharge an
individual in the event of a temporary psychiatric hospitalization or

some other event that would require the child to be away from the

program for no more than seven (7) calendar days. The Contractor
shall accept the individual back into the program within seven (7)

calendar days to resume their course of treatment. The Coritractor
may hold the bed longer than seven (7) calendar days if approved by
DHHS. Unless approved after seven (7) bed hold days, the vendor

shall discharge the child from the program.

1.13.12. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other key

partners to develop discharge policies and practices that include no
reject from being admitted to and no eject from residential treatment.
Unplanned discharges from residential treatment will only be allowed
by the Department in extreme circumstances of violence, acute
psychiatric care needs, arrests and acute medical care needs.
This does not prevent a Contractor, referral or Child and Family team
from a mutual decision of a planned transition to an alternative

setting.

1.13.13. The Contractor shall ensure in all cases of termination of services

the right to appeal and the appeal process pursuant to He-C 200 are
explained to the client.

1.13.14. The Contractor may deny admission to a program if any of

the following circumstances are applicable:

RFP-2021-DBH-12-RESID-14 WebsterHouse Contraclor Inllials
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1

1.13.14.1. There are no openings at the time of referral;
1.13.14.2. The age of the referred child is greatly different than the

current milieu;

1.13.14.3. There are staffing concems at the program that would
require a hold on new admissions;

1.13.14.4. There are specialty Care needs revealed during their
course of treatment;

1..13.14.5. There were referrals made to specialty care programming
when specialty care services were not a match;

1.13.14.6. The individual's needs fall well outside, the program

model;

1.13.15. The Contractor may request a discharge for individuals from a
residential treatment program if any of the following circumstances
are applicable:

.. 1.13.15.1. New information has indicated that the child requires
specialty care that the current program does not offer;

1.13.15.2. The Child has increased aggression that has resulted in
excessive property damage or physical harm to staff and
self and is not improving over time, indicating a higher
level of care is needed; and

1.13.15.3. The child's level of mental health symptoms have
exceeded the level of care being provided at the program

and an appropriate transition plan has been determined.
1.13.16. Contractor shall deliver treatment and provide services to accepted

referrals until the child's level of need is reduced and their treatment
goals have been met.

1.13.17. The Department will monitor denials, admissions, and discharges as
part of continuous quality assurance and program outcomes and
reserves the right to review and approve or deny denials.

1.14. Restraint and Seclusion Practices

1.14.1. The Contractor shall comply with RSA 126-U.
1.14.2. The Contractor shall utilize a de-escalation and restraint training

which supports the limited use of restraint or seclusion in RSA 126-
U and aligns with the Six Core Strategies ©.

1.14.3. The Contractor shall develop and implement policies and iriethods
to reduce and eliminate use of restraint and seclusion practices by
incorporating the Six Core Strategies for Reducing Seclusion and

RFP-2021-OBH-l2-RESiO-14 Webster House Contractor Irtitials,
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Restraint Use ©, for Department review, including but not limited to

the following:

1.14.3.1. Therapeutic Crisis Intervention (TCI),

1.14.3.2. Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI),

1.14.3.3. Professional Crisis Management (PCM).

1.14.3.4. Mandt,

1.14.3.5. Handle with Care; or

1.14.3.6. Another model approved by the Department
1 14.4. The Contractor shall work with the Department and other partners

towards a zero restraint practice.

1.14.5. The Contractor shall develop restraint and seclusion policies, and

develop a method of review that will support the reduction and
elimination of restraint and seclusion.

1.15. Children's System of Care Values

1.15.1. The Contractor shall provide services that align with the following
System of Care values:

1.15.1.1. Youth Voice and Engagement

1.15.1.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure residential

treatment services and treatment are youth

driven as required by RSA 135-F by:
1.15.1.1.1.1. Having the ' Individual

determine the types and mix of

services and supports needed

using their strengths and

needs.

1.-15.1.1.1.2. Having the individual make

decisions about treatment

priorities and goals to be

included in the treatment

plans.

1.15.1.1.1.3. Using Frequent clear and
concise communication free of

jargon that promotes respect

and that individuals feel valued

and heard.

1.15.1.1.1.4. Having an environment that is
welcoming, comforting and
comfortable for all ages

■ M
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1.15.1.1.2. The Contractor shall incorporate a youth
voice into program design and delivery,

practice, and clinical services which include

providing youth opportunities such as;

1.15.1.1.2.1. Facilitating their own treatment
team meetings to the degree
that would be both productive

and clinically appropriate.

1.15.1.1.2.2. Voicing their concerns or

grievances about program
policies and procedures, and

participating in any reform

efforts.

1.15.1.1.2.3. Running leadership-groups or
programs such as student

council or youth advisory

boards.

1.15.1.1.2.4. Developing a youth peer

mentor model.

1.15.1.2. Family Voice and Engagement

1.15.1.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure residential

treatment services and treatment are family

driven as required by RSA 135-F in order to

improve treatment outcomes by:

1.15.1.2.1.1. Having the family determine

the types and mix of services

and supports needed using the

individual's strengths and

needs.

1.15.1.2.1.2. Having the family in decision

making about treatment

priorities and goals to be

included in the ' individual's

treatment plans.

1.15.1.2.1.3. Using frequent clear and

concise communication free of

jargon that promotes respect

f  D#
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and parents feels valued and

heard.

1.15.1.2.1.4. Having an environment that is

welcoming, and has space for

families that is natural, inviting,
and comforting.

1.15.1.2.2. The Contractor's engagement with the farnlly

shall include'but not be limited to:

1.15.1.2.2.1. Encouraging families to be full

participants in their children's

ongoing care including
participation in ' clinical

appointments.

1.15.1.2.2.2. Welcoming natural support

networks and professionals as

a support to the family and
youth.

1.15.1.2.2.3. Having flexible visitation

policies that promote face-to-

face contact, supported

visitation as well as technology

that prioritizes the individual's

connections.

1.15.1.2.2.4. Encouraging parents and

family to remain responsible

for the care of, their children

including transportation when

it is necessary, feasible, and

appropriate.

1.16. Cultural and Linguistic Diversity

1.16.1. The Contractor shall deliver services that meet the cultural and

linguistic needs of the diverse populations by;
1.16.1.1. Having services reflect the cultural, racial and ethnical

•  and linguistic needs of the population.
1.16.1.2. Understanding the family's and their community's values

and cultures.

— 0<
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1.16.1.3. Attempting to hire individuals to provide services who are
representative and knowledgeable of these values and

cultures.

1.16.2. The Contractor shall regularly collect and review Race, Ethnicity and
Language (REAL) and Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity or
Expression (SOGIE) data to identify' health disparities and make
necessary system changes in partnership with individuals and

families to address these health disparities as necessary.

1.16.3. The Contractor's staff shall attend Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Services (CLAS) training provided by the Department.

1.16.4. The Contractor shall complete an organizational assessment to

identify areas for improvement.

1.16.5. The Contractor shall make CLAS plans available to the Department
for review to ensure the standards are being met and to ensure

continuous improvement.

1.16.6. The Contractor's staff shall have ongoing participation in facilitated
conversations on culture and diversity to explore their own values,

beliefs and;traditions, and the implications they have on their work.

1.17. Multidisciplinary Approach

1.17.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment in a cohesive

manner to meet the needs of the individual and family by using a

multidisciplinary team approach, which includes team members from
disciplines at the program, such as but not limited to:
1.17.1.1. Residential

1.17.1.2. Education

1.17.1.'3. Clinical Medical

1.17.2. The Contractor's multidisciplinary team at the program must prioritize

communication with the child and family and the team members

external to the residential treatment program.

1.17.3. The Contractor shall maintain clear communication with all team

members across all disciplines.

1.18. Treatment Settings

1.18.1. The Contractor shall provide treatment settings that are:

1.18.1.1. Nurturing.

1.18.1.2. Family-friendly.

1.18.1.3. Provide for normalcy.

1.18.1.4. Approximate community-based settings in as many ways
as possible. /—m
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1.18.1.5. Safe.

1.18.1.6. Predictable and consistent across education, residential

and clinical services.

1.18.2. The Contractor shall provide services at the location(s) approved by
the Department unless a plan for an alternative location and

transition plan has been approved.

1.19. Targeted and Active Treatment

1.19.1. The Contractor shall prioritize treatment goals based on the CAT, the

Child and Family team, and the expertise of the clinical program.

1.19.2. I The Contractor's residential treatment multidisciplinary team and the
Child and Family Team shall complete a treatment plan for each
individual following the completion of a psychosocial assessment,

which shall include;

1.19.2.1. Goals and objectives that are based on the CAT report,
recommended by the multidisciplinary team, and child

and family team and that are most important for the
individual to achieve successful discharge and transition

to their family, home and community;

1.19.2.2. Actionable needs identified in the CAT final report and
CANS which shall be addressed upon admission and

prioritized throughout the course of treatment; and

1.19.2.3. Integrated program of therapies, activities, and
experiences designed to meet the treatment goals.

1.19.3. The Contractor shall work in partnership with the child's sending and
receiving (if applicable) school district to assure the individual's
education needs are met and there are no gaps in educational

services

1.19.4. As determined by the treatment plan, the Contractor shall provide
targeted and active treatment seven (7) days per week. Treatment
may include as follows but is not limited to:

1.19.4.1. Twenty-four (24) services,

1.19.4.2. Direct care, supervision, positive behavior management,

and supportive services for daily living and safety,

1.19.4.3. Family engagement.

1.19.4.4. Consultation with other professionals, including case
managers, primary care professionals, community-based
mental health providers, school staff, or other support

planners as often as needed,
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1.19.4.5. Coordination of education services, and/or

1.19.4.6. Additional services based on the Level of Care identified

and the program model

1.19.5. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services which

include consideration for:

1.19.5.1. A carefully designed residential environment of care that
promotes trauma informed care and youth driven

services.

1.19.5.2. The age and developmental level of the population.

1.19.5.3. Young adults who are empowered to safely participate in
treatment decisions.

1.19.5.4. Specific needs of DCYF-involved children, noting the

trauma caused by neglect, abuse and removal, and/or

Involvement with the juvenile justice system.

1.20. Trauma Informed Care

1.20.1. The Contractor shall understand, recognize, and appropriately

respond to trauma In administering treatment and' services by
utilizing the model identified in Section 2 to provide trauma informed

care that supports staff and caregivers with the skills to aid and

engage Individuals

■  1.20.2. The contractor's trauma model must adhere to the Department's

Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 6 key principles of

a trauma informed approach:

1.20.2.1. Safety

1.20.2.2. Trustworthiness and Transparency

1.20.2.3. Peer Support

1.20.2.4. Collaboration and Mutuality

1.20.2.5. Empowerment, Voice and Choice

1.20.2.6. Cultural, Historical, and Gender Issues

1.20.3. The Contractor shall embed and sustain trauma awareness,

knowledge and skills into the Contractor's organizational culture,

practices and policies.

1.20.4. The Contractor shall provide a trauma informed model that

demonstrates sensitivity to individuals who's needs prevent them

from living with their families during the course of treatment.

1.20.5. The Contractor shall use this model and seek approval from the
Department is using a different model.
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1.20.6. The contractor shall submit documentation upon request of the

Department that demonstrates the implementation of the trauma
model.

1.21. Evidence Based Practices

1.21.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receive the highest quality of
care and the best possible treatment outcomes by using evidence-
based practices to treat and manage the individual's mental, health

needs, which may include, but not limited to:

1.21.1.1. Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy,

1.21.1.2. Cognitive Behavior Therapy

1.21.1.3. Dialectic Behavior Therapy

1.21.1.4. Motivational Interviewing

1.21.2. The Contractor shall ensure clinical practices are drawn from
systematic, empirical studies that draw on observation or experiment
and rigorous data analyses that are adequate to rest stated
hypotheses justify conclusions, and/or randomized control trials.

1^21.3. The Contractor shall explore and implement practices that are
adaptive, flexible, and address the needs of the population in a
targeted way.

1.21.4. Contractors shall provide notice to the Department when they are
implementing a new Evidence Based Practice.

1.22. Clinical and Medical Standards

1.22.1. The Contractor shall provide clinical and medical services, which
align .with accreditation and the level of care requirements.

1.22.2. The Contractor shall employ clinical professionals that ensure
effective treatment outcomes.

1.22.3. The Contractor shall provide clinical treatment services in a
frequency to quickly stabilize the individual's symptoms and to meet
each individual's clinical needs.

1.22.4. Ttie Contractor shall explore new or promising clinical and
evidenced-based models over time.

1.22.5. The Contractor shall.have personnel trained in CANS and those
personnel shall conduct the follpw-up CANS when other appropriate
entities such as the CME have not conducted the CANS. ^

1.22.6. The contractor shall assure that treatment is clear across the

program and clear to the multidisciplinary team.
1.23. Aftercare
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1.23.1. The Contractor shall provide aftercare for Levels 2, 3, and 4 Unless

that program qualifies as CBAT or ICBAT.
1.23.2. The Contractor shall coordinate and work with the Department's CME

Contractors to provide six (6) months of aftercare services for an

individual who is being discharged from the residential treatment and
transitioned to their home and community. The Contractor shall work

with the CME and provide aftercare services which may include but

are not limited to the following activities:

1.23.2.1. Consultation with both the family, service providers and

CME.

1.23.2.2. Attendance at any child and family team meetings which

can be in person or virtually.

1.23.2.3. Phone calls with the family as needed.

1.23.3. The Contractor shall make referrals to the Department's CME

Contractors for any individual who is not involved in DCYF and who is

being discharged from the residential treatment and transitioned their
home and community. The Contractor shall work with the

Department's CME Contractor or other aftercare services providing

aftercare services with the goal of reducing recidivism and reentry into

the residential treatment and other levels of residential treatment.

1.24. Medication Procedures

1.24.1. The Contractor shall implement medication procedures in accordance

with applicable federal laws, and rules.

1.25. Policies and Procedures

1.25.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement written policies and
procedures governing all aspects of its operation and services
provided including but not limited to:

1.25.1.1. Those required in 1.8.2 and 1.8,3.

1.25.1.2. Written policies and procedures to include a Code of
Ethics, which addresses the Contractor and all staff, as

well as a mechanism for reporting unethical conduct:

1.25.1.3. A written policy and procedures mandating zero tolerance

toward all forms of sexual abuse and sexual harassment

and outlining the Contractor's approach to preventing,
detecting, and responding to such conduct;

1.25.1.4. A staffing plan that provides for adequate levels of staffing
to protect residents against sexual abuse;
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1.25.1.5. A written policy ensuring, an administrative or criminal

investigation is completed for all allegations of sexual

abuse and sexual harassment;

1.25.1.6. Progressive staff discipline, leading to administrative

discharge;

1.25.1.7. Reporting and appealing staff grievances;

1.25.1.8. Reporting erriployee injuries

1.25.1.9. Client rights, grievance and appeals policies and

procedures:

1.25.1.10. Policies and procedure if the program conducts urine
specimen collection., as applicable, that;

1.25.1.10.1. Ensures that the collection is conducted in a

manner which preserves client privacy as
much as possible and is accordance with

New Hampshire Administrative Rules; and

1.25.1.10.2. Policies and procedures intended to

minimize falsification, including, but not

limited to:

1.25.1.10.2.1. Temperature testing; and
1.25.1.10.2.2. Observations by same-sex

staff members.

1.25.1.11. Procedures for the protection of individual's records that

. govern use of records, storage, removal, conditions for

release of information and compliance with 42 OPR. Part

2 and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Act(HIPAA);and

1.25.1.12. Procedures related to quality assurance and quality

improvement.

. 1.25.2. The Contractor shall have policies and procedures to implement a

comprehensive client record system, in either paper or electronic form,
or both, that communicates information within the client'record of each

client served in a manner that is:

1.25.2.1. Organized

1.25.2.2. Easy to read and understand;

1.25.2.3. Complete, containing all the parts; and

1.25.2.4. Up-to-date,
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1.25.3. The Contractor shall have policies and procedures regarding
collections of client fees, collections from private or public insurance,

and collections from other payers responsible for the client's finances.

1.25.4. The Contractor shall develop, define and implement processes and

procedures for denial of service.

1.25.5. The Contractor shall be responsible for providing the following to any
'  client or the referral who is denied services:-

1.25.5.1. Informing the client of the reason for denial:

1.25.5.2. Assisting the client in identifying or accessing appropriate
available treatment;

1.25.5.3. Maintaining a detailed record of the information or

assistance provided.

1.25.6. The Contractor shall establish policies,and procedures establishing,
maintaining, and storing, in a secure and confidential manner, current

personnel files for staff, contracted staff, volunteers or student interns.
The Contractor shall ensure personnel files are .maintained in
accordance with personnel requirements.

1.26. Residential Treatment Services Start up and Implementation for Tier 3

and Tier 4 Programs

1.26.1. The Contractor shall participate in a kick-off meeting- with the
Department vi/ithin thirty (30) calendar days of this Agreement's
Effective Date to review contract timelines, scope, and deliverables.

1.26.2. The Contractor shall participate in bi-weekly (every other week)
telephone calls with the Department to review the status of the
development and implementation for the residential treatment, for at
least the first six (6) months of the Agreement. The Contractor shall:
1.26.2.1.' Provide a written bi-weekly progress report in advance of

the telephone call that summarizes:

1.26.2.1.1. Key work performed;

1.26.2.1.2. Encountered and foreseeable key issues

and problems and provides a solution or
mitigation strategy for each.

1.26.2.1.3. Scheduled work for the upcoming week.

1.26.2.2. Provide a report summarizing the results of the status

telephone call.

1.26.3. The Contractor shall participate in implementation and operational site
visits and review of individual's files on a schedule provided by the
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Department. All Agreement deliverables, programs, and activities shall
be subject to review during this time. The Contractor shall:
1.26.3.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for

monitoring of Agreement compliance requirements.

1.26.3.2. Ensure the Department is provided vwth access that
includes but is not limited to:

1.26.3.2.1. Data.

1.26.3.2.2. Financial records.

1.26.3.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work

sites/locations/work spaces and associated

facilities.

1.26.3.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work

sites/locations/work spaces and associated

facilities.

1.26.3.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor
principals and staff.

1.26.3.2.6. Individual files.

2. Residential Treatment Levels of Care

2.1. The Contractor shall provide the residential treatment level(s) of care as
defined in this Section 2.

2.2. The Contractor shall have or obtain certification for residential treatment
levels of care by the Department within six (6) months of the Agreement's
effective date and maintain said certification and re-apply for certification
annually, in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6350
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential Treatment Programs.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide up to the number of beds at the identified
location for each of the residential treatment levels of care outlined in the
table in Section 2.3.2.

2.3.1. In the event that the Contractor changes their physical location where
the residential treatment services are provided, the Contractor shall
notify the Department within 30 days prior to the move and provide a
transition plan.

2.3.2 Resic entlal Treatment Levels of Care and Number of Contracted Beds

Level of Care

Vendors

Name of the
Program

Location:

City/Town and
State

Maximum Number

of Contracted Beds
Shared Beds
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Reserved

Level of Care 2.

Intermediate Treatment

Webster

House

Manchester, NH 19 N/A

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

2.4. Reserved

2.5. Reserved

2.6. Level of Care 2, Intermediate Treatment

2.6.1. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment services Level of
Care 2, Intermediate Treatrnent designed for individuals who have
been adjudicated, abused or neglected, delinquent and/or in need of
behavioral health services with the goal of providing a combination
of:

2.6.1.1. Residential treatment and community based services
based on the individual's unique needs.

2.6.1.2. Professionals, onside and access to professionals in the
community to coordinate the provisions of the treatment
plan.

2.6.2. The Contractor shall provide services to children, youths and young
adults at this level of care twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7)
days a week, in a structured, therapeutic milieu environment that
Includes but is not limited to:

2.6.2.1. Safe environment

2.6.2.2. Supervision dependent on the need of the individual and
program model.

2.6.2.3. Community Supports
2.6.2.4. Access to public school education or alternative approved

. educational setting

2.6.2.5. Specialized social services
2.6.2.6. Behavior management.

2.6.2.7. Recreation

2.6.2.8. Clinical Services

2.6.2.9. Family. Services

2.6.2.10. Vocational Training ,
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2.6.2.11. Medication Monitoring, as clinically indicated
2.6.2.12. Crisis Intervention

2.6.3. Staffing

2.6.3.1. , The Contractor shall comply with the staffing requirements
in New Hampshire Administrative Rule Part He-C 6350
Certification for Payment Standards for Residential
Treatment Programs and Part He-C 6420 Medicaid
Covered Services.

2.6.3.2. Unless otherwise approved by a waiver by the Department
for the staffing ratios shown in Section 3, the Contractor

shall maintain the required staffing ratios as follows:
2.6.3.2.1. Direct Care Staff/Milieu

2.6.3.2.1.1. Milieu: Day staff ratio is 1:4. and
more intensive ratios are

allowable based on program
population or program needs.

2.6.3.2.1.2. Awake overnight: -1:8 and a
minimum of two staff available

for programs and position may
float on campus or within
buildings.

2.6.3.2.1.3. Clinical Services: Access 24/7,

1:10 when delivered onsite and

some clinical services may be
provided off site for individual
and family therapy with
community providers.

2.6.3.2.1.4. Family Worker: Case Manager
1:8

2.6.3.2.1.5. A lower ratio must be used if the
clinician is fulfilling- multiple
roles i.e. family worker as well
as primary clinician.

'  2.6.3.2.1.6. Have resources to allow for all

children to.access clinical within

the program but also allow for
access to community if
appropriate.

2.6.3.2.2. Medical Care

2.6.3.2.2.1. Clinical and Nursing: available
24/7 and based on client needs.
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2.6.3.2.2.2. Ensure access to

prescriber/psychiatric services,
psychiatry either when needed
through Community or if
needed through
staffing/contracting.

2.6.3.3. The Contractor shall work with the Department to assure
that they are meeting the requirements of QRTP and

Family First Prevention Services Act (FFSPA) or

accreditation. Should it be determined that the level of

nursing or clinical does not meet the requirement of

FFSPA or accreditation the Contractor shall work with the

Department to meet the requirements.
2.6.4. Supported Visits

2.6.4.1. The Contractor may provide facilitated face-to-face
supported visitation to the individual and their family at the
Contractor's residential treatment setting.

2.6.4.2. The Contractor may provide supported visits in
appropriate space(s), which is safe, feels welcoming, ■
inviting, and natural, and creates a place of comfort and

connectedness for all ages being served In the residential
treatment setting.

t

2.6.5. Educational Services

2.6.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure the individual is connected to

the most appropriate educational services or transitional,

services as determined by their treatment team and
sending school district, when applicable.

2.6.5.2. The Contractor shall connect the individual to the

individual's local community school or to the individual's

school in their sending district when appropriate.

2.6.5.3. The Contractor may provide onslte or subcontract with
Department approval a nonpublic and special educational

program and/or an approved online educational curriculum

approved by the State of New Hampshire Department of
Education

2.6.5.4. The Contractor shall connect the individual to higher
education for those who have graduated high school or
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supporting individuals pursing higher education or
independent living with the following but not limited to:
2.6.5.4.1. Transitional Services.

2.6.5.4.2. Vocational Services.

2.6.5.4.3. Forma! Education.
2.6.5.4.4. Training Programs.
2.6.5.4.5. Independent Living Skills.

2.6.5.5. The Contractor shall ensure the individual continues

relationships with other important Individuals and peers,

and remains connected" to their home, community and

school.

■  2.6.5.6. The Contractor shall work with the individual's sending

school and receiving district to ensure their'educational
needs are met. \A/hen doing so. the Contractor shall obtain
Release of Information signed by the individual, or

■  individual's parent or guardian.

2.6.5.7. The Contractor shall retain client student records in
accordance with New Hampshire regulations.

2.6.5.8. Upon client discharge from residential treatment services,
the Contractor shall provide copies of the individual's
records of education and progress to the individual's
sending school.

2.6.6. Transportation

2.6.6.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals have
transportation services to and from services and
appointments for the following:
2.6.6.1.1. Court Hearings.
2.6.6.1.2." Medical/dental/behavioral {not provided by the

Department's contracted Medicaid Managed
Care organization (MCO) or if not appropriate
to be provided by the MCO).

2.6.6.1.3. School transportation (for what is not provided
by an individual education plan (lEP)).

2.6.6.1.4. Recreation (clubs, sports, work).
2.6.6.2. The Contractor shall coordinate or provide such

transportation as follows, including but not limited to:
2.6.6.2.1. Working with parents or guardians to have the

parent or guardian provide transportation for
their child, youth or young adult, when it is safe
and appropriate for a parent or guardian to
provide such transportation.
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2.6.6.3.

2.6.6.2.2. Working with any of the Department's
applicable .Medicald Managed Care
Contractors for transportation to Medicaid
appointments.

2.6.6.2.3. Use of Contractor-owned vehicles in
accordance with Section 2.3.3 below.

In the event the Contractor uses a Contractor-owned

vehlcle(s). the Contractor shall;

2.6.6.3.1. Comply with all applicable Federal and Slate
Department of Transportation and Department
of Safety regulations.

2.6.6.3.2. Ensure that all vehicles are registered
pursuant to New Hampshire Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500 and inspected in accordance
with New Hampshire Administrative Rule Saf-
C 3200, and are in good working order.

2.6.6.3.3. Ensure all drivers are licensed in accordance
"with New Hampshire Administrative Rules,
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing, and Saf-C 1800'
Commercial drivers licensing, as applicable.

2.6.6.3.4. Ensure vehicle insurance coverage shall be in
amounts that are in keeping with industry
standards and that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum
amounts of which shall be not less than

$500,000 for automobile liability to include
bodily injury and property damage to one
person for any one accident, and $750,000,
for bodily injury and property damage to two or
more persons for any one accident, including
coverage for all owned, hired, or non-owned
vehicles, as applicable.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

3. Specific Residential Treatment Program Requirements
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3.1. The Contractor shall provide the following staffing model(s) and/or

specialty services for each of their defined levels of care.

3.1.1. Should the Contractor have variations in their personnel and/or in their

specialty care, if any, in this Section 3, the Contractor shall submit a

plan in writing to the Department to come into compliance or an

alternative plan for Department for approval to meet the intent of the
positions, which were negotiated. The Department will provide

approval in writing.

3.2. Reserved

3.3. Reserved

3.4. Level of Care 2, Intermediate Treatment

3.4.1. Webster House

3.4.1.1. The Contractor shall maintain the following staffing Ratios

for this level of care as outlined in the table below:

Title Position

Section 2

Staffing
Requlremer>ts

Ratio

Department
Approved
Variation

Direct Care Isl shift Milieu 1:4 1:6

Direct Care 2nd shift Milieu 1:4 1:6

Direct Care Overnight Awake overnight:.
1:8; minimum
2 staff available

for programs

1:10

Clinical Ratio 1:10 1:20

Family Worker 1:8 Not allocated

(see case
manager)

Family Therapist Not required Not allocated

Transportation Not Required Not allocated

Case Manager See Family
Worker

1:10

Board certified behavioral analyst
(BCBA)

Not required Not allocated

Nursing Staff Medical Care:

Clinical and
Nursing
24/7av3ilable,

1 position

^  OS
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based on client

needs

Psychiatrist Not required Not allocated

Psychologist Not required Not allocated

Medical Doctor, APRN Not required Not allocated

• Not required
indicates that a

specific
position/personnel
was not required
or as a ratio '

3.4.1.2. The Contractor shall provide residential treatment

services for individuals with the following specialty needs,

to be determined by an independent assessor, which
includes, but is not limited to:

3.4.1.2.1. Maternity;

3.5.

3.6.

.3.7.

Reserved

Reserved

Reserved

4.

3.8. Reserved

3.9. Reserved

3.10. Reserved

Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which

has been executed by the parties.

4.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement
In accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security

Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
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5. Reporting Requirements

5.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to ensure compliance with the
federal requirements, the goals of the System of Care, and successful

delivery of the scope of work by reporting, at a minimum, on the data in Table
A Key Output and Process Data as follows:

Table A

Key Output and Process Data

The data below shall be for all individuals who are connected to. referred by or funded by
DHHS unless otherwise requested and identified by DHHS.-

Number of children currently placed In the program

Percent of contracted beds currently used

Turnover information (e.g., total number of staff, how many left, and reason why)

Number of days the program does not meet contractually required staffing ratios

Number of accepted referrals/new admissions (and location prior to admission)

Number of rejected referrals

Number of children discharged (and the reason for discharge)

Demographic information for each child (e.g., age, gender/sex, DCYF involvement,
race/ethnicity, primary language preference, identification with sex not assigned on birth
certification, sexual orientation)

Key dates per child: referral, acceptance, admission, discharge

Number of family planning team treatment meetings (and caregiver, youth attendance)

Number of treatment meetings led by youth

Number of contacts with family/caregivers

Percent of children placed outside of their school district

CANS score Information per child (from CANS system report - e.g., score # at referral, at

discharge)
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Number of restraints

Number of seclusions

Discharge locations

Whether or not the CME was involved

5.2. The contractor shall provide any interpretation, justification or analysis of the

data provided in the report referenced in 4.1

5.3. The Contractor shall provide reports monthly with any change In
programming, clinical treatment, any changes in evidenced base practices or

staffing ratios that can impact the quality of services delivered and individual

and staffing safety.

5.4. The Contractor shall submit data in accordance with RSA 126-U which

includes but is not limited to

5.4.1. Incidents of RSA 126-U;10

5.4.2. New Hampshire Programs Monthly totals .of all children during

residential time, regardless of referral source

5.4.3. Total number of restraints

5.4.4. Total number of seclusions

5.5. The Contractor shall submit data and reports based on the request of the

Department in the manner, format and frequency requested by the

Department which shall include but is not limited to:

5.5.1. Incident reports of

5.5.1.1. Restraint

5.5.1.2. Seclusion

5.5.1.3. Serious injury both including and not Including restraint

and seclusion

5.5.1.4. Suicide attempt

5.6. The Contractor shall provide data monthly and work with the data team to

provide any clarity or .correction of the material.
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5.7. The Department reserves the right to establish additional data reporting and
deliverable requirements throughout the duration of the Agreement.

Performance Measures6.

6.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance and evaluate program
results based on the key performance metrics in Table B as follows:

Table B

Cjilcfiory* ,  '' ikcvipcrformancc luctncs: |

Referral

• % of referrals lhat receive a response to the referral source within 24 hours [e.g.,

email or phone call on availability and next steps]

•  Median lime from referral to acceptance.

• Median time from referral to admission

Family &

youth

engagement

• % of treatment meetings where youth participates

• % oflreatmcni meetings where caregiver participates

•  Median # of contacts with family/carcgivcrs per month per child

Quality of

treatment

• % of children with improved CANS scores after 3 and 6 months (based on CANS
system report which DHHS will access)

• Median H of restraint/seclusion incidents per child and % of children with any
restraint/seclusion during treatment Slay

Transition &

discharge

•  Median length of stay; days from admission to discharge to less restrictive setting

• % children discharged to home-based selling - overall and within 30, 60, 90, 180,
and 365 days

• % of children who remain in either a lower-treatment setting OR home-based

setting afler 6 and 12 months (based on internal data which DHHS will access
through CME and DCYF system)

• % of children receiving referral to af\er-care services (e.g., Residential treatment
oversight, Fast Forward) before discharge

• % of DCYF-involved children who have achieved thcir.permancncy goal at 12

months after discharge (based on internal DCYF data which DHHS will access)

6.2. Performance Improvement
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•6.2.1. The Contractor shall particijDate in quality assurance and

improvement activities with the Department and other partners
and stakeholders to ensure that continuous performance and
program improvement contributes in a positive way to the lives of

individuals adults and their families by focusing on system level
outcomes such as:

6.2.1.1. Reduced use of psychiatric and other residential

treatment.

6.2.1.2. Reduced use of juvenile corrections and other out of

home placements.

6.2.1.3. Reduced use of emergency, departments and other

physical health services.

6.2.1.4. Reduced use of out of district placement for school.

6.2.1.5. Increased school attendance and attainment.

6.2.1.6. Increased employment for caregivers.

6.2.2. The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance and

performance improvement activities requested by the
Department, including but not limited to:

6.2.2.1. Submitting reports at a frequency defined by the

Department on Agreement compliance reports.

6.2.2.2. Providing to the Department narrative reports that

express non-child specific aggregate successes in

the program, programmatic changes made and why,

and barriers to program-success, upon request and.

frequency determined by the Department.

6.2.2.3. Attending monthly meetings focused on

performance.

6.2.2.4. Adjusting key performance metrics.

6.2.2.5. Participating in quality assurance reviews and

technical assistance site visits on alternating years. '

6.2.2.6. Participating in electronic and in-person review of

case files to gain qualitative insight into treatment and

program quality and compliance.

I M
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6.2.2.7. Participating in inspections of any of the following;

6.2.2.7.1. The facility premises.

6.2.2.7.2. Programs and services provided.
6.2.2.7.3. Records maintained by the Contractor.

6.2.2.8. Participating in-training'and technical assistance
activities as directed by the Department.

6.2.2.9. Complying with fidelity measures or processes

required for evidence-based practices or models

being utilized.

6.2.2.10. Adjusting program delivery.

6.2.2.11. Focusing on a range of performance topics that
include but are not limited to:

6.2.2.11.1. Rapid acceptance of referrals and
quick engagement with individuals and
their families, as this is critical to

ensuring children can be stabilized
and begin to have their needs

addressed as quickly as possible.

6.2.2.11.2. Reduced use of restraints/seclusion to

make progress toward the goal of
eliminating the practice.

6.2.2.11.3. Improving long-term program
outcomes by regularly monitoring
outcome goals like improving CANS
scores (i.e., increase in strengths,
decrease in needs) and successful
discharge (i.e., whether child remains
in a home-based setting after),

6.2.2.11.4. Reducing lengths of stay to ensure

that treatment is being provided
briefly,, episodically, and appropriately
at the level needed to achieve

treatment goals so children can
quickly return to home and community
settings.

f  0'
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6.2.2.11.5. Reducing staff turnover by retaining
staff, while creating space for Internal

advancement, In providing consistent,

high-quality services.

6.2.3. The Contractor shall Implement quality assurance activities to

ensure fidelity towards the evidence-based practices and trauma

Informed-model.

6.2.4. Notwithstanding paragraphs 8 and 9 of the General Provisions of

this Agreement, upon identification of deficiencies in Quality

Assurance, the Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days from the

date the Contractor is notified of the final findings, provide a

corrective action plan that includes:

6.2.4.1. Actions to be taken to correct each deficiency;

6.2.4.2. Actions to be taken to prevent the reoccurrence of

each deficiency;

6.2.4.3. A time line for implementing the actions above;
6.2.4.4. . A monitoring plan to ensure the actions above are

effective; and

6.2.4.5. A plan for reporting to the Department on progress of
implementation and effectiveness.

6.2.5. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the
Department to enhance contract management, improve results,

and adjust program delivery and policy based on successful

outcomes.

6.2.6. The Contractor shall submit periodic reports, as stipulated

between DHHS and Contractor, which include, but are not limited

to Data to support performance improvement activities, DHHS

will provide to Contractor a list of Data needed and the format of

the Data.

6.2.7. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor

agency shall provide financial information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor's services, how much

was spent per individual and what type of services are being
received by each individual.

6.2.8. The Department reserves the right to establish data reporting

and deliverable requirements throughout the duration of the

contract.

■ M-
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6.2.9. The Department reserves the right to request service plan and
other documentation to comply with federal requirements upon

request.

6.2.10. The Department reserves the right to request and the Contractor
agency shall provide financial information on the following: what
individuals are benefitting from Contractor's services, how much
was. spent per individual and what type of services are being

received by each individual.

7. Additional Terms

7.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

7.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services

. described herein, the State has the right to modify Service

priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so
as to achieve compliance therewith.

7.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

7.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the
Agreement Effective Date, a detailed description of the
communication access and language assistance services to be

provided to ensure meaningful access to programs and/or
services to individuals with limited English proficiency; individuals
who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or •
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

7.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

7.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement,
"The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed
under an Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department

of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part by the

State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as

were available or required, e.g., the United States Department of
Health and Human Services."

•DS
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7.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall

have prior approval from the Department before printing,

production, distribution or use.

7.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

7.3.3.1. Brochures.

7.3.3.2. Resource directories.

7.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

7.3.3.4. Posters.

7.3.3.5. Reports.

7.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under

the Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

7.3.5. The Contractor shall ensure all educational and informational

materials are understandable, free of jargon, family friendly and

written appropriately for the audience when such materials are

used to educate and inform Individuals and their families about the

residential treatment program, services, and treatment.

8. Records

8.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

8.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data

evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by
the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income

received or collected by the Contractor.

8.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting

procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect
all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,

records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials,
inventories, valuations of in-klrid contributions, labor time cards,

payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

—0»
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8.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each

recipient of services, which records shall include all records of

application and eligibility {including all forms required to determine

eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision

of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.1.4. Medical records on each individual of services.

8.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder,
the Department, the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, and any of their designated representatives shall have access to

all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes
of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the

Department of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement

and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all
the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as. by the
terms of the Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of-this
Agreement and/or survive thejermination of the Agreement) shall terminate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs
hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct

the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums
from the Contractor.

■DS
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Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.- Funds from the Foster Care Program, Title IV-.E, Catalog of Federal .
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.658, Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) 2101NHFOST *

1.2. Funds from Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.558, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHTANF

1.3. Funds from Adoption Assistance (CFDA) #93.659, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 2101NHADPT

1.4. Funds from Medical Assistance Program (CFDA) #93.778, Federal .
Award Identification Number (FAIN) 2105NH5AbM

1.5. General funds.

2. Depending on the eligibility of the client, funding type is determined at the time
of payment. Possible account numbers to be utilized include the below.

2 1 05-95-92-921010-20530000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVGS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,
BUREAU OF CHILDRENS BEHVIORAL HEALTH, SYSTEM OF CARE.
CLASS 102 - CONTRACTS FOR PROGRAM SERVICES

2.2. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS; HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION, CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES. CLASS 636 -
TITLE IV-E FOSTER CARE PLACEMENT

2 3 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES. CLASS 639 -
TITLE IV-A/TANF EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PLACEMENT

2.4. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV,
CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES. CLASS 643 -
STATE GENERAL FUNDS FOR PLACEMENT '

2.5. 05-95-42-421010-29580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES DIV.
CHILD PROTECTION. CHILD - FAMILY SERVICES, CLASS 646 -
TITLE IV-E ADOPTION PLACEMENT

2 6 05-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT
OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS: OFC OF MEDICAIDr—0®
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SERVICES, OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. MEDICAID CARE
MANAGEMENT, CLASS 535 - OUT OF HOME PLACEMENTS

For the purposes of this Agreement;

3.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a subrecipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided to
individuals pursuant to this Agree'ment as follows:.

4.1. For Medicaid enrolled individuals, a daily rate will be awarded in the
amount per client per day indicated in the table listed under section
4.1:1. This per diem rate will be set for the term of the contract. Rates
may be reviewed every two years to follow the State's biennium to
consider rale adjustments.

4.1.1.

Program - Level 2

Residential for eligible youth per day $172.44

4.1.2. • Billings shall occur on at least on a monthly basis and shall
follow a process determined by the Department.

4.2. For Managed Care Organization enrolled individuals the Contractor
shall be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the
applicable Managed Care Organization for such services.

4.3. For individuals with other health insurance or other coverage for the
services they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other insurance
or payors.

4.4. For individuals without sufficient health insurance or other coverage for
the services they receive which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek
reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payor, the Contractor
will directly bill the Department to access contract funds provided
through this Agreement. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in. a
form satisfactory to the Department with supporting documentation
including but not limited to the denial of claims. The Contractor shall
only be reimbursed up to the current Medicaid rate for the medicaid
eligible services provided.

4.4.1. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices with supporting
documentation may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices
may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services

Webster House
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129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

4.4.2. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within
thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice and. supporting
documention for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval
of the submitted invoice.

4.5. Maximum allotment for daily rate expenditure for Department funded,
expenditures by fiscal year is as follows:

. 4.5.1. Sub-total: $2.116.692.00

4.5.2. SPY 22: $705,564.00

4.5.3. SPY 23: $705,564.00

4.5.4. SPY 24: $705,564.00

5. Prior to submitting the first invoice, the Contractor must obtain a Vendor
Number by registering with the New Hampshire Department of Administrative .
Services here (Vendor Resource Center I Procurement and Support Services
I 'NH Dept. of Administrative Services^.

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Porm P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Stale Piscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget'Office may be made by written agreemerit of both parties, .without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

7. Audits

7.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subreclplent pursuant to 2 CPR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

7.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's-^tseal

I M-
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year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

7.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the,Contractor shall submit an

annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

7.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless of
the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

7.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it Is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTfWENT OF HEALTH AND HUHflAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTftrtENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten caleridar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3.1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided ttelow the sile(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each locatiori)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

6/14/2021

Vendor Name;

."•OocifSlen*^ W-

klduJJjb
Diti YTare-W^Wle o'Malley

Title:

—w
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections'1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs {indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Chlld Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a fvlember of Congressjn
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or.
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name;

• OeeuSlgtMd by;

6/14/2021 ALiclollL
Diti CMalley

Title:

[m-
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective prirhary participant is providing the

cehificatlon set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification, the certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' "debarred,' 'suspended,' 'ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
transaction," 'participant," 'person.* 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.' 'proposal.' and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHMS may terminate this transacUon
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary paiticlpant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals; .
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarrnent. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or hada civil judgment rendered against.them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In

connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal..State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13 By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by subrriilting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Inellgibillty, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

-OocuSlffAtd by:

6/14/2021 I ALicIuXLu
o'Malley

■  CEO
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions-, to execute the foiiowirig
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements: '

• the Civil Rights Act of 1384 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity); .

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity:

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government sen/ices, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDR Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal EmpioymenI Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistiebiower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistiebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

—05
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of-Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

bjr:

6/14/2021 Alic/uXLt
Date Nam^'lWc^^e CMalley

Title:

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING ENViRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the Imposition of a dvil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

—OACuSigA*^ by:

6/14/2021

Date Namefi^c^ie^e o'Malley
Title: cko
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of Nevv Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

"Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Agoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
•  information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or receivetf-by

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExhiWt I Conlraclor Initials^
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning, as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

^ "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health arid Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othen^rise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. - Business Associate shall not use. disclose, rnaintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation.purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third.party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it iS' required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bustfiess

1 M
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has iexhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PH) pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

'  shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions, and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes.aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and e)dent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  ■ The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information Has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply \Mth all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business a5§g|:iate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivihg^l
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered. Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, "agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine

•  Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
•Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a .
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHT. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othenwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business M-
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obliaations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section

■  164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the'Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to

. a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to time as is necessary for Covered •
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements "of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rjesotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.
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Seoregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Webster House

^6aSsftf.tb^ Contractor
1  /UicfolLc

Signature of Authorized Representative Sig'nalure o7^'uthorized Representative
Katja FOX Michelle o'Malley

Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Name of Authorized Representative

CEO

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/14/2021 6/14/2021

Date Date
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CERTiFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability arid Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
A. NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporling.Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as IdentiHed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health'and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal ..
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

>~*Oo«uJlgn»d by;

6/14/2021 kAlLdL

Diti O'HaMey
Title:
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

08-340-1158
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. ' In your tiusiness or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHH»U0713
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A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any sirnilar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code.of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Sen/Ices (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its'data,' unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

, M-
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Slate of New Hampshire's Department" of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security numt>er, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked

'  or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160..103.

11; "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

<*—08
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

_  3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. •

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated In this Contract,

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. .Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been.evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities erisure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layere (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting. services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

Ta:;
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transrriitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will .
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent .inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required .by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees, it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes.and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure,

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will,
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenArise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department" of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly ■
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
■ Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely,destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to "protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) -regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

M-
VS. Loslupdate 1(V09/18 ExhlbilK ConlraclorInitials^

DHHS Infonnation

Security Requirements 6/14/2021
Pa^e 3 of 9 Oslo



DocuSign Envelope 10: 0974C6F5-4117-4FBB-A19O-AAB2964E1B1D

OocuSign Envelope ID: 757EDBCE-4808-4F72-AC7e-69938456D236

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an ' internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey vrill be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

>

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

—0»
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.the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy arid Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or.access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will -notify the .State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perforrh their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information'only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received *by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Lsslupdslo 10/09/18
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
' derivative files containing personally identifiable information, arid in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved. •

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

r"OS
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

—-0$
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